
Committee Meetings
1:30 p.m.

Thursday, May 23, 2019

Board of Supervisors
9:00 a.m.

Friday, May 24, 2019

2nd Floor
J.S. Clark Administration Building

Southern University and A&M College
Baton Rouge, Louisiana



Academic Affairs 

Committee 



ACADEMIC AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 
J.S. Clark Administration Building - 2nd floor 

Board of Supervisors Meeting Room 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
Thursday, May 23, 2019 

1:30 p.m. 

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order

2. Invocation

3. Roll Call

4. Adoption of the Agenda

5. Public Comments

6. Action Item(s):
A. Request Approval to Establish the Native American Law and Policy

Institute (NALPI) at the Southern University Law Center (SULC)

B. Ratification of Awarding of Honorary Juris Doctor Degree to Attorney
Benjamin Crump (SULC)

7. Other Business

8. Adjournment

MEMBERS 
Dr. Curman L. Gaines - Chair, Dr. Leroy Davis - Vice Chair 

Mr. John Barthelemy, Mr. Sam Gilliam, Dr. Samuel C. Tolbert, Jr., Dr. Leon R. Tarver II 
Atty. Domoine D.  Rutledge- Ex Officio 



OFFICE OF THE CHANCELLOR 

(225) 771-2552

FAX (225) 771-2474 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LAW CENTER 

261 A. A. LENOIR HALL 

POST OFFICE Box 9294 

BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA 70813-9294 

(• --o 

:;:;, 

f'i 
, J 
---C', 
\.. I • f1 
·, --r;� 

May 2, 2019 �-:; �� � 

Dr. Ray Belton 
System President and Chancellor 
Southern University System 
J. S. Clark Administration Bldg., 4th Floor 
Baton Rouge, LA 70813 

{.,") 

p 

RE: Establishment of a Native American Law and Policy Institute (NALPI) at the 
Southern University Law Center (SULC) 

Dear Dr. Belton: 

The Southern University Law Center has been engaged in creating relationships with Native 
American Tribal Nations for approximately one year through Indian Law initiatives, programming, and 
effo1ts. The initiatives, programming, and effotts have been historic in that SULC is the first law school 
in the Southeastern United States that has hosted and/or cohosted two conferences focused on the rights of 
American Indians and Indian Tribal Nations during the 2018-2019 academic year. 

SULC is working directly with federally-recognized tribal nation in Louisiana and creating 
experiential learning oppo1tunities for SULC students with tribal nations. SULC has MOU's with 
federally-recognized tribal nations in Louisiana as well as the Louisiana Governor's Office oflndian 
Affairs. Currently, SULC is working with the Tunica-Biloxi Tribe of Louisiana to reform its criminal 
code. SULC plans to collaborate with other tribal nations in developing updated commercial codes, 
providing student interns for tribal courts, and engaging tribal nations in economic development efforts. 

The next step would be to establish a Native American Law and Policy Institute (NALPI). In 
addition to continuing the work already begun by SULC over the last year, NALPI could be the vehicle 
through which SULC becomes a leading education institution focusing on: 

• Tribal Business Development and Law;
• Tribal Gaming Law; and
• Tribal Governance and Tribal Nation Building

Adam Crepelle has been the spark plug for Indian law initiatives, programming, and efforts over 
the last year. If the Board of Supervisors approves the establishment ofNALPI and approves the 
appointment of Adam Crepelle as a tenure track associate professor, I would propose that Mr. Crepelle 
serve as a managing fellow for NALPI. In addition, if the Board approves the appointments of Marc 

"An Equal Educational Opportunity Institution" 

'·1. 



Dr. Ray Belton 
May 2, 2019 
Page -2-

Roark and Michael Oeser as associate professors, on a tenure track, I would propose and recommend that 
they be senior fellows for NALPI. Crepelle, Roark, and Oeser are all registered members of either a state 
or federally recognized Native American tribal nation. To my knowledge, there are no law schools with 
three Native American law professors that are in tenure track positions. 

Moreover, by establishing NALPI, SULC would be one of only 2 I law schools in the United 
States that have either Indian Law programs or institutes. All twenty of the current programs or either 
west of the Mississippi River ( 17) in the no1theast (Harvard and Yale), or in the midwest (Michigan State 
University). None are in the Southeastern United States. 

In the last 8 months SULC has received or generated over $30,000 due to Indian Law initiatives, 
programming, and effo1ts. SULC anticipates generating another $50,000 over the next two months. It is 
my belief that ifNALPI was formally established, SULC would have a vehicle that would be I 00% self
suppo1ting and would provide a sustainable stream of revenue, donations, and other financial benefits that 
would be highly beneficial to SULC. 

I respectfully ask that this request to establish NALPI be presented to the Southern University 
Board of Supervisors at its May 2019 Board meeting for the Board to consider for approval. If you have 
questions. Please feel free to contact me. 

Yours ,;nc ,�ly, 

, B 
, 

nl. ; n ,E.llor� 
anue B. Lacour Endowed Law Professor 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LA w CENTER 



SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LAW CENTER 

261 A. A. LENOIR HALL 

POST OFFICE Box 9294 

BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA 70813-9294 

OFFICE OF THE CHANCELLOR 

(225) 771-2552 

FAX (225) 771-2474 

Dr. Ray Belton 
System President and Chancellor 
Southern University System 
J. S. Clark Administration Bldg., 4th Floor 
Baton Rouge, LA 70813 

May 10, 2019 

RE: Ratification of Awarding of Honorary Juris Doctor Degree to Attorney Benjamin Crump

Dear Dr. Belton: 

Attorney Benjamin Crump was selected to be the commencement speaker for the May 
2019 commencement exercise for May 2019 graduates of the Southern University Law Center. 
Attorney Crump is known globally for his role in the Trayvon Maitin, Martin Lee Anderson Boot 
Camp, Jannie Legions and Robbie Tolan cases, important 21st century civil rights and 
constitutional rights cases. He has received significant recognition worldwide for his service in 
pursuit of civil rights and justice for racial minority groups in the United States. Biographical 
information on Attorney Crump is attached. 

The Southern University Law Center seeks to have the Southern University System Board 
of Supervisors to ratify actions taken to award an Honorary Juris Doctor Degree to him by the 
Southern University Law Center at the May 2019 Board meeting. 

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me. 

Yours sincerely

t 

� 

ohn . P1e1 'e, CYiancellor & 
Vanue B. Lacour Endowed Law Professor 

Attachment 

"An Equal Educational Opportunity Institution" 



WIKIPEDIA 

Benjamin Crump 
Benjamin Lloyd Crump (born October 10, 1969) is an American civil 
rights attorney and founder of the Tallahassee, Florida-based law firm 
Ben Crump Law. He is known for his association with the 2012/2013 
George Zimmerman case, and for representing the family of Michael 
Brown, a 17-year-old African-American boy shot and killed by police in 
Ferguson, Missouri.[1lf2l 

Contents 

Early life and education 

Career 

Bibliography 

References 

External links 

Early life and education 

Born 

Benjamin Crump 

Benjamin Lloyd Crump 

October 10, 1969 

Lumberton, North Carolina, 

United States 

Alma mater Florida State University 

(J.D.) 

Occupation Attorney 

Spouse(s) Genae Crump 

Website Official website 

(https://www.bencrump.com/) 

Benjamin Lloyd Crump was born in Lumberton, North Carolina, near Fort Bragg, where his biological father served in the 
United States Army.t3l The oldest of nine siblings and step-siblings, Crump grew up in an extended family and was raised by
his grandmother Mittie. t4l His mother Helen, worked as a hotel maid and in a local Converse shoe factory. [sl His mother 
sent him to attend South Plantation High school in Plantation, Florida where he lived with her second husband, a math 
teacher, whom Crump identifies as his father.lsl[61 

He attended Florida State University and received his bachelor's degree in criminal justice in 1992. Crump received his 
Juris Doctor from Florida S_tate University in 1995_[7) A classmate of Crum p's at Florida State University College of Law was 
journalist Shannon Bream. [SJ 

Career 

Crump is known for taking on cases that garner widespread media attention and civil rights implications. An example was 
the shooti:rig of .'.!!��on Martin, who on February 26, 2012 was killed by Q_eorge Zimmerman. Crump represents Martin's 
family.19l 

Crump also represented the fami1y of Alesia Thomas, a 35-year-old single African-American mother who died while in 
police custody in August 2012J101 Journalist Chuck Philips reported that during the arrest by female Officer Mary
O'Callaghan, Thomas was "slammed to the ground, handcuffed behind her back, kicked in the groin, hog-tied and stuffed 
into the back seat of a patrol car, where she died. n[nJ Crump demanded that dashboard video of the incident be released, 
threatening legal action and encouraging Attorney General Eric Holder to launch a federal probe.E111l121 In October 2013, one
of the arresting officers was charged with felony assault of Thomas, pleading not guilty.1'31 Judge Shelly Torrealba signed off 
on a request by the district attorney's office to only release the video to prosecutors and defense attorneys. This was to 
prevent the tainting of potential i!!__ry candidates 01Callaghan1s attorney Robert Rico saidP41 



On August 11, 2014 1 the family of Micha.�1 __ Brown announced that they would be hiring Crump to represent their case, 
especially as the death had been widely compared to the Trayvon Martin caseJ1s][ibJ[i7J

Other past clients include the family of Martin Lee Anderson, an African-American teenager who died after a beating in 

2006 by guards in a Florida youth detention center; the family of Genie McMeans1 Jr., an African-American driver who 
died after being shot by a white state Trooper; the family of Ronald Weekley Jr., a 20-year-old African American 
skateboarder beaten by police in Venice, California;[u][iSJ[i9l[201 the family of Tamir Rice, an African-American youth who 
was killed by police in Cleveland, Ohio while holding an air gun (a replica of a real gun); t21l and the family of Antonio 
Zambrano-Montes, an illegal immigrant from Mexico who was killed by three policeman in Pasco, Washington while 
throwing rocks. [221 He previously represented the family of Kendrick ,Johnson, an African-American high school student
who was found dead at his school in Valdosta, Q_eor� under mysterious circumstances, but stepped down from their legal 
team in late 2015.r23l[24l Crump is representing the family of Corey Jones, who was killed by a plainclothes officer while 
waiting for a tow truck in South Florida.t2sl 

Crump currently represents Terrence Crutcher's family, an unarmed black man shot and killed by a Tulsa Police officer[261 

as well as Zeke Upshaw, an NBA G League player who collapsed midgame in 2018 and was delayed assistance by the NBA's 
paramedics. 

In April 2017, Crump appeared as an attorney on the American reality prime time court show You the Jun[, canceled after 
two episodes. Later, in December 2017, Crump investigated the murder of Tupac Shakur in the television documentary 
series Who Killed Tupac? The show narrates an investigation led by Crump who works with Tupac's brother, Mopreme 
ShakurY71 In 2018, Crump hosted a documentary television series on TV One called Evidence of Innocence.r281 The show 
focused on people who served at least a decade behind bars for being wrongfully convicted of a crime. Crump hoped to 
"impact the larger society about these larger matters so they can be aware when they go into the courtroom as jurors"J291 



In 2017 Crump announced the opening of a new law firm, Ben Crump law, PLLC.[3ol In 2018 he became a Board Member 

for the National Black Justice Coalition. 

Bibliography 

• Crump, Benjamin L. "Ben Crump - the Man Who Represented the Families of Michael Brown, Trayvon Martin, and
Tamir Rice -Will Not Stop Fighting for Justice." NowThis. 1311 2018.[1]
.(https://www.facebook.com/NowThisNews/videos/2015577608532353/)

• Crump, Benjamin L. "Every Black Person Has Had A 'Starbucks Moment'. 1321" HuffPost, HuffPost, 21 Apr. 2018.

• Crump, Benjamin L. "After Stephan Clark's Death, Chock and Mourning in Communities across the Nation.1331" USA
Today, USA Today, 29 Mar. 2018.

• Crump, Benjamin L. "Stand Your Ground Is a License to Kill. Repeal lt.1341" Miami Herald, Miami Herald, 5 Feb. 2018.

• Crump, Benjamin L. "Libyan Slave Trade Perpetuates The Commodification of Black Bodies.1351" Huff Post, HuffPost, 5
Jan. 2018.

• Crump, Benjamin L. "Civil Rights Resolutions for a Better America in 2018. 1361" CNN, CNN, 2 Jan. 2018.

• Crump, Benjamin L. "The Unsolved Murder of Tupac Shakur Speaks To The Black Male's Experience Nationwide. 1371" 
HuffPost, HuffPost, 12 Dec. 2017.

• Crump, Benjamin L. "Trump's Response To Charlottesville Was Far Too Little And Way Too Late.1381" HuffPost,
HuffPost, 15 Aug. 2017.

• Crump, Benjamin L. "Only A Just America Will Be A Truly Great America.1391" HuffPost, The HuffPost, 15 Jan. 2017.

• Crump, Benjamin L. "Benjamin Crump: Seven Deaths Cannot Be In Vain.1401" TIME, TIME, 8 July 2016.

• Crump, Benjamin (April 20, 2015). "Will America now challenge the standard police narrative?". United States. Crime.
Time (South Pacific ed.). 185 (14): 22.

References 

1. Hicks, Johnathan P. (April 18, 2012). "Trayvon Family's Lawyer, a Career Steeped in Civil Rights Cases"
(http://www.bet.com/news/national/2012/04/18/trayvon-s-family-lawyer-a-career-steeped-in-civil-rights-cases.html).

BET.

2. "Oklahoma Tulsa Police §ll_c,g�17_g" (http://www.cnn.com/2016/09/20/us/oklahoma-tulsa-police-shooting/) .. £1'/.,11[.

September 20, 2016. 

3. The Grio (March 30, 2012). "Benjamin Crump: Martin family lawyer known for civil rights cases"
(http://thegrio.com12012/03/30/benjamin-crump-martin-family-lawyer-known-for-civil-rights-cases/). thegrio.com.

4. "Trayvon Martin Family Lawyer Is Versed In Civil Rights Cases" (http://newsone.com/1966075/trayvon-martin-family
lav;yer-is-versed-in-civil-rights-cases/). newsone.com. March 30, 2012.

5. Barbara Ash; Florida State University Law Review (2006). "BEN CRUMP Seeking Justice for All: BEATING THE
ODDS Ben Crump Winning the 'No-Win' Cases"
.(https://web.archive.org/web/20130412170201 /http://www.law.fsu.edu/images/FSULAW Spring 2006.pdf) (PDF).
law.fsu.edu. Archived from the original (http://www.law.fsu.edu/images/FSULAW�§pring 2006.pdf) (PDF) on 2013-04-
12.

6. Mark Schneider; Associated Press (March 30, 2012). "Martin family lawyer known for civil rights cases When Benjamin
_G_rump got his first call from Trayvon Martin's father last month, the attorney counseled patience"
_(http://m.startribune.com/nation/?id = 145073445). startribune .com.

7. "Benjamin L. Crump - Parks and Crump Attorneys at Law" (http://parkscrump.com/attorneys/benjamin-crump/).

Parkscrump.com. 2014-06-20. Retrieved 2014-08-15.

8. "Twitter I Shannon Bream: Still surprises me whenever"
(https://twitter.com/ShannonBream/status/500343983818944512). Twitter.com. Retrieved 2014-08-15.

9. "Trayvon Martin Family's Lawyer Benjamin Crump Known For Civil Rights Cases''.

(http://www.huffingtonpost.com/2012/03/30/trayvon-martin-fam ilys-lawyer-benjamin-crump n 1390757. htm I).
lt�ffing_ton Post. March 30, 2012. Retrieved April 8, 2012.



10. Romero, Dennis (August 30, 2012). "Alesia Thomas: Woman Dies in LAPD Custody Amid 'Questionable Tactics,'
Police Say" (http://www.laweekly.com/informer/2012/08/30/alesia-thomas-woman-dies-in-lapd-custody-amid

guestiona ble-tactics-police-say). LA Weekly.

11. Philips, Chuck (October 15, 2012). "What Happened to Alesia Thomas" (http://c_htJg_k_philipspost.com/investigative
reports/alesia-thomas/). Chuck Philips Post. Retrieved 22 October 2013.

12. Romero, Dennis Romero (October 15, 2012). "LAPD's Alesia Thomas Beating Video Demanded By Attorney Benjamin
Crump_:

(http://blogs.laweekly.comlinformer/2012l10lalesia thomas video benjamin crump attorney general eric holder.php).
LA Weekly. Retrieved 24 October 2013.

13. Botelho, Greg (October 10, 2013). "LAPD officer charged with assaulting arrested woman, who later died"

(http://www.cnn.com/2013l10110/justice/lapd-officer-charged-assaulU). CNN. Retrieved 22 October 2013.

14. Abdallah, Tami (15 October 2013). "Mary O'Callaghan Pleads Not Guilty To Felony Assault"

(http://www.huffingtonpost.com/2013/10/15/mary-ocallaghan-pleads-not-guilty n 4103358.html). The Huffing/on Post.

15. Swaine, Jon (12 August 2014). "Michael Brown shooting: police use teargas to crack down on protesters"

_(https://www.theguardian.com/worldl2014/aug/12/michae1-brown-shooting_:f�rnuson-missouri-police-crack-down
protesters). The Guardian. Retrieved 18 August 2014.

16. Blackburn, Doug (August 15, 2014). "Friends of Brown family called on civil-rights lawyer"

.(https://www. usatoday .comlstory/newslnation/2014/08/15lbenjamin-cru mp-answers-calll141 030451). USA Today.
Retrieved August 19, 2014.

17. Cadet, Danielle (August 11, 2014). "Beniamin Crump Representing Michael Brown's Family After Teen's Fatal

Shooting" (http://www.huffingtonpost.com/2014/08/11/benjamin-crump-michael-brown n 5669931.html). Huffington
Post. Retrieved August 19, 2014.

18. "Benjamin Crump - Bay county camp, martin anderson case" (http://articles.orlandosentinel.com/2012-04-06/newslos
trayvon-martin-benjamin-crump-20120406 1 bay-county-boot-camp-martin-lee-a nderson-anderson-case). Orlando
Sentinel. Retrieved April 8, 2012.

19. "How lawyergot nation talking about Trayvon Martin" (https://www.npr.org12012/04I05/150068233/how-lawyer-got

nation-talking-about-trayvon-martin). NPR. Retrieved April 8, 2012.

20. Schneider, Mike (March 30, 2012). "Martin Family lawyer known for civil rights cases"
(http://www.thegrio.com/specialsltrayvon-martin/beniamin-crump-martin-family-lawyer-known-for-civil-rights

cases.php). The Grio. Associated Press. Retrieved April 8, 2012.

21. Cleveland Plain Dealer: "Tamir Rice's family hires attorney who represented families of Michael Brown and Trayvon
Martin" By Patrick Cooley (l1t_tp://www.cleveland.com/metrolindex.ssf/2014/12/family of tamir rice will hold.html)_
December 08, 2014

22. New York Daily News: "Family of unarmed Mexican man killed by police in Pasco, Wash., hires civil rights attorney
Beniamin Crump" BY Rachelle Blidner (http://www.nydailynews.com/news/nationallfamily-seeks-iustice-unarmed-man

�ill<>d-wash-cops-article-1.2127112) February 24, 2015

23. "Kendrick Johnson Update: "It's a real-life murder mystery," atty Benjamin Crump says of Ga. teen's gym mat death"
_(http://www.cbsnews.comlnewslkendrick-iohnson-update-its-a-real-life-murder-mystery-atty-beniamin-crump-says-of
!l":ie_e_n_s:gym-mat-death/).www.cbsnews.com. Retrieved 2016-02-06.

24. "Kengrick Johnson probe: Attorney exits mark shift- CNN.com" (http://www.cnn.com/2016/01/21/us/georgia-kendrick

johnson-attorney-exits/index.html). CNN. Retrieved 2016-02-06.

25. Robles, Frances; Hauser, Christine (22 October 2015). "Lawyers Provide Details in Police Shooting of Corey Jones in

Florida" (https://www.nytimes.com12015/10/23/uslflorida-corey_-iones-police-shooting�h_!_l}}ll. The New York Times.
Retrieved 16 November 2015.

26. CNN (http://www.cnn.com12016/09/20lus/oklahoma-tulsa-police-shootingl)

27. Clarkson, Brett. "Who killed Tupac Shakur? Florida attorney investigates in A&E series" (http://www.sun

sentinel.com/news/florida/fl-reg-who-killed-tupac-attorney-benjamin-crump-20171121-story. html). Sun-Sentinel. com.
Retrieved 2018-06-25.

28. Shadowandact.com (https://shadowandact.com/tv-one-announces-new-original-documentary-series-evidence-of
innocence-hosted-by-attorney-benjamin-crump/)



29. "Ci�iJ::•Jghts attorney Ben Crump hosts new television series 'Evidence of Innocence' tonight"
(https://www.tallahassee.com/story/news/money/2018/06/04/civil-rights-activist-ben-crump-hosts-new-television-series
evidence-innocence/669900002/). Tallahassee Democrat. Retrieved 2018-06-25.

30. Digital Journal (http://www.digitaljournal.com/pr/3428557)

31. "NowThis" (https://www.facebook.com/NowThisNews/videos/2015577608532353/)_. www.facebook.com. Retrieved
2018-07-12.

32. Crump, Benjamin (April 21, 2018). "Every Black Person Has Had A 'Starbucks Moment"'
(https://www. huffington post.com/entry/opinion-crump-hotel-racism us 5ada31 c2e4b04090e5511550). Huff Post.

Retrieved June 25, 2018.

33. Crump, Benjamin (March 29, 2018). "After Stephan Clark's death, shock and mourning in communities across the
nation" (https://www.usatoday.com/story/opinion/policing/spo!lighU2018/03/29/stephon-clark-death-funeral-ben
crump/471822002/). USA Today.

34. Crump, Benjamin (February 5, 2018). "Stand Your Ground is a license to Kill. Repeal it"
(http://www.miamiherald.com/opinion/op-ed/article198553554.html). Miami Herald. Retrieved June 25, 2018.

35. Crump, Benjamin (January 5, 2018). "Libyan Slave Trade Perpetuates The Commodification of Black Bodies"
(https://www.huffingtonpost.com/entry/libyan-slave-trade-commodification us 5a4f96a8e4b089e 14dba6860?h8f).
HuffPost. Retrieved June 25, 2018.

36. Crump, Benjamin (January 2, 2018). �C_illii_r:ights resolutions for a better America in 2018"
(https ://www.cnn.com/2018/01/02/opinions/civil-rights-resolutions-for-us-2018-ben-crump-opinion/index. html).
Retrieved June 25, 2018.

37. Crump, Benjamin (December 17, 2017). "The Unsolved Murder Of Tupac Shakur Speaks To The Black Male's
l=xperience Nationwide" (https://www.huffingtonpost.com/entry/tupac-shakur-speaks-to-black-male
experience us 5a371f49e4b0ff955ad4343d). HuffPost. Retrieved June 25, 2018.

38. Crump, Benjamin (August 15, 2017). "Trump's Response To Charlottesville was Fra Too Little And Way Too Late"
(https://www.huffingtonpost.com/entry/trumps-charlottesville-far-too-little-too-late us 59935283e4b0e 789a94 761 e5).
HuffPost. Retrieved June 25, 2018.

39. Crump, Benjamin (January 15, 2017). "Only A Just America Will Be A Truly Great America"
(https://www.huffingtonpost.com/entry/only-a-just-america-will-be-a-truly-gr!'at-
america us 5879406ce4b0b3c7a7b15650). HuffPost. Retrieved June 25, 2018.

40. Crump, Benjamin (July 8, 2016). "Benjamin Crump: Seven Deaths Cannot Be In Vain" (http://time.com/4398329/alton
sterling��hilando-castile-dallas-police-justicel). TIME. Retrieved June 25, 2018.

External links 

• Benjamin Crump (https://www.imdb.com/name/nm4988046I) on !�Db

Retrieved from "https ://en. wikipedia. org/w/index.php?title=Benjamin C ru mp&oldid=890031425" 

This page was last edited on 29 March 2019, at 15:44 (UTC). 

Text is available under the Creative Commons Attribution-ShareAlike License; additional terms may apply. By using this 
site, you agree to the Terms of Use and Privacy Policy. Wikipedia® is a registered trademark of the Wikimedia Foundation, 
l11_c,, a non-profit organization. 



ABOUT 

O�llcE_Aq1TORNEYS 
BLOG 

RESULTS 

IN THE NEWS 

CONTACT 

CALL NOW: (844) 638-1822 

Ben Crump 

Attorney 

f 'I in 

Benjamin Crump represents clients in some of the most important and 

contentious cases of our tlme, taking a place in legal history with his pursuit of 

Justice. 

His role in the Trayvon Martin, Martin Lee Anderson Boot Camp, Jannie Ligons 

{State of Oklahoma vs. Daniel Holtzclaw) and Robbie Tolan cases shows a legacy 

built around the idea that the Constitution applies to everyone, at every level of 

society. 

Mr. Crump's passion for advocacy has given him the privilege to fight for justice 

on behalf of the marginalized in our country, a calling to which he remains 

dedicated. 

Mr Crump has broken barriers in several legal organizations, serving as the first 

African-American President of the Federal Bar Association for the Northern District 

of Florida and the first African-American Chairman of the Florida State University 

College of law Board of Directors. He is a member of the American Bar 

Association, American Association for Justice, The Florida Justice Association, and 

many other groups dedicated to the law and the pursuit of justice. 

Mr. Crump is a frequent speaker and author, having been featured in 

documentaries like NPR's "How Lav.yer Got Nation Talking About Trayvon Mortin," 

and BET's "/ Am Trayvon Martin: A Family's Fight/or Justice." Mr. Crump is also a 

frequent contributor to Time magazine, discussing many of the civil rights and 

criminal justice !ssues Afrlcan-Americans face today. Mr. Crump will also appear on 

a telev!slon show called "Evidence of Innocence," which wlll feature stories about 

individuals who were wrongfully Imprisoned. 

He's received significant recognition for his service ln pursuit of civil rights and 

justice for minorities, being included on prestigious lists like The National Trial 

Lawyers' Top 100 Lawyers and Ebony Magazine's Power 100 Most Influential 

African Americans. He has also received the National Urban League's Whitney 

Contact Ben 

First Name 

Last Name 

E-mail

Phone 

Your Case Details 

Submit 
j 

"Hi'stoIJ' teaches tk7t gr"7ve 
thre.1ts to h'herty olien 
con1e in times of urgen9� 
when constitutional rights 
seem too extravagant to 
endure.'-' 

-Thurgood Marshall



Young Award, AK.A's Eleanor Roosevelt Award, the NAACP Thurgood Marshall 

Award, and the SCLC's Martin Luther King Servant Leader Award. 

Mr. Crump is heavily involved in his community, havi1ffi'A��Y.tfflga�ed 

scholarships to Florida A&M University, Livingston College, Flefi!.'(J(itate University, 

and Bethune Cookman University for minority law studentfl.E&UISl}S,erves as the 

president and co-founder of My0ad360, a mentoring prlti-liHfi>NliW&-s 

endorsed by Colin Powell and recognized by President Ob�l'-!1/i\Gfrother's 

Keeper Initiative. He is a Life Member of the omega Psi Phi

 Southern Christian Leadership Conference, the NAACP, and the Urban League. 

He previously served as the inaugural Board Chairman of Florida's Big Bend Fair 

Housing Center, and also served as General Counsel to the Florida State 

Conference of the NAACP and sat on the boards of the Innocence Project and the 

Equal Justice Institute. 

Mr. Crump was born and raised in Lumberton, North Carolina, and is the oldest of 

nine siblings and step-siblings. He received his undergraduate and law degrees 

from Florida State University. He is a congregation member and serves on the 

Board ofTrustees for the Bethel Missionary Baptist Church. He is married to Dr, 

Genae Angelique Crump, is the proud father of Brooklyn Zeta Crump, and the 

guardian of two adopted cousins, Marcus and Chancellor. 

Get in touch with Mr, Crump and his colleagues. 

Awards 

• 2016 Freedom Award Recipient National Civil Rights M11se11m

• Eleanor Roosevelt Medallion of Honor - Alpha Kappa Alpha Sorority, Inc.

• Steven J. Sharp Award - AAJ

• Henry Latimer Diversity Award - The Florida Bar

• William Robert Ming Advocacy Award- NAACP

• Whitney Young Award - National Urban League

• Ebony Magazine Power 100 - Ebony

x SHOW LESS 

Root 100 Top Black Influencers Named ?012 

Role Model of the Year -100 Black Men 

• Outstanding Philanthropist of the Year

Nation's Best Advocate - Activism - National Bar Association

Martin Luther King, Jr. Servant Leader Award - Southern Christian
Leadership Conference

• AAJ Minority Caucus: Johnnie Cochran Jr. Soaring Eagle Award



• NBA Impact: 40 Under 40 Nation's Best Advocate - Activism

• NBA Lawyers Committee on Civil Rights: Distinguished Advocate

• NBA Small Firm/Solo Practitioner Esquire Award

• Sx NBA President Award Winner

• AAJ: Steven J, Sharp Award
Root 100: Top Five Most Influential African-Amerlcan

Root 100: Most Influential African-America

Ebony Power 100 Awardee (Top 25) (2012) 

• Omega Psi Phi Centennial Achievement Award (Law) 

• Southern Legal Counsel Lawyer of the Year 

National Urban League: Leader of Justice Award 

NAACP Thurgood Marshall Award 

• Alpha Kappa Alpha Outstanding Global Leadership Award 

Delta Sigma Theta Economic lifetime Township Award 

100 Black Men Role Model of the Year 

• SCLC Martin Luther King Jr. Leadership Award

• NBLSA Excellence in Activism Award

• The Florida Bar: Henry J. Latimer Diversity Award

• American Cancer Society Relay for life: Chairman's Award (FL)

• American Constitutional Society: Lawyer of the Year Award (Fl)

• Florida Civil Rights Association Lawyer of the Year 

• National Black Chamber of Commerce: Advocate of the Year

• African Methodist Episcopal Sons of Allen: Man of the Year

Memberships 

National Bar Institute 

National Bar Association (life Member) 

• American Board of Trial Advocates

• American Bar Association

• American Association for Justice

• American Constitutional Society

• Federal Bar Association

+ SHOW MORE 



National Bar Association & Community 
Involvement 

• NBA Vice-President of Finance (2013-2014) 

• Chaired "NBA Stand Your Ground" Symposium (2012) 
 

, NBA Board Member-at-Large (1997-1998, 2012-2013) 

• National Bar Institute Board Member (2013 .

• NBA Region XI Director (2004) 

• NBA Board of Directors (2000-2002) 

• NBA Chair of the Nominations Committee (2001-2002)

+ SHOW MORE

Practice Areas 

• Civil Rights

• Class Actions

• Personal Injury

• Labor & Employment

• Medical Malpractice

• Negligent Security

• Securities Litigation 

• Talcum Powder/Ovarian Cancer

OTHER PRACTICE AREAS 



Car Accidents Civil Rights 

If you're injured in a car The lawyers at Ben 

accident, our attorneys ABOUT Crump law are at the 
PRACTICE AREAS , 

will help you pursue forefront of protecting 
BLOG 

compensation. Don't 
RES UL TS 

the clvil rights of those 

deal with lt alone, 
IN THE NEWS 

denied them: 

Slip & Fall 

CONTACT discrimination,

CALL NOW: (844) 638aUl21llent, and the 

injustices of the justice 

system are among the 

areas in which our firm 

fights for those whose 

rights are violated. 

Some of the most 

common personal 

injuries come about as a 

result of a slip and fall, 

in which a victim falls in 

an establishment and Is 

injured in the process. 

Workers' 
Compensation 

Suffering an injury on 

the job is frequently 

painful and debilitating, 

but real trouble can 

follow when insurance 

companies and 

employers make it 

difficult to get proper 

compensation for your 

injuries. 

View All _____ )

'L We Get Results 

/._ We're Available For You 24/7 

:l. No Fees Unless You Win 

Mesothelioma 

Mesothe!ioma is a rare 

form of cancer that on 

develops from exposu1 

to asbestos. 

Medical 
Malpractice 

A healthcare provider 

that fails to abide by a 

professional standard 

care could seriously 

Injure or even kill a 

patient. Medical 

malpractice attorneys 

fight for vlctims of 

negligent medical 

professionals. 



ABOUT 

PRACTICE AREAS 

BLOG 

RESULTS 

IN THE NEWS 

CONTACT 

CALL NOW: (844) 638-1822 

Call Now at: (844) 638-1822 

f � in � D 

Ben Crump Law PLLC 

OFFICES IN WASHINGTON O.C., CALIFORNIA, FtORIDA, GEORGIA, MISSISSIPPI, AND TENNESSEE 

Terms & Conditions 

Attorney Advertising 

© All Rights Reserved. Ben Crump Law PLLC 



Facilities and Property 

Committee 



FACILITIES AND PROPERTY COMMITTEE 
(Following the Academic Affairs Committee) 

J.S. Clark Administration Building- 2nd Floor 
Board of Supervisors Meeting Room 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
Thursday, May 23, 2019 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

1. Call to Order 
 

2. Roll Call 
 

3. Adoption of the Agenda 
 

4. Public Comments 
 

5. Information Item(s): 
A. Priority Projects Updates, by Campuses 

 
6. Other Business 

 
7. Adjournment 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MEMBERS 
Rev. Donald R. Henry- Chair, - Dr. Rani Whitfield - Vice Chair, 

Mr. John Barthelemy, Dr. Leroy Davis, Mr. Richard Hilliard, Mrs. Ann A. Smith 
Atty. Domoine D. Rutledge – Ex-Officio 



SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AND A&M COLLEGE SYSTEM 

J. S. CLAIU( ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 

3
TH 

FLOOR 

166 G. LEONNETTERVILLEDR.

OFFICE OF 

FACILITIES PLANNING 

May 1, 2019 

Hon. Dr. Ray L. Belton 

BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA 70813 

President of Southern University System 
41h floor, J. S. Clark Adm. Building
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813 

(225)771-2786 OFFICE

(225) 771-2922 FAX
Eli_ Guillory@sus.edu

RE: Southern University System Office of Facilities Planning Project Updates 

Dear Dr. Belton, 

We are transmitting the �ttached updated document report, which indicates the remarkable status 
of each campus building construction, renovations, building repairs/upgrades and facilities 
planning progress for your files. Additionally, many meetings have been held to consult with 
each SU System campus facility management group along with the Board of Regents, Facility 
Planning and Control, DOTD and the Governor's Office of Homeland Security/Emergency 
Preparedness for the overall capital improvement process to meet the goals of this great 
university. 

Should you have any questions, please don't. hesitate to call me. Y om approval and sustained 
support of Southern University System Office of Facilities Planning is greatly appreciated. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Eli G. Guillory III
Director of Facilities Planning 

Attachments enclosed: Progress report and construction pictures 

"Five Campuses, One Visio11 ... Global Exce/le11ce" 

WWW.SUS.EDU 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Southern University and A&M College System 

SU System Campuses Projects 

Eli G. Guillorv Ill May 2019 

Eroject Name Pcojec! Budge! Funding 
agency Sourc,, 

SUAG Arena - building 
SUAG exterior painting and wall $ 75,000.00 State 

system/roof canopy repairs 
Southwest Center for Rural 

SUAG Initiatives (Opelousas Ag 
$ 105,221.96 State Bldg) - Mechanical system AC 

units replacement 
. .

A. 0. Williams Hall 

SUAG Mechanical HVAC system 
$ 250,000.00 State upgrades - Westside of

Phase one
SUAG - A. 0. Williams Hall 

SUAG Renovations - Phase 1 
s 2,764,000.00 Fed. Gov. 

westside, ext. wall flashing NIFA 
and de-brick masonrv 

SUAG Multipurpose Building $ 1 492,444.00 Fed. Gov 

SUAG Child Development Center -
$ 218,300.00 Fed. Gov. code uparades 

SUAG Horticulture Storage Building 
$ 275,000.00 Fed. Gov. Renovation 

SUAG Pesticide Storaae Buildina $ 250,000.00 Fed. Gov. 

SUAG Equipment Storage Shed 
$ 90,000.00 Fed. Gov. Buildina 

SUAG Meat Technology Roof 
$ 212,400.00 Fed. Gov. Replacement 

A. 0. Williams Hall -
SUAG Mechanical AHU / Mech. $ 140,000.00 State 

Room eauipment Repairs 

SUBR B. A Little Dr. Road upgrade 
$ 151,775.00 Title 3 at SUPD & TT Allain Hall 

New Science Complex -
SUBR program room/space planning $ 56,000.00 Title 3 

I Phase 

SUBR J. B. Moore Hall Hi-Tech 
s 300,000.00 Title 3 Smart Classroom Renovation 

SUBR SU Museum of Art - HVAC 
s 127,112.00 State Mechanical System Repairs 

SUBR Air Handling Unit Repair - W. 
$ 350,000.00 State H. James Hall 

SUBR Fan Coil Unit Repairs-JW 
$ 100,000.00 State Fisher hall 

Fan Coil Unit Repalrs-J. Lee 
SUBR Hall & Health Research $ 100,000.00 State 

Center 

SUBR Mechanical Unit Repairs-WW 
$ 100,000.00 State Stewart Hall -Phase 1 

Dehumidifying System Repair-
SUBR Tourgee A. Debose Music $ 225,000.00 State 

Hall 

SUBR AW. Mumford (Consent 
$ 7,900,000.00 State Decree ADA) 

SUBR F.G. Clark Activity Center 
$ 7,450,000.00 State !(Consent Decree ADA) 

SUBR J.S. Clark Admin Building -
$ 216,558.00 State Roof Replacement 

Frank Hayden Hall - Theatre 
SUBR Lobby Restrooms Phase 1 Title 3 

uparades 

Ravine Utility Line Erosion SUBR $ 1,221,407.00 State Control 

Approval Completio Commen!s Date n Date 

2018 Pending FP&C approval 

2018 Active - In Progress 

Penaing planning by FP&C 
2018 and seeking additional 

fundil)g $1,000,000 

complete (pending to seek 

2015 Capllal Outly funding for 
$4,500,000 for phase 2 -
Eastside) 

2003 2018 complete (furniture funding 
,s oendIna) 

Apr. 2018 2019 Complete 

2003 2017 Complete 

2003 2018 Complete 

2003 2018 Complete 

Apr. 2018 2019 Complete 

Active - pending 10/20/2017 completion 95% 

2018 complete 

2017 Active - 95% complete 

Apr. 2016 Active - construction 95% 
complete 

10/11/2018 Active - Construction in 
progress 

10/20/2017 Active - Construction in 
proaress 

10/19/2017 Active - Construction in 
proaress 

Active - Construction in 10/19/2017 progress 

10/19/2017 Active - Construction in 
proaress 

Active - Construction in 10/19/2017 progress 

2016 Active - Construction in 
Proaress 80% comolete 

2016 Active - Construction in 
, progress 80% complete 

12/20/2017 Active - Construction in 
IProaress 

pending funding for Apr. 2016 planning & construction 

Active - pending 
2016 completion by DOTO, 

FP&C, BoR 



Ruffin Paul Central Plant -
Loop Pump and Valve 
Replacement (Rebuild (2) 

Loop pumps and replace with 
26 SUBR 

new VFDs, Replace valves 
on top of aluminum cooling 
tower and replace safety 
rails) 
ADA Safety Compliance & 

27 SUBR Drainage Project at the Law 

Center 

SU Laboratory School Gym 
Roof replacemenUupgrades 

28 SUBR as required for interior 
protection of rain water 
migration. 

29 SUBR SU Laboratory School Gym 
Looker Room upgrades 

SU Laboratory School 
30 SUBR Elecmentary Buildings 

renovations 

Install/ repairs of 100ft tower 

31 SUBR 
lights -West and East of F G 
Clark Activity Center 
(Disaster Relief Shelter) 

Upgrade lighting system for 
32 SUBR classrooms, exits and 

stairwells in various buildings 

Campus sidewalks repairs 

33 SUBR neutralizing trip hazards and 
ensuring wheelchair 
accessibility 

J. S. Clark Adm. Building -

34 SUBR Upgrade chill water and hot 
water pumps and install new 
automated digital controls 

W. W. Stewart Hall 
35 SUBR Auditorium Mech. HVAC 

reoairs/uoarades 

Ravine Erosion Cantrel & 36 SUBR Road Improvements 

37 SUBR Music Building Annex - Music 
& Recording Studio 

38 SUBR W. W. Stewart Hall First Floor 
Renovations 

39 SUBR W.W. Stewart Hall 
Auditorium Renovations 

40 SUBR T. H. Harris Hall Window 
Replacement 

41 SUBR SUBR Gas Valve 
Reolacement 

42 SUBR Underground Gas and Water 
Line Repairs 

43 SUBR T. T. Allain Hall ADA 
compliance 

44 SUBR Water Valve Replacement 

45 SUBR Fan Coil Unit Repair James B 
Moore 

46 SUBR James Lee Hall - Floor Tile 
Replacement 

47 SUBR Cade Library - Fire Alarm 
Reolacement 

48 SUBR Cade Library - Elevator 
Repairs 

49 SUBR T.T. Allain ADA Renovation 
!(Consent Decree) 

50 SUBR Tony Clayton Championship 
Plaza 

Frank Hayden Hall - Theatre 
51 SUBR seating and wheelchair lift 

uoarades 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

212,000.00 

95,400.00 

120,000.00 

70,000.00 

440,000.00 

175,000.00 

100,000.00 

55,542.00 
. ' 

160,000.00 

255,414.00 

$ 10,000.000.00 

$ 200,000.00 

$ 330,000.00 

$ 160,000.00 

$ 50,000.00 

$ 4,028.00 

$ 4,250.00 

$ 4,700.00 

$ 287.631 35 

$ 67,987 79 

s 202,491.85 

s 279,166.00 

s 15,000.00 

s 1,010,000.00 

s 465.000.00 

$ 255,000.00 

State 

State 

State 

SUBR 

State 

State 

State 

State 

State 

State 

DOTO 

Title 3 

Title 3 

Title 3 

State 

State 

State 

State 

State 

State 

State 

State 

State 

State 

SU 
Foundation 

Tille 3 

Active - in the planning 
7/27/2018 phase for bidding by fp&c 

Active - In the planning 
7127/2018 phase for bidding by fp&c 

Pending FP&C approval 

Active - constructin in 

2019 progress I seek an 
additional $20,000 for 

HVAC upQrades 

Active - FP&C pending 
2019 planning phase 

Pending FP&C approval 

Pending FP&C approval 

Active - planning phase 
and bidding 

pending FP&C approval 

Active - planning In 
progress 

Active - construction 
5/25/2017 pending / low bid 

$5,000,000 by Merrick LLC 

2018 Active - planning phase 

2018 Active - programing & 
plannin!'.I phase 

2018 Active - programing & 
olanning phase 

2016 2017 Complete 

2016 2017 Complete 

2016 2016 Complete 

2016 2017 Complete 

2016 2017 Complete 

2016 2017 Complete 

2016 2017 Complete 

2016 2017 Complete 

2016 2017 Complete 

2016 2018 Completed 

2017 2018 Completed 

Apr. 2016 2018 completed 



52 SUBR 
Frank Hayden Hall• Theatre 

$ 
lighting uoarades 

257,000.00 Title 3 Apr. 2016 2018 completed 

E. C. Harrison Street & 
53 SUBR sidewalk Replacement I $ 404,000.00 Title 3 Apr. 2016 2018 completed 

Upgrades 
School of Computer Science 

54 SUBR 
Renovation • phase 1 ( H. L. 

$ 248,000.00 Title 3 Apr. 2016 2018 completed 
Thuman Jr. Hall • East 
Comclexl 

55 SUBR 
J. B. Cade Library 4th Floor 

$ 
Renovations 

142,000.00 Title 3 Apr. 2016 2018 completed 

56 SUBR 
Roofing Replacement· J.S. 

$ 155,733.57 State 11/17/2016 2018 Completed 
Clark Annex Blda 

57 SUBR 
Roofing Replacement • 

$ 270.396.87 State 11/28/2016 2018 Completed 
Beniamin Kraft Bldo 
Roofing Replacement • 

58 SUBR Southern University Museum $ 41,200.00 State 11/29/2016 2017 Completed 
of Art (SUMA) 

59 SUBR 
Door Entrance ADA Repairs • 

$ 
multiole bides 

51,500.00 State 12/16/2016 2018 Completed 

Electrical Lighting 
60 SUBR Repair/Upgrades• Rodney $ 77.250.00 State 12/19/2016 2018 Completed 

Higgins Hall & Camous 

61 SUBR 
Sidewalk & Curb Ramp 

$ Repairs for ADA Compliance 
20,600.00 State 12/19/2016 2018 Completed 

62 SUBR 
Roof Replacement • William 

$ Wallace Stewart Hall 
339,900.00 State 2/9/2017 2017 Completed 

63 SUBR 
Roof Replacement • Rodney 

$ 229,478.12 State 2/9/2017 2018 Completed 
G. Hiooins Hall 

64 SUBR 
Central Plant HVAC 

$ Reolacement 
231,363.60 State 2/9/2017 2018 Completed 

65 SUBR 
Central Plant HVAC 

s 87,426.40 State 9/25/2017 2018 Completed 
Replacement Phase 2 

66 SUBR 
HVAC Renovations• Muiltiple 

$ 128,750.00 State 2/13/2017 2018 Completed 
Buildinos 
Benjamin Kraft Hall • Rooftop 

67 SUBR Mechanical Equipment $ 25,000.00 State 3/6/2018 2018 Completed 
Reolacement 

68 SUBR 
Rodney Higgins Hall • Rooftop 

$ 90,000 00 State 3/12/2018 2018 Completed 
Exhaust Fan Replacement 

69 SUBR 
Student Health Center • 

$ 133,900.00 State 7/24/2018 2018 Completed 
Ravine Stabilization 
Building Control Systems 

70 SUBR Rplmt-Mini Lab/Compliance $ 150,000.00 State 10/19/2017 2018 Completed 
Center 
Cooling Tower Repairs-Ruffin 

71 SUBR Paul Sr. Central Plant • phase $ 225,000.00 State 10/19/2017 2017 Completed 
1 

72 SUBR 
Drainage/Culvert Repair at 

s 499.960 00 State 2016 2017 
Completed • FP&C and 

Steptoe Road DOTO 

73 SUBR 
SU Police Station Renovation 

s Title 3 Apr. 2016 
Seeking funding approval 

project budget• 450,000 for renovations by SUBR 

74 SUBR 
J. B. Moore Hall I. T. 

s 45d.ooo.oo Title 3 2018 Active • programing phase 
Renovation 

75 SULC Roof replacement s 480,000.00 State 2016 2017 Comoleted 

76 SUNO
Campus Wide Electrical & 

$ 437,510.00 State 8/31/2018 
Active • pending planning 

Lighting Repairs • Phase II and biddina 

77 SUNO
Roofing Replacement • 

s 226,365.00 State 11/29/2016 2018 Completed 
Cafeteria Bldo 

Sile Parking Lot Restoration 
Active • 75% complete· 

78 SUNO Phase 1 & 2 • temporary fema $ 2,154,846.00 FEMA 2015 
pending completion of New 
Ed. Building / Arts & 

trailers lake and park campus Humanities buildina 

79 SUNO
Univ. Center Replace 3 Air 

$ 265,775 00 State 2016 Complete 
Handlino Units 

80 SUNO
Roofing Replacement • 

$ 494,400.00 State 2016 Complete 
Universitv Center Buildina 
University Center-Parking Lot 

81 SUNO Resurfacing, Sidewalk & $ 61,800.00 State 2016 Complete 
lightina reoairs 

82 SUNO Natural Science Buildina $ 27,750,000.00 FEMA 2015 comolete 

83 SUNO Arts and Humanities Building S 21,200,000.00 FEMA 2015 complete 

84 SUNO 
Mechanical HVAC Controls & 

$ 95,082.00 State 2018 
Active • planning and 

Equipment upgrades biddina bv fn&c 



Campus sidewalk and parking 

85 SUNO lot upgrades / repairs for 
$ 145,000.00 State Active - planning and 

various locations on the Park bidding by fp&c 
Campus and Lake Campus 

Campus wide Mechanical 

86 SUND HVAC System Upgrades for $ 400,000.00 State Active - pending planning 
various buildings on the Park and bidding 
and Lake Campus 

University Center 2nd & 3rd 

87 SUNO floor door replacements and $ 200,000.00 State Pending fp&c approval 
painting of 
offices/restrooms/corridors. 

Natural Science 1st & 2nd 
88 SUNO Floors interior build-out $ 2,700,000.00 FEMA 2015 Active - planning phase 

soaces Phase 2 
Demolition of existing New ' .

Acti�e - pl.anning phase 
89 SUNO Science and Old Science FEMA 2015 (staffing to vacate buildings Buildings - see fp&c for is pending) budaet amount 

90 SUNO New Education and Human $ 11,608,000.00 FEMA 2015 Active - under construction 
Development Building 99.5 % complete 

Roof Leaks & associated 
91 SUNO damage repair -Modular $ 29,772.10 State 2016 2017 Completed 

Buildinos 
92 SUNO Washinoton Librarv HVAC $ 298,295.00 Stale 2016 2017 Completed 

93 SUNO 
Electrical Underground Wiring $ 48,734.00 State 2016 2018 Completed Repairs & Outdoor Lighting 

94 SUND 
Mechanical Underground 

$ 51,500.00 State 2016 2017 Completed Piping Repairs 

95 SUNO 
Roofing Repair - New Science $ 36,153.00 Stale 6/13/2017 2017 Completed Bldo 

Emergency Chilled Water 
96 SUNO Valve Installation - L. $ 10,300.00 State 6/13/2017 2017 Completed 

Washington Memorial Library 

Electrical & Lighting 
97 SUNO Repairs/Replacements - $ 51,500.00 State 7/24/2017 2018 Completed 

Campuswide 

98 SUNO 
University Center Pool $ 65.290.17 State 10/17/2017 2018 Completed Repairs 

99 SUNO Central Plant Building $ 6,097,000.00 FEMA 2015 2017 completed 

100 SUNO 
School of Social Work $ 10,257,000.00 FEMA 2015 2017 completed Buildina 

Active - pending planning & 
Mechanical/HVAC System bidding (cm hold by FP&C 

101 SUSLA Repairs $ 424,000.00 State 7/27/2018 due to a RFP for energy 
savings performance 
contracting by SUSLA) 

102 SUSLA ADA Restrooms upgrades $ 117,873.00 State Active - pending planning 
by fp&c 

103 SUSLA Elevatior repairs $ 71,160.00 State Active - repairs in progress 
Allen Building School of 

104 SUSLA Nursing Renovation $ 3,500,000.00 State 2016 Active - 99.5% complete 
!(Downtown Texas St.) 

105 SUSLA HVAC upgrades, Install New 
s 192,710.00 Title Ill Active - In Progress Roof, Enhance Drainage. 

Install keyless Entry Locks on 
106 SUSLA MLK, Incubator and Metro $ 50,000.00 Title Ill Active - Pending 

Camous' 

107 SUSLA Campus Building Directions 
s 15,000.00 Title Ill Active - Pending Signage 

108 SUSLA Install Energy Efficiant $ 85,000.00 Title Ill Active - Pending External LED Liohtina 

109 SUSLA Renovate Admissions Office $ 10,000.00 Title Ill Active - Pending 

110 SUSLA Renovate Bathrooms $ 50,000.00 Title Ill Active - Pending 

111 SUSLA SUSLA -Campus HVAC $ 194,698.00 State 1/30/2017 Active - pending 
Svstem Repairs comoletion 
Site campus drainage : 

112 SUSLA upgrade throughout the main $ 150,000.00 State Active - Pending planning 
campus. 

----·---------------



Mechanical System - Replace 
Air Handler Units and Duct 
system, Fan Coils, Exhaust 
Fans (Science Building Active - pending planning & 
(S07505), (Fine Arts, S07509 bidding (on hold by FP&C 

113 SUSLA 
& Jesse Stone, S07511) 

$ 282,232.00 State due to a RFP for ehergy 
Server Unit Repair (IT, Main savings performance 
Campus, S07503), Replace contracting by SUSLA) 
Fan Coil Unit Motors and 
(Administration S07503), 
Replace Pumps 
(Administration S07503) 

Replace Hot and Cold Water 
underground piping on 
campus (Administration 
S07503, NCR S07504, 
Science S07505, Fine Arts 
S07509, Jesse Stone 
S07511, PD & Facilities 
S07506, Library S07508, 

114 SUSLA Physical Plant S07510, $ 20,000.00 State Pending approval by fp&c 
Shipping & Warehouse 
S12069, Health & Education 
S13204, Student Union 
S07507, Student Activity 
S15913, Womens and 
Minorities Small Business 
S15937, Jackson & Dental 
Hygiene Buildings) 

Downtown Metro Building roof 
Active - planning and 

115 SUSLA repairs and existing rooftop $ 30,000.00 State 
bidding by SUSLA 

mechanical items removal 

SUSLA -Campus Safety 
Active - Repairs in 

116 SUSLA Compliance Projects - $ 97,850.00 State 1/30/2017 2018 
walks/doors/lighting repairs 

progress 

117 SUSLA 
SUSLA -HPER-Gymnasium 

$ 142,469.13 State 1/31/2017 2017 Completed 
Roofing Repairs 

118 SUSLA 
SUSLA - Campus-wide LED 

$ 25,750.00 State 4/13/2017 2018 Completed 
Liahtina 

119 SUSLA 
SUSLA - Campus-wide ADA 

$ 55,488.00 State 4117/2017 2018 Completed 
Compliance Projects 

120 SUSLA 
Alphonse Jackson New 

$ 6,300,000.00 State 2015 2018 Completed 
Classroom Buildina 

New Dental Hygiene Learning 
one time 

121 SUSLA s 900,000.00 state 2015 2017 Completed 
Center 

fundina 

Total amount $141,325,839.91 



I.� 

SUBR F. G. Clark Activity Center Renovations 

SUBR A. W. Mumford Stadium Renovations East & West Sides 



SUBR J S Clark Building Roof Replacement 

SUNO New College of Education and Human Development Building 



Finance Committee



FINANCE COMMITTEE 
(Following the Facilities and Property Committee) 

J.S. Clark Administration Building- 2nd Floor 

Board of Supervisors Meeting Room 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 

Thursday, May 23, 2019 

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order

2. Roll Call

3. Adoption of the Agenda

4. Public Comments

5. Action Item(s)

A. Request Approval of BA-7 (SUBR)

B. Request Approval of Digital Course Material and Digital Casebook/E-Casebook

Fee for 1st Year Students Beginning with the Entering Fall 2019 Class (SULC)

C. Request Approval to Increase Undergraduate Nursing Student Lab Fees Fall

2019 (SUBR)

D. Request Approval of the Amended Early Retirement Incentive Plan (SULC)

E. Request Approval of Documents Relative to Agreement Between SUBR and New Cingular

Wireless PCS, LLC. to Increase Rental Fees to $3,500 per Month (SUBR)

6. Other Business

7. Adjournment

MEMBERS 

Dr. Leon R. Tarver-Chair, Mr. Richard Hilliard-Vice Chair 

Dr. Leroy Davis, Dr. Curman L. Gaines, Mr. Sam Gilliam, Ms. Arlanda Williams 

Atty. Domoine D. Rutledge – Ex-Officio 



































OFFICE OF THE CHANCELLOR 

{225) 771-2552 

FAX {225) 771-2474 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LAW CENTER 

261 A. A. LENOIR HALL 

POST OFFICE Box 9294 

BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA 70813-9294 

� 
-

-.&:> 

-o
;u 
r,. 
.1 (.. _; 

( /) 
_,, 

::It 

� 
-,-, -·..., ',.,

,.--fl'\ 
') r,'? 

Dr. Ray Belton 
System President and Chancellor 
Southern University System 
J. S. Clark Administration Bldg., 4th Floor 
Baton Rouge, LA 70813 

May 3, 2019 

RE: Digital Course Material and Digital Casebook/E-Casebook fee for 
151 Year students only beginning with the entering Fall 20 I 9 class 

Dear Dr. Belton: 

<.,") 

I 
v,) 

� 

<?. 
v,) 
...l 

The cost for course materials, and casebooks for I st year students at the Southern University Law 
Center (SULC) averages $1,226 per year. This cost can create a hardship on I st year law students and 
create equitable access to course materials issues for students at the beginning of an academic school 
year. Access to digital course materials and digital casebooks or E-Casebooks can save students 
financially by reducing the costs of instructional materials and ensure that all I st year law students have 
equitable access to course materials on the first day of class. 

To address the access to affordable casebook and instructional materials issue, SULC has 
developed a plan with West Publishing, Lexis Nexis and Wolter Kluwers Publishers to provide all 
required 151 year law student instructional materials to SULC students at a cost of $750 per year or $375 
per semester. The cost savings for students would be $476 per year or $238 per semester. 

Under this plan, all first year students would access to all digital instructional materials for the 
whole year as well as study aids, outlines, hornbooks, and other supplemental study materials that would 
enhance equitable access to educational materials for all I st year students. The costs associated with 
additional study aids, outlines, hornbooks, and supplemental study materials can be an additional $500 to 
$700 per year. Hence, it is not uncommon for a first year law student to expend $1,700 to $2,000 per year 
for classroom instructional material and commercial study aids, outlines, and hornbooks. 

SULC proposes to charge all first-year law students a fee of $375 per semester to cover the costs 
of the aforementioned plan during the fall and spring semesters of their first year. The fee would only be 
applicable to incoming first year law students beginning with the incoming first year law students 
matriculating in Fall 2019. The fee is only applicable during the first year of matriculation. 

"An Equal Educational Opportunity Institution" 

,, 



Dr. Ray Belton 
May 3, 2019 
Page -2-

I believe that this proposal and plan would allow SULC to be proactive in dealing with an issue 
the United States Congress and the Louisiana Legislature is deeply concerned about. The U.S. Congress 
is currently evaluating the merits of the Affordable College Textbook Act, a bill that aims to make higher 
education more affordable for students by the use of open educational resources which are high quality 
academic materials that can be freely downloaded, edited, and shared to better serve all students. 

Similarly, the Louisiana Legislature is currently evaluating Senate Bill 117 which focuses on the 
state's public postsecondary education institutions role in increasing the accessibility of affordable 
textbooks and other educational resources for postsecondary students. In addition, House Concurrent 
Resolution 80 focuses on open educational resources representing the development of shared on line 
accessible textbook collections to bring educational costs down considerably while making efficient use 
of tax dollars. 

I respectfully ask that this request to impose a digital materials and course casebook/e-casebook 
fee for first year students only beginning with the Fall 2019 class be presented to the Southern University 
Board of Supervisors at its May 2019 meeting. It is my hope that the Board will approve the fee. If you 
have any questions, please feel free to contact me. 

Yours sincerely

1< 

.f � 
Joi 1 K. Pierre, Chancellor & 
V ue B. Lacour Endowed Law Professor 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LA w CENTER 



RECEIV 

APR O 5 2019 

Office 01 me txecuuve Vice President

for Academic Affairs and Provost

s -·•-
QY.T.I;.Is�� 

"" .. 

Agricultural & Mechanical College 

School of Nursing
P. 0. Box 11794
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813
Phone (225) 771-2653
Fax (225) 771-2651

To: Dr. Jacqueline Hill 

MEMORANDUM 

Interim Dean College of Nursing and Allied Health 

From: Dr. Latricia G. Greggs, Chair .499

BSN Undergraduate Program 

Date: April 3, 2019 

Re: Increase in Student Lab Fees Fall 2019 

<lL<·.: 
(/;'· ... 
;:.:.;\ . 
n·.i.t 

I am requesting an increase in the nursing student lab fees from $80.00 to $100.00 for the Fall 2019 semester. 
The Undergraduate Nursing Program's enrollment has increased each semester since the last increase of $80.00 
in Spring 2015. The clinical facilities require student competency check-offs for various skills each semester, 
which has resulted in purchasing more supplies. Our current budget does not cover the added cost for hospital 
requirements, supplies, operating services, and equipment. Thank you for your consideration of this request. If 
you have any questions, you can contact me at 771-2653. 

VAL: 

APPROVAL:-=�----==--:...=��,/-' llJ#:/ 
Benjamin Pugh, Vice Ch 
Finance & Administration 

LGG/kpf 

APPROVAL:�6•� 
James �ons, Jr., PhD 
Executive Vice-Pre · dent/Executive 
Vice Chancellor 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813 [225] 771-2653 
"Caring is the Essence of Nursing" 



OFFICE OF THE CHANCELLOR 

(225) 771-2552

FAX (225) 771-2474 

Dr. Ray Belton 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LAW CENTER 

261 A. A. LENOIR HALL 

POST OFFICE Box 9294 

BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA 70813-9294 

May 8, 2019 

System President and Chancellor 
Southern University System 
J. S. Clark Administration Bldg., 4th Floor 
Baton Rouge, LA 70813 

RE: Amendment to SULC Early Retirement incentive Plan 

Dear Dr. Belton: 

The Southern University Board of Supervisors approved at the Board's April meeting an early 
retirement incentive plan proposed b.;Y SULC. SULC has received three applications by tenured faculty 
members who are full professors to take advantage of the plan. However to maximize the savings under 
the plan for SULC, the plan needs to be amended. The proposed amended plan is attached along with the 
plan approved by the Board of Supervisors on April 12, 2019. 

Based upon the goals of the incentive plan and a review of the human resources savings garnered 
by the amended plan, it is my opinion that the proposed amendment is prudent. I respectfully ask that the 
proposed amendment be presented to the Board of Supervisors for approval at its May 2019 meeting. 

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me. 

Yours sincere
lt 

r � 

K. Pierre, Chancellor &

anue B. Lacour Endowed Law Professor 

Attachment 

"An Equal Educational Opportunity Institution" 



,. 

AMENDED 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LAW CENTER 

TENURED FACULTY 

RETIREMENT INCENTIVE PLAN 

The Southern University Law Center (SULC) will offer a retirement incentive plan in accordance 

with the Southern University and A&M College Board of Supervisors' (Board) Policy for Tenured 

Faculty Regular retirement Incentive Plans. The eligible criteria for the retirement incentive plan 

(Plan) will be based on the Board's policy and the following guidelines specific to SULC. The 

plan will be offered from May 1, 2019 through June 10, 2019 with a retirement/resignation date 

of June 30, 2019. 

Retirement Incentive Plan 

1. SULC Tenured Faculty employees (Faculty Member) who are current and fulltime are

eligible to pruticipate in the retirement Plan.

2. Any and all employees with the administrative title of Chancellor, Vice Chancellor or

Associate Vice Chancellor shall not be eligible to pruticipate in the plan, except as outlined

below.

3. An administrative employee who is otherwise ineligible but holds tenure as a faculty

member may only paiticipate in the retirement incentive in the following manner. The

administrative employee must submit an intent to resign the administrative position with

the application. They must meet all other eligibility conditions required for faculty. If

accepted into the program, the resignation from the administrative position will be effective

and the administrative employee will be allowed to paiticipate at a salary commensurate

with their faculty rank in the same manner as other eligible faculty.

4. Faculty Members must be eligible for regular retirement under the Louisiana State

Employees Retirement System (LASERS), Teachers Retirement System of Louisiana

(TRSL), or the Optional Retirement Plan (ORP) and should meet all plan eligibility

requirements as of the application date.

5. To paiticipate in the Plan, an eligible Faculty Member shall not have applied for retirement

or received notice of termination prior to submitting their application. This exclusion shall

not include those who are still working, but are officially retired under the Deferred

Retirement Option Plan (DROP).



6. The Plan's offer is one Hundred (100%) percent of the Faculty Member's base salary for

fiscal year 2018-2019. The retirement incentive will be paid over a three (3) year period,

in installment payments equal to Thirty Tlu-ee and One Third percent (33.33%) of the

Faculty Member's base salary, in each year of the three year period. The retirement

incentive payments will begin after separation from the Law Center.

7. All retirement incentive payments are subject to all applicable federal and state taxes and

regulations.

8. The position vacated by the Faculty Member who resigns through participation in the

retirement Plan will not be filled prior to the Fall Semester of 2021 unless said position is

deemed critical to the effective and efficient operation of the unit. This provision will

ensure costs savings through the 2020-2021 budget year.

9. This plan cam10t be applied to any portion of a Faculty Member's salary that is paid from

any grant(s) and/or contract(s).

10. The Plan will be limited to three (3) participants. Patiicipation in the Plan will be on a first

come, first served basis. If all applications are received at the same time, the lottery method

will be employed.

11. A Faculty Member who wishes to participate in the plan must complete a Retirement

Incentive Plan Application fonn along with the regular retirement system documents and

submit them to the System Vice President of Human Resources (HR), and simultaneously,

a copy of the Retirement Incentive Plan Application form to the Chancellor of the Law

Center, no later than the close of business on June I 0, 2019.

12. All application documents for the Plan herein described shall be submitted in writing to the

System Vice President of Human Resources, and simultaneously, a copy of the application

to the Chancellor of the Law Center, via electronic mail, facsimile, or hand delivery.

Applications submitted via U.S. Postal Service or an overnight delivery/mail service should

be evidenced by a returned receipt signed by an employee in the HR Department, and will

be considered received on the date they are received by the HR Depatiment. All

submissions made by electronic mail etc. must be followed by delivery of the original

documents within 48 hours of the electronic submissions. The faculty member must obtain

proof of delivery signed by an employee in the HR Department.

13. Upon notification of approval, the Faculty Member must submit a letter of resignation as

required in the application. The Plan is not applicable to resignations not accompanied by

retirements.

14. Upon notification of approval of acceptance to participate in the Plan, the Faculty Member

will have a Grace Period of seven (7) calendar days to revoke their decision to participate



in the Plan. A Faculty Member's revocation of election to participate in the Plan must be 

in writing and must be received by the System Vice President of Human Resources before 

the expiration of the grace period. Simultaneously, a copy of the Faculty Member's 

revocation of election to participate in the Plan must be received by the Chancellor of the 

Law Center. A Faculty Member, who submits the required documents and has been 

approved to participate in the Plan and then revokes their election to participate in the Plan, 

may not again elect to participate. 

15. Any Faculty Member who paiiicipates in this plan caimot be rehired by the University as

a full-time employee for a period of two (2) years.



SounmRN UNIVERSITY AND A&M CotLEGE SYSTEM 
.J,S. CU\Hh ADM!NIE>THAY!OH !3UlL.D!NG 

4Tl-f f-"LOO!( 

BATON l{OUGE, LOU!SIAN,A "JOB 13 

OFFICE OF THE 

PRES!IJENT - CHANCELLOR 

(22\5) 77 I -4680 

President/Chancellor Ray L. Belton
Southern University System 
J.S. Clark Administration Building
4 t1, Floor Suite 
Baton Rouge, LA 708013

May 13, 2019

RE: New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC Lease Agreement Renewal 
FA: 10154388 I Lease ID: 170607 I Name: 10154388 I Mkt: AL/ MS/ LA

Dear Dr. Belton:

F/\X NUM8F'.R 

(22�)) 771-5522 

Please be advised that we have renegotiated the terms of the lease agreement that we hold with
New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC for the location of a cellular tower on university prope1ty. The
original ammmt of the lease was $3,000 a month. We have established new terms that set the
monthly rental fee at $3,500 with a 3% increase every year starting in 2020. New Cingular Wireless 
PCS, LLC has also advised that they have negotiated with another cellular company to add a co
locator to tower. That rental amount will be an additional $967.53 a month and we will be advised 
when that addition will begin.

Please feel free to contact me should you have any questions or concerns.

s:r""{}r.·.·.···(········· . 
,_;;. 

;eculus ·�obert
General Counsel

cl Dr. James Ammons, Executive Vice President/Executive Vice Chancellor - SUS/SUBR
Mr. Flandus McClinton, Vice President for Finance and Business Affairs - SUS 
Mr. Benjamin Pugh, Vice Chancellor for Finance and Administration - SUBR

"Fhie CamJntscs, One Vision ... Global Excdlencc" 
WWW.ciUG.CDU 



ATTACHMENT 1 

PARCEL#: NIA

Prepared by, and 
after recording return to: 
Md7,LLC 
Michael Fraunces, President 
10590 West Ocean Air Drive, Suite 300 
San Diego, CA 92130 

Re: Cell Site#: 10154388 
Cell Site Name: Southern Uni (LA) 
Fixed Asset Number: IO 154388 
State: LA 
County: EAST BATON ROUGE 

NOTICE 

OF 

AGREEMENT 

SPACE ABOVE FOR RECORDER'S USE 

This Notice of Agreement is entered into on this�··· day of _______ , 2019, by 

and between Southern University and A&M College, a Louisiana institution of higher learning, 

having a mailing address at J.S. Clark Administration Building, 4th Floor Southern Branch Post 

Office, Baton Rouge, LA 70813 (hereinafter referred to as "Landlord") and New Cingular 

Wireless PCS, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, having a mailing address of 1025 

Lenox Park Blvd, NE, 3 rd Floor, Atlanta, GA 30319 (hereinafter referred to as "Tenant"). 

1. Landlord and Tenant ( or their predecessor) entered into a certain Land Lease
Agreement dated May 28, 2014, as amended by that certain First Amendment to
Land Lease Agreement dated _______________ �-' 2019
(hereinafter, collectively, the "Agreement") for the purpose of installing, operating
and maintaining a communications facility and other improvements at Landlord's
real property located in the City of Baton Rouge, County of East Baton Rouge
commonly known as 400 Mills Avenue. All of the foregoing are set forth in the
Agreement.

2. Commencing on June 1, 2019, the Agreement shall extend for five (5) successive
five (5) year options to renew.

- 1 -



3. The portion of the land being leased to Tenant (the "Premises") is described in
Exhibit 1 annexed hereto.

4. This Notice of Agreement is not intended to amend or modify and shall not be
deemed or construed as amending or modifying, any of the terms, conditions or
provisions of the Agreement, all of which are hereby ratified and affirmed. In the
event of a conflict between the provisions of this Notice of Agreement and the
provisions of the Agreement, the provisions of the Agreement shall control. The
Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their
respective heirs, successors, and assigns, subject to the provisions of the
Agreement.

[NO MORE TEXT ON THIS PAGE- SIGNATURES TO FOLLOW ON NEXT PAGE] 

- 2 -



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Notice of Agreement as of the 
day and year first above written. 

LANDLORD: 
Southern University and A&M College, 
a Louisiana institution of higher learning 

By: ------------

Print Name: __________ _ 

Title: ____________ _ 

Date: _____________ _ 

Witnesses: 

Sign: 

Name: 

Sign: 

Name: 

TENANT: 
New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC, 
a Delaware limited liability company 

By: AT&T Mobility Corporation 
Its: Manager 

By: ------------

Print Name: __________ _ 

Title: ____________ _ 

Date: _____________ _ 

Witnesses: 

Sign: 

Name: 

Sign: 

Name: 

[ACKNOWLEDGMENTS APPEAR ON THE NEXT PAGE] 

- 3 -



LANDLORD ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

STATE OF LOUISIANA ) 
) 

COUNTY OF ____ _ 
ss. 

) 

I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that ___________ _  _ 
is the person who appeared before me, and said person acknowledged that said person signed this 
instrument, on oath stated that said person was authorized to execute the instrument and 
acknowledged it as the ________________________ of 
Southern University and A&M College, a Louisiana institution of higher learning, to be the 
free and voluntary act of such party for the uses and purposes mentioned in the instrument. 

DATED: ___________ _ 

Notary Seal 

(Signature of Notary) 

(Legibly Print or Stamp Name of Notary) 
Notary Public in and for the State of 

My appointment expires: 

- 4 -



TENANT ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

STATE OF ______ ) 
) SS. 

COUNTY OF _____ ) 

I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that--------------� 
is the person who appeared before me, and said person acknowledged that he/she signed this 
instrument, on oath stated that he/she was authorized to execute the instrument and acknowledged 
it as the ____________ of AT&T Mobility Corporation, the Manager of New
Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, to be the free and 
voluntary act of such party for the uses and purposes mentioned in the instrument. 

DATED: ___________ _ 

Notary Seal 

(Signature of Notary)

(Legibly Print or Stamp Name of Notary) 
Notary Public in and for the State of 

My appointment expires: ______ _ 

- 5 -



Exhibit 1 to Notice of Agreement 

Legal Description 

Street Address: 400 Mills Avenue, Baton Rouge, LA 70813 

Parcel#: NIA

That certain Premises (and access and utility easements) on a portion of the real property described 
as follows: 

LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS: 

�-' ' L's I.J TILIT
,..,,;-.· LL ,A' L·A J.'ft.·, #, 

i.;'; '.(, ', rt, ff I,!! !':IM,A v·: .. <.r, 

"";.'11,<'-lfl.;:,i'!,:,: ;;r n,r r,TT;,•;c,··11:N d' Hit' ;,t,,·..:;.vf'l,'l 
(r.Tf':·slhi: iifC ,11.,"(•.,of '['' TI·ff.'.'.f'" ',"\" 1.,' l'.�-.\ � H' 
llill O,'.i-_ q .. : �·t,•:f.\1(•:1 >'i7 ''..1.I/ Vil'; .t.',·D•· t: ;.•;· 

!Hj-, ,L �- ·Nil:;£ {,('" .-'Ii: null 'E•1-.,1 l 
!'J .;,, !. ,; ·<:.!'j '.f:J .::•; 1HI JH lllif q: lHf 
1·.·,r,: 111r: mr ·:-F ntt: -" .·/ ··.<.c· w1.:,t 
·[]•\)T, J.t, ;-f'."T+ll·-'·,•. n1.:.r \J;..1 ,f 

_-E,• . .-'IT Jc.'!C: 
ll; F,lN';'iHlt' f_- H-l u;•.i.[ 't,('.\. ,•11,1·1•i·l 

n,· ,1,,.;;.1, "'i ;;.u�u, ,1< r-:1ti.•" 

H1 n>:L.¢,[ t.f-'. '-.!(LL·., ;.-,e,1.11: !-.','. lhf. ,'s;•'-AH'.111 
;,1,v·c :-r r-'· r rrrr ·1r, ,1,. 1,1.1.1. ·,,;.;.t,, ,rr ;..r n-ir::. 
TI·lf, .-':4'-1 <,f:' •C,h"•iil,•,.; f-, nil ''Er;1r.:-1u1.c !";f" 

�-- · ''i I j''-"L "' _;{ f-"·,: L 'Jf' ·>J 4 � F1£f 
AI--E.1.. "-'·.H lHt l'1.'#, >f 'ff'JVJ'"� n. ri 

;._•,> '1'11.JT• �.f¼ .-lTIT.t. \. ti-!'C '1 1( 1,,U 

i'_d (>'_E· .. ) l[,:,,_-E ")Et. 
., '.nc:r.:..1!-. IF•·r: P .!.'in ,r LIA'·.·• j_J(,\fE, 11, -t'.l'l'ti 
··•r CA'',1 i;{4l<>'- ,,1. 'iV,ll c·r ld 1:11,1,·,t., , ... �i-;r ,,,l ',j)'' 

I". -n·t 
'f- ;·1H::, P, t-Jt.L',, 

j.1<1i;/L 11-., :o.-i Ht{' !"d[·,',l:ll q ,.r THF ,'.l•wt,IT.''"T Fldl U1;i q: "..liH.:-, A\["',l!f. A'1· Yld: A,·�M·fllT 
-,u-.n::>u,c 1.r ...... ,c,.1ic T' nic·,,r: ·,1/1r·,,, .t u.l-"''•,<r ·>r 1-,,, i-' rrc-

0 T'i ... 1.1:.<, ", "- li ',fT "'l n-t: 
liFH r.;_;·:t ,j; .. , ... rv1•,r IF '·-'l.'1 Vhl {,',f:I, lHfl-,'.'( \l'l>i·.,,,r ,:,_ \'!", fA'd r, .>F i.' rl"f ,,. r·,\ ,\ 

f.At ',f.1 .,. n1r. '.! -11l u·.[, r; TH[ .,, , .c,, c,r"-',t ;.,[;,, Hlr:1, Cr,:;•· 1,,·c: .;, .1-.T••!i""C r 
,,n,_.-., Fff::"1 T•I ;, II-� .-•-; ·E1 J,-·,- .� �·,·1•,r ,q� (;[,-1!,',!'•' TTi[',lf -.'l''-14',.•\'L !. ,l','."i,'r.1-' ·. t-' 
'.,,n ffTT r-• ;., [, ·ti .l.,: fT, n1r:-rr ,:, ',>"N I. 1"-Tta•,:.E ,,r i ,w, IT tl l,:. 1:· •. • U· _,,, \:\, 
ET, IHC-•T .,,_·,t ,1,.4· ;,-;,·w /. ,T.1/il·l"t •.f' /'. ,',) ro l 11.• A '/,t.." l�(J; 1:,:.,. ET. T)-!f'l't' •1•· .'�:·r .\ 

"l'-,T�•-::r ·r ,·.1•• fTET r., 'nlf i.hJ r .,[-1n�.1·,1, '·'>l'.-..1rl•1. ·,, ',11,,,r FHT H,1.. r •Et·«. 
'.· :U-JL'-; ;,: J.L 'at:Y·,11 LC�, ;!.'I.' it:�,T''l( H·:C",', TI·P,f • Uq c,t .1r 

- 6 -



Cell Site No.: 10154388 

Cell Site Name: Southern Uni 

Fixed Asset No.: 10154388 

Market: AL/ MS/ LA 

Address: 400 Mills Avenue 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO LAND LEASE AGREEMENT 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO LAND LEASE AGREEMENT ("First Amendment"), 
dated as of the latter of the signature dates below (the "Effective Date"), is by and between 
Southern University and A&M College, a Louisiana institution of higher learning, having a 
mailing address of J.S. Clark Administration Building, 4th Floor Southern Branch Post Office, 
Baton Rouge, LA 70813 (hereinafter referred to as "Landlord"), and New Cingular Wireless PCS, 
LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, having a mailing address of 1025 Lenox Park Blvd. 
NE, 3rd Floor, Atlanta, GA 30319 (hereinafter referred to as "Tenant"). 

WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant entered into a Land Lease Agreement dated May 28, 
2014 (hereinafter, the "Agreement"), whereby Landlord leased to Tenant certain Premises, therein 
described, that are a portion of the Property located at 400 Mills Avenue, Baton Rouge, LA; and 

WHEREAS, the term of the Agreement will expire on May 27, 2024, and the parties 
mutually desire to renew the Agreement, memorialize such renewal period and modify the 
Agreement in certain other respects, all on the terms and conditions contained herein; and 

WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant desire to amend the Agreement to extend the term of 
the Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant desire to amend the Agreement to adjust the rent (as 
defined below) in conjunction with the modifications to the Agreement contained herein; and 

WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant desire to amend the Agreement to modify the notice 
section thereof; and 

WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant, in their mutual interest, wish to amend the Agreement 
as set forth below accordingly. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, Landlord and Tenant 
agree that the recitals set forth above are incorporated herein as if set forth in their entirety and 
further agree as follows: 

l. Extension of Term. The Term of the Agreement shall be modified to provide that the
current term, which commenced on May 28, 2014, shall expire on May 31, 2019 ("Current Tenn"), 
and commencing on June 1, 2019, will be automatically renewed, upon the same terms and 
conditions of the Agreement, as amended herein, for up to five (5) separate consecutive additional 
periods of five (5) years each ( each such five (5) year additional period is hereinafter referred to 
as an "Additional Extension Term" and each such Additional Extension Tenn shall be considered 
an Extension Term under the Agreement), without further action by Tenant unless Tenant notifies 
Landlord in writing of Tenant's intention not to renew the Agreement at least sixty (60) days prior 

Categmy 3, 4, & 5 Amendment Form 



Cell Site No.: IO I 54388 

Cell Site Name: Southern Uni 

Fixed Asset No.: 10154388 

Market: AL/ MS/ LA 

Address: 400 Mills A venue 

to the expiration of the Current Tenn or the then current Additional Extension Term. The Current 
Term and the Additional Extension Terms are collectively referred to as the Term ("Term"). 

2. Rent. Commencing on June 1, 2019, the current Rent payable under the Agreement shall
be Three Thousand Five Hundred and No/I 00 Dollars ($3,500.00) per month (the "Rent"), and 
shall continue during the Term, subject to adjustment as provided herein. Section 4 of the 
Agreement shall be amended to provide that Rent shall be adjusted as follows: on June 1, 2020, 
and each year thereafter, including throughout any Additional Extension Term exercised 
thereafter, the monthly Rent will increase by three percent (3%) over the Rent paid during the 
previous year. 

3. Charges. All charges payable under the Agreement such as utilities and taxes shall be 
billed by Landlord within one (I) year from the end of the calendar year in which the charges were 
incurred; any charges beyond such period shall not be billed by Landlord, and shall not be payable 
by Tenant. The foregoing shall not apply to monthly Rent which is due and payable without a 
requirement that it be billed by Landlord. The provisions of this subparagraph shall survive the 
termination or expiration of the Agreement. 

4. Acknowledgement. Landlord acknowledges that: I) this First Amendment is entered
into of the Landlord's free will and volition; 2) Landlord has read and understands this First 
Amendment and the underlying Agreement and, prior to execution of this First Amendment, was 
free to consult with counsel of its choosing regarding Landlord's decision to enter into this First 
Amendment and to have counsel review the terms and conditions of this First Amendment; 3) 
Landlord has been advised and is informed that should Landlord not enter into this First 
Amendment, the underlying Agreement between Landlord and Tenant, including any termination 
or non-renewal provision therein, would remain in full force and effect. 

5. Notices. Section 17 of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced 
with the following: 

"(a) NOTICES. All notices, requests, demands and communications hereunder will be given by 
first class certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, or by a nationally recognized 
overnight courier, postage prepaid, to be effective when properly sent and received, refused or 
returned undelivered. Notices will be addressed to the parties as follows: 

If to Tenant: 

New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC 
Attn: Network Real Estate Administration 
Re: Cell Site#: 10154388 
Cell Site Name: Southern Uni (LA); Fixed Asset No.: I 0154388 
1025 Lenox Park Blvd. NE, 3rd Floor 
Atlanta, GA 30319 

With a required copy of the notice sent to the address above to AT&T Legal at: 

2 

Category 3, 4, & 5 Amendment Form 



Cell Site No.: 10154388 

Cell Site Name: Southern Uni 

Fixed Asset No,: 10154388 

Market: AL/ MS / LA 

Address: 400 Mills Avenue 

New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC 
Attn: AT&T Legal Department 
Re: Cell Site#: 10154388 
Cell Site Name: Southern Uni (LA); Fixed Asset No: 10154388 
208 S. Akard Street 
Dallas, Texas, 75202-4206 

A copy sent to the Legal Department is an administrative step which alone does not constitute 
legal notice. 

And as to Landlord: 

Southern University and A&M College 
J.S. Clark Administration Building, 
4th Floor Southern Branch Post Office, 
Baton Rouge, LA 70813 

(b) In the event of a change in ownership, transfer or sale of the Property, within ten (10)
days of such transfer, Landlord will send the below documents to Tenant. In the event Tenant 
does not receive such appropriate documents, Tenant shall not be responsible for any failure to 
pay the current landlord 

(i) New deed to Property
(ii) New W-9
(iii) New Payment Direction Form
(iv) Full contact information for new Landlord including all phone numbers

Either party hereto may change the place for the giving of notice to it by thitty (30) days 
prior written notice to the other as provided herein." 

6. Notice of Agreement. Either paity will, at any time upon fifteen (15) days prior written
notice from the other, execute, acknowledge and deliver to the other a recordable Notice of
Agreement substantially in the form of the Attachment 1. Either party may record this
memorandum at any time, in its absolute discretion.

7. Other Terms and Conditions Remain. In the event of any inconsistencies between the
Agreement and this First Amendment, the terms of this First Amendment shall control. Except as 
expressly set forth in this First Amendment, the Agreement otherwise is unmodified and remains 
in full force and effect. Each reference in the Agreement to itself shall be deemed also to refer to 
this First Amendment. 

8. Capitalized Terms. All capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the
same meanings as defined in the Agreement. 

3 

Category 3, 4, & 5 Amendment Form 



Cell Site No.: IO 154388 

Cell Site Name: Southern Uni 

Fixed Asset No,: 10154388 

Market: AL I MS I LA 

Address: 400 Mills A venue 

[NO MORE TEXT ON THIS PAGE- SIGNATURES TO FOLLOW ON NEXT PAGE] 

4 

Category 3, 4, & 5 Amendment Form 



Cell Site No.: l0154388 

Cell Site Name: Southern Uni 

Fixed Asset No.: 10154388 

Market: AL/ MS/ LA 

Address: 400 Mills Avenue 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused their properly authorized 
representatives to execute this First Amendment on the dates set forth below. 

LANDLORD: 

Southern University and A&M College, 

a Louisiana institution of higher learning 

By: __ _ 

Print Name: ___________ _ 

Title: _____________ _ 

Date: ______________ _ 

Witnesses: 

Sign: 

Name: 

Sign: 

Name: 

TENANT: 
New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC, 
a Delaware limited liability company 

By: AT&T Mobility Corporation 
Its: Manager 

By: __ _ 

Print Name: ___________ _ 

Title: 

Date: 

Witnesses: 

Sign: 

Name: 

Sign: 

Name: 

[ACKNOWLEDGMENTS APPEAR ON THE NEXT PAGE] 

Category 3, 4, & 5 Amendment Form 



Cell Site No.: IO 154388 

Cell Site Name: Southern Uni 

Fixed Asset No,: 10154388 

Market: AL/ MS/ LA 

Address: 400 Mills Avenue 

LANDLORD ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

STATE OF LOUISIANA ) 

) 
COUNTY OF ____ _ 

ss. 

) 

I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that ___________ __ is 
the person who appeared before me, and said person acknowledged that said person signed this 
instrument, on oath stated that said person was authorized to execute the instrument and 
acknowledged it as the _________________________ of 
Southern University and A&M College, a Louisiana institution of higher learning, to be the 
free and voluntary act of such party for the uses and purposes mentioned in the instrument. 

DATED: 

Notary Seal 

Category 3, 4, & 5 Amendment Form 

(Signature of Notary) 

(Legibly Print or Stamp Name of Notary) 
Notary Public in and for the State of 

My appointment expires: _______ _ 

6 



Cell Site No.: 10154388 

Cell Site Name: Southern Uni 

Fixed Asset No.: 10154388 

Market: AL/ MS/ LA 

Address: 400 Mills Avenue 

TENANT ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

STATE OF _ ____ �) 
) ss. 

COUNTY OF _____ ) 

I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that ____________ _ 
is the person who appeared before me, and said person acknowledged that he/she signed this 
instrument, on oath stated that he/she was authorized to execute the instrument and acknowledged 
it as the ________________ of AT&T Mobility Corporation, the 
Manager of New Cingnlar Wireless PCS, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, to be 
the free and voluntary act of such party for the uses and purposes mentioned in the instrument. 

DATED: ___________ _ 

Notary Seal 

Category 3, 4, & 5 Amendment Form 

(Signature of Notary) 

(Legibly Print or Stamp Name of Notary) 
Notary Public in and for the State of 

My appointment expires: 

7 



Cell Site No.: 10154388 

Cell Site Name: Southern Uni 

Fixed Asset No.: IO 154388 

Market: AL/ MS/ LA 

Address: 400 MU!s Avenue 

Category 3, 4, & 5 Amendment Form 

Attachment 1 

Notice of Agreement 

8 



Governance Committee



GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
(Following the Finance Committee) 

J.S. Clark Administration Building- 2nd Floor 

Board of Supervisors Meeting Room 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 

Thursday, May 23, 2019 

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order

2. Roll Call

3. Adoption of the Agenda

4. Public Comments

5. Action Item(s)

A. Request Approval of the Transcript Requirements for Transfer Students Policy

(SUSLA)

B. Request Approval of the Re-Admission Requirements for Former Students Policy

(SUSLA)

C. Request Approval of the Out-of-State Fee Waiver Scholarship Policy for First Time, 
First Year Students (SUBR)

D. Request Approval of the Transfer Out-of-State Fee Waiver Scholarship Policy

(SUBR)

E. Request Approval of the Out-of-State Admissions Policy (SUBR)

F. Request Approval of the Early Law School Admissions Policy for students who are 
not undergraduate students matriculating at the SUBR Campus (SULC)

G. Request Approval of New Conditional Admissions Policy (SUNO)

6. Other Business

7. Adjournment

MEMBERS 

Mr. Sam Gilliam-Chair, Dr. Leon R. Tarver II-Vice Chair, 

Dr. Curman L. Gaines, Rev. Donald Ray Henry, Atty. Patrick Magee, Dr. Samuel C. Tolbert, Jr., 

Atty. Domoine D. Rutledge-Ex-Officio 



Dr. Rodney A. Ellis 

Chancellor 

May 3, 2019 

Ray L. Belton, Ph.D. 
President-Chancellor 
Southern University System 

Office Of The Chancellor 

4th Floor, J.S. Clari< Administration Building 
Baton Rouge, LA 70813 

RE: Southern University at Shreveport Transcript Requirements For Transfer Students 

Dr. Belton: 

This communication is to request approval for the Transcript Requirements For Transfer Students

Policy. There are three (3) copies of the policy enclosed for your review. 

They are as follows: 

1. Copy 1 is the current policy being by the University

2. Copy 2 is the New Policy.

3. Copy 3 is the New Polley with highlights to show the changes from current to new.

The policy is attached. I am submitting this policy for your approval as well as the Southern University 
System Board of Supervisors. 

Thank you in advance for your kind consideration. 

Respectfully submitted, 
y,,.,..,-,� 

-;,r;� 
y A. ·Ellis, Ed.D.

Chancellor 

RAE/lw 
Attachment 

3050 MARTIN LUTHER KING, JR. DRIVE,• SHREVEPORT, UJUISIANA 71107 
PHONE: (31.8) 670--9312 • FAX (318) 670--6374 

TOLL FREE: 1-800-458--1472, EXT 6312 
WWW.SUSLA.EDU 

Southern U11lver$[ty .it Shreveport does not dhc:rfmlnate Oh tAo basis of race, color, national origfn, cendor, .1gc or disability, Tit lo IX Coordfnator: M,. Tlllsha T. Bryant, Administration Bulldfng, Room A•43, 
(3181670-9210. Section 504 Coomlnator: M,. Jeru,hka Ellis, Fino Arts Oulldln•, Room C04 0, (318) 670·9473 



POLit;Y. SIJBMIT.fED 

TRANSCRIPT REQUIREl\1ENTS FOR TRANSFER STUDENTS

� DESf;IIIPTI.ON Oli' IJOPY 

C'urrent Polic 



Transfer Students 

A transfer student is defined as someone who enrolls at the university for the first time who has 

prevlously attended another regionally-accredited institution. The following requirements must be 

submitted in order to receive an admission decision. 

TRANSCRIPTS 

Transfer students who have attended other regionally-accredited institutions of higher learning since 
graduating from high school must submit official college transcripts from ALL regionally-accredited 

institutions attended. 

College transcripts are considered official when the original transcript is issued to Southern University at 
Shreveport Admissions or Registrar's Office via mail or approved electronic transmission. 

Students unable to obtain official transcripts due to Indebtedness to another Institution are not eligible 

to enroll at SUSLA. 

Students on academic suspension or otherwise not in good standing at the prior institution are not 

eligible to enroll at SUSLA until the suspension period has elapsed. 

IMMUNIZATION RECORD 

Each student entering the university shall provide satisfactory evidence of immunity to or immunization 
against vaccine-preventable diseases to include but not be limited to measles, mumps, rubella, 
tetanus/diphtheria, and meningitis. This policy applies to all students entering the institution for the first 
time and all students returning after an absence of one semester or more. Under circumstances where 
the immunization records cannot be readlly obtained, or for personal reasons, the student may sign an 

· Immunization waiver during the application process. In the event of an outbreak of a vaccine
preventable disease, students without immunization records will be exclude from the premises untll the
appropriate disease incubation period has expired or the unimmunized person presents evidence of
immunization. Immunization waiver farm

APPLICATION FEE 

A non-refundable fee of $20.00 ($30.00 for international students} is required of ALL students to process 

the application for admission. The application fee is required regardless if applicant ultimately enrolls or 

not. Application fees can be paid on line when submitting the web appllcation, by mail with a cashier's 
· check or money order, or by credit card by calling the Cashier at 318.670.9305.

PROVISIONAL ADMISSION FOR TRANSFER STUDENTS

Provlsional admission may be granted to transfer students who are currently enrolled at another

.. Institution upon receipt of an official "In progress" transcripts, lf the other required documents are 

received. The updated official transcript must be submitted as soon as grades from the transfer 

institution are posted. Students granted provisional admissions are not ellglble for financial aid until 

updated transcript is received. 



2015-2017 University Catalog, pages 4 & 5 
http;//www.susla.edu/assets/susla/documentstacademics/CurrentCatalog/2015 Catalog UniversitvAdmissions.pdf 



Clr TCI A • ' t ii 1'1 . • 

U'-IIJI ,l .._ 
&<,/lam • fnli!,!111 .� 11 1J<11•,bh1 5,,,;., f\,.u11l 

POLJCY ·SlJBMlffED· 

TRANSCRIPT REQUIREMENTS FOR TRANSFER STUDENTS 

_. ItES�DIP'fiON OE COPY 

Nc\v Policy 



f,rcelltnce fnteg,lty • Ao.'u11n1abl/Jty • Servit•e • /)il'er.,ity 

POLICY TITLE 
Transcrlpt·Requlreml?!nfs for Transfer Studi.Jnts 

POLICY NUMBER 
Tei> 

Responslble"Unit: 
, 9jfl,1'l!•p:[ At/1fU�sionJ1•. 

R�po.nsible (:Jfti'dn!: . ' . , 
P.ice f]Fi<l'iJcet/(),rf.01"'8t11.((ent '1_.llj1f1w ·(111l/'!Jlt�1,•o/b1ie11( M,tmagemenr 

Originntion Date: 
Polley, Cl.li��lfi�lfi_6.n:' 

I 

I. POLICY STATEMENT AND RATIONALE

Transfer students are not required to submit an official transcript for admission to SUSLA unless 
the student requests that credits earned while attending another regionally-accredited institution 
be applied towards a certificate or degree at SUSLA. 

II. POLICY SCOPE AND AUDIENCE

These procedures are applicable to transfer students and former SUSLA students. 

III. POLICY COMPLIANCE

SUSLA may reserve the right to require students to provide official transcripts upon request for 

audit purposes. 

IV. POLICY DEFINITIONS

Definitions: 

Re-admit Transfer Student - A re-admit transfer student is one who attended another regionally
accredited institution after leaving SUSLA and has reapplied for admission. 

11Page 



Regular Transfer Student-A tranefer student who enters SUSLA with at least a 2. 00 cumulative 
GP A. Note: Student must meet the minimum GPA that might be required by specific programs. 

Provisional Transfer Student -A transfer student who has applied for admission to SUSLA and 
has requested that credits earned at another Institution be applied toward a certificate or degree, 
but his/her transcripts has not been received, these students will be admitted provisionally. 

V. POLICY IMPLEMENTATION PROCEDURES

Procedures: 
Tranefer and re-admit transfer students who have applied for admission, paid appropriate 

· application fee, and satisfied immunization requirements (shot records or waiver) may be granted
acceptance to SUSLA.

Transcripts -Transfer and re-admit transfer students may request participation in the transfer
. articulation process (see below) at the time of admission. Earned transfer credits of "C" or better

may be added to the student's SUSLA record at the request of the student.

Non-traditional credits (military credit, Life Experience Credit, CLEP exams) that have been
granted by another accredited institution of higher education may be added by the Registrar's
Office upon receipt of official transcript/exam results.

Transfer students transcripts will be logged into the student information system by the Center for
Student Success who will be responsible for articulating and posting credits and thereafter used
by Departmental faculty or Center for Student Success to register students for classes.

Readmit tranefer students transcripts will be logged into the student information system by the
Office of the Registrar. (See readmit policy for more information)

. Transfer Articulation
• Transfer students may opt to include/exclude transfer cou,'Sework towards their degree at

SUSLA at the time of admission. The student will complete a transfer articulation
agreement which indicates their desire to include/exclude transfer coursework. Students
who opt to include tranefer coursework may have all, or none of the transfer credits
articulated in accordance with SUSLA 's transfer articulation policy.

• Option to Include Transfer Coursework

21Page 

o Transfer students will apply to the university and submit required admission
documents and transcripts only if they are seeking transfer credit to be articulated.

o At the time of admission the tranefer student must complete the "Transfer Credit
Request Form" indicating their preference to include transfer coursework in
accordance with SUSLA 's transfer articulation policy.



o Students who opt to include transfer coursework will have all credits reviewed/or
articulation. SUSLA 's transfer articulation policy will dictate which courses are
recorded.

o Only courses with grades of "C" or are applicable toward your selected degree
certificate program will be considered for transfer.

o A degree plan will be developed for the transfer student by the departmental advisor
(designee) or Success Coach in the Center for Student Success.

• Option to Exclude Transfer Coursework

o
If a student opts to exclude previously earned credits eamed at another
institution, the admissions requirements will not include transcripts /01·

acceptance.

Louisiana 2-yr/4,..yr Institutions: 
• Use the Board of Regents Transfer Articulation Matrices for general education course

equivalencies
• lf no course equivalency exists, or if equivalency cannot be determined using course

description, consult with academic department to establish course
equivalencies/substitutions. The Departmental Dean (designee) or Center for Student
Success will build the equivalency/substitution in the student information system.

Out-of-state Institutions: 
• Use transfer institution(s) course catalog already built in the student information system.
• lf the catalog is not built, or if equivalency cannot be determined using course description,

consult with the Departmental Dean (designee) to establish course
equivalencieslsubstitutions.

Students admitted who opt to include transfer coursework can view their transfer articulation on 
their student iriformation system via Banner Web. Students who have not been admitted but desire 

. a transfer equivalency worksheet can download a copy at www.susla.edu.

VI. POLICY RELATED INFORMATION

Not applicable 

VII. POLICY HISTORY AND REVIEW CYCLE

This is an existing policy. The effective date of this policy is September ], 20 I 8. 

VIII. POLICY URL

http://www.susla.edu/pageltransfer 

3IPage 



IX. POLICY APPROVAL

Rodney A. Ellis, Ed.D. Effective Date of Policy 
. Chancellor, Southern University at Shreveport 

Ray L. Belton, Ph.D. Effective Date of Polley 
President-Chancellor, Southern University and A&M College System 

The Honorable Mr. Domoine D. Rutledge Effective Date of Policy 
_ Chair - Southern University System Board of Supervisors 

41Page 



PO.I.It;Y S·IJBMITI'ED 

TRANSCRIPT REQU�MENTS FOR TRANSFER STUD:ENTS 

• DESCRIPTION OE COPY

Nc,v Polic.:y ,vith Markings Hi Thlig_hted 



Jin�/1,nce • lmegNty • Ac,llumabllily • &rvlc,i • lJJ,it,�//11 

POLICY TITLE 
Transcript'R(!qulr(!men_ts for Transfer St.udents 

POLICY NUMBER 

·.'.R:tfporufihhi ·'.tfnit:
f!/fice <!fAdlr,issions

T&D 

1 iR���p.1tn.$ih.hi!'().ftlc.j_nl; ..
Tifee Chancellor for·Stndent 4(/al,·sr1:md1Em:ollmentd�anagemenl·

i>�i�y.,q!a.s.���il�»::

I. POLICY STATEMENT AND RATIONALE

f1((cctiye·I)�te: 

ib�t RevJe,'vcd D�tc: 
-·- .. _,, . . . 

•·O,•iginatfon, Date:

Tronsjer Ntudunls cm! not required llJ submir ,m �_fflclal lmnscripl for atlm/ss/011 IO SUSL1j 1m/es:, 
the studcm requests thal crcd/1s earned while a/lending m101her regionally-accrcdiled instilulion 
be <.!J)plied towards ll certificate or degree at SUSLA. 

II. POLICY SCOPE AND AUDIENCE
These procedures are applicable to transfer students and former SUSLA students. 

III. POLICY COMPLIANCE
. SUSLA may reserve the right to require students to provide official transcripts upon request for 
audit purposes. 

IV. POLICY DEFINITIONS
Definitions: 

· Re-admit Transfer Student - A re-admit transfer student is one who attended another regionally
accredited institution after leaving SUSLA and has reapplied for admission.

llPage 



Regular Transfer Student -A transfer student who enters SUSLA with at least a 2. 00 cumulative 

GPA. Note: Student must meet the minimum GPA that might be required by specific programs. 

Provisional Transfer Student -A transfer student who has applied for admission to SUSLA and 
has requested that credits earned at another institution be applied toward a certificate or degree, 
but his/her transcripts has not been received, these students will be admitted provisionally. 

V. POLICY IMPLEMENTATION PROCEDURES

Procedures: 
Transfer and re-admit transfer students who have applied for admission, paid appropriate 
application Jee, and satisfied immunization requirements (shot records or waiver) may be granted 

• acceptance to SUSLA.

Transcripts -Transfer and re-admit transfer students may request participation in the transfer
articulation process (see below) at the time of admission. Earned transfer credits of "C" or better
may be added to the student's SUSLA record at the request of the student.

Non-traditional credits (military credit, Life Experience Credit, CLEF exams) that have been
granted by another accredited institution of higher education may be added by the Registrar's
Office upon receipt of official transcript/exam results.

Tra11.rfer .vtudenls tran.rcrl_pt.v wlll be logged Into the st11de111 ;,,formation s_yslem hy the C,mter Jo,·
Studem Sut:cess who will be responsible for articu/atlng cmdposting credits and thereqfter used
by Departme111al ac11l1J!. or Cenler for Stmfe111 S11ccess to regl:rter .vtudents or classes.

· Readmit transfer students transcripts will be logged into the student information system by the
Office of the Registrar. (See readmit policy for more information)

Transfer Articulation
• Transfer students may opt to include/exclude transfer coursework towards their degree at

SUSLA at the time of admission. The student will complete a transfer articulation
agreement which indicates their desire to include/exclude transfer coursework. Students
who opt to include transfer coursework may have all, or none of the transfer credits
articulated in accordance with SUSLA 's transfer articulation policy.

• Option to Include Trans/el' Coul'sework

-21Page

o Transfer students will apply to the university and submit required admission
documents and transcripts only if they are seeking transfer credit to be articulated.

o At the time of admission the transfer student must complete the "Transfer Credit
Request Form" indicating their preference to include transfer coursework in
accordance with SUSLA 's transfer articulation policy.



o Students who opt to include transfer coursework will have all credits reviewed for
articulation. SUSLA 's transfer articulation policy will dictate which courses are
recorded.

o Only courses with grades of "C" or are applicable toward your selected degree
certificate program will be considered for transfer.

o A degree plan will be developed/or the transfer student by the departmental advisor
(designee) or Success Coach in the Center for Student Success.

• Opt/011 to E.tc/11de Tranefer Co11rsework
o lf u .ft11tle11t opts to exdude prev/011.\'l.1• ,mrne,I credits earned 111 11nt11l1er

l11st/l11tlo11, tl,e adml.rs/011s 1•eq_11iremellls will 11ot include trtmscripls fi,r
uccep_ta11ce.

Louisiana 2-yr/4-y1· Institutions: 
• Use the Board of Regents Transfer Articulation Matrices for general education course

equivalencies
• If no course equivalency exists, or if equivalency cannot be determined using course

description, consult with academic department to establish course
equivalencieslsubstitutions. The Departmental Dean (designee) or Center for Student
Success will build the equivalency/substitution in the student information system.

Out.of-state Institutions: 
• Use transfer institution(s) course catalog already built in the student ieformation system.
• Jjthe catalog is not built, or if equivalency cannot be determined using course description, 

consult with the Departmental Dean (designee) to establish course 
equivalencies/substitutions. 

Students admitted who opt to include transfer coursework can view their transfer articulation on 
their student information system via Banner Web. Students who have not been admitted but desire 
a transfer equivalency worksheet can download a copy at www.susla.edu. 

VI. POLICY RELATED INFORMATION

Not applicable 

VII. POLICY HISTORY AND REVIEW CYCLE

This is an existing policy. The effective date of this policy is September 1, 2018. 

VIII. POLICY URL

http://www.susla.edu/page/transfer 

3IPage 



IX. POLICY APPROVAL

Rodney A. Ellis, Ed.D. Effective Date of Policy 
Chancellor, Southern University at Shreveport 

. Ray L. Belton, Ph.D. Effective Date of Policy 
President-Chancellor, Southern University and A&M College System 

The Honorable Mr. Domoine D. Rutledge Effective Date of Policy 
Chair - Southern University System Board of Supervisors 

41Page 



Dr. Rodney A, Ellis 

Chancellor 

May 3, 2019 

Ray L. Belton, Ph.D. 
President-Chancellor 
Southern University System 

Office OJ The Chancellor 

4th Floor, J.S. Clark Administration Building
Baton Rouge, LA 70813 

RE: Southe.rn University at Shreveport Re-Admission Requirements For Former Students 

Dr. Belton: 

This communication is to request approval for the Re-Admission Requirements ·For Former Students

Polley. There are three (3) copies of the policy enclosed for your review. 

They are as follows: 

1. Copy 1 is the current policy being by the University

2. Copy 2 is the New Policy.

3. Copy 3 is the New Policy with highlights to show the changes from current to new.

The policy Is attached. I am submitting this policy for your approval as well as the Southern University 
System Board of Supervisors. 

Thank you in advance for your kind consideration. 

Respectfully submitted, 

�✓-� � rEIHs, Ed.D.
Chancellor 

RAE/lw 
Attachment 

3050 MAAYIN LUTHER KING, JR, DRIVE,• SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA 71107 
PHONE: {318) 670-9312 • FAX (318) 67o-6374 

TOLL FREE: 1-800-458-1472, Exr 6312 
WWW.SUSLA.EDU 

Southern University at Shreveport does not drsctiminate on tho basis of rac:e, color, national ortgln, sender, age or disability. lfllo IX Coordinator: Ms. llllsha T. Bryant, Adrnlrllstrat!on Bl1ildlnc, Room A--43, 
(318) 670-9210. Section 504 Coordinator: Ms. Jerushka Ellls, Fine Arts Burldlnc, Roo111 C04 0, (318) 670-9473 



CT lC'T .A 
uVIJ ... �

POI..I(;Y SIJBMI'rt,ED 

RE-ADMISSIONS REQUIREENTS FOR FORMER STUDENTS. 

� DESC;IIIP1'10N OJ? COPY. 

Cu1Tent Poli� 



Former student 

A former student who was not In attendance the semester prior to the one for which 
he/she wishes to be enrolled Is required to submit an appl/catlon for admission. A
student readmitted will return to the same academic status, unless he/she has earned 
additional college credits to alter his/her status. Any former student who has attended 
another college after leaving Southern University at Shreveport will be required to provide 
an official transcript from that college. Students returning after academic suspension will 
be allowed to register in twelve (12) semester hours only. 

FORMER STUDENTS 

1.APPLICATION. Each applicant is required to complete an online application for
admission for the desired semester. The application can be found at the institution's
website(www.susla.edu).

2.TRANSCRIPTS. Former students who have attended another college after leaving
SUSLA will be required to submit an official transcript from that college. College
transcripts are considered official when the original transcript is issued to Southern
University at Shreveport Admissions or Registrar's Office via mail or approved electronic
transmission.

· 3.IMMUNIZATION RECORD. Each person entering the university shall provide
satisfactory evidence of immunity to or immunization against vaccine-preventable
diseases to include but not be limited to measles, mumps, rubella, tetanus/diphtheria, and
meningitis. This policy applies to all students entering the institution for the first time and
all students returning after an absence of one semester or more. Under circumstances

· where the immunization records cannot be readily obtained, the student may sign an
immunization waiver. In the event of an outbreak of a vaccine-preventable disease,
students without immunization records will be exclude from the premises until the
appropriate disease incubation period has expired or the unimmunized person presents

. evidence of immunization. 

4.APPLICATION FEE. A non-refundable application fee of $20.00 is required of ALL
applicants to process the application for admission. The application fee can be paid
online when submitting the application or it can be mailed in the form of a money order or

. cashier's check to: SUSLA Admissions Office, 3050 Martin Luther King Jr. Drive, 
Shreveport, LA71107. Applicants can also call the university Cashier to make a credit 
card payment over the phone. 

2015-2017 University Catalog, pages 2 & 4 

· http://www.susla.edu/assets/susla/documents/academics/CurrentCatalog/2015 Catalog
UniversityAdmissions.pdf



POLI(;Y SIJBMl.'"ITED 

RE-ADMISSIONS REQUIREENTS FOR FORMER STUDENTS 

-.. DES�llll.,.DON OE (;OPY 

Ne,v Polic 



lµ(r/kitt't' • lnl,•gftl)' Att'ountabl/lty • Se,.,,lca • J)�rslly 

POLICY TITLE 

Re-Admi$sions Requirement$ for Form�r Students 

POLICY NUMBER 

ResponsibJe·tUnit: 
9.f/if1�:•pJ,k1.dmt{�ton)··tti1d:RcQ.>i111fij,1e11t 

TSO 

��,jtonsiti1e �fficiql: 
t'1tc.e.,Chandeilo,'.]di.t,Stu.fl?nl -A}Jdfrs,ancfltnr:ollme.nt Sc:.l;v.f¢� 

Pollet ,Closslfica(ion:, 

I. POLICY STATEMENT AND RATIONALE

Efr�ctive :Oitc: 
TDD 

tasf:nJH�w.c.� �)ate; 

�rig_ination Dnte}. 

Whenever there is a gap in a student's attendance, regardless of the reason, the student must 
complete an application for re-admission. Former students returning after missing two 
consecutive semesters of non-attendance, two consecutive semesters fall and summer (excluding 
the summer term), are required to submit an application for readmission. The intent of this policy 
is to allow students who have not enrolled for a semester, the ability to continue their studies 
without having to re-apply, unless their period of absence exceeds two consecutive semesters fall 

· and summer (excluding the summer term).

II. POLICY SCOPE AND AUDIBNCE

These procedures are applicable to all former SUSLA student. 

111. POLICY COMPLIANCE

It will be the responsibility of the Office of Admissions to verify student eligibility for readmissions, 
if the non-enrollment periods exceeds a year. If the student's absence exceeds a year, two 
consecutive semesters fall and summer (excluding the summer term) and they attempt to register, 
they will be referred to the admissions office to re-apply for admissions. 

llPage 



POLICY DEFINITION 

Definition: Former Student

Aformer student who was not in attendance the semester prior to the one for which he/she 
wishes to be enrolled is not required to submit an application for admission. A student readmitted 
will return to the same academic status, unless he/she has earned additional college credits 
to alter his/her status. Any former student who has attended another college after leaving 

Southern University at Shreveport will be required to provide an official transcript from that 
College if they wish to receive credit from the previous institution. (See requirements for transfer 
students) 

IV. POLICY IMPLEMENTATION PROCEDURES

. Procedures: 

Former students who have applied for admission, submitted required college transcripts if 
applicable, paid appropriate application fee, and satisfied immunization requirements (shot 
records or waiver) will be granted acceptance to SUSLA. 

· Eligibility for readmission depends on individual circumstances and the requirements of the
specific academic program. Readmission in limited-enrollment programs is offered on a space
available basis. Readmitted students must complete the admission requirements and the program's
graduation requirements effective at the time of readmission.

V. POLICY RELATED INFORMATION

Not applicable 

VI. POLICY HISTORY AND REVIEW CYCLE

This is an existing policy under the 2015 online academic catalog. 

VII. POLICY URL

http://www.susla.edu/assets/susla/documents/academics/Cw·rentCatalog/2015 Catalog Univers 
ityAdmissions.pd[ 

. .

21Page 



VIII. POLICY APPROVAL

This section identifies the appropriate approval official(s). 

�� 

Rodney A. Ellis, Ed.D. Effective Date of Policy 
Chancellor, Southern University at Shreveport 

Ray L. Be/to 11, Ph.D. Effective Date of Policy 
· President-Chancellor, Southern University and A&M College System

The Honorable Mr. Domoi11e D. Rutledge Effective Date of Policy 
Chair - Southern University System Board of Supervisors 

3[Page 

j 



cr. TCJ 1A 
uV�Li �

- POLJ(;Y ·s·.uoMITrED

RE-ADMISSIONS REQUIREEN
T

S FOR FORMER STUDENTS 

-. DES�llll-TION OJi' UOPY 

Ne,v Policy ,vith Markings Highlighted 

) 

I 



{,,..,
1: ···, .. 7Fr,;1·· �-

�:�w · - :1,� : 

,, 
Excellem:e /nfi:J:rlty Act'011ntabl/1ry • li6n'K" Viwr..-Jty 

POLICY TITLE 
Re-Admissions Requirements for Former Students 

POLICY NUMBER 
TBD 

Re-Sp.911�Jl)le U11ft:· 
Ofilc,e qf ?1-d.1ilisr�1>t,� mfd R,��r1iii111c,ii 

R�p·on�i6ic. Oifi�li'tJ: 
Vice Chancellor far .�h1de11J·.A,/J'blrs 'Cmd Enrollment Services 

Poll��: .�1�ssilicJiiio1f: 

I. POLICY STATEMENT AND RATIONALE

Effective D{lte: 
TBD 

·Lnst Reviewed Date:

Whenever there is a gap in a student's attendance, regardless of the reason, the student must 
complete an application for re-admission. Former students returning after missing two 
consecutive semesters of non-attendance, two L'Ofl.\'OC1ttiw ,\'<Wlt'.\'ter,\' fall n11d ,\'1t111111er (exd,uling 
1/1e summer term). are required to submit an ap12lication for readmission. Hie inrem ,fthu policy 
is to al/rm ,\'l11de11ts who hove Iw1 c111•0//11dfi>r tJ .nww.vter, the ability to t'o11ti1111e /heir studit> 
1111tlm11/ lumnx /11 r,:-apply, unless their period nlnhsence exceeds two c:011scc11tlve .wmwJl,tr,\ let/A 
m11l .r11111m11r (cxd11di11g the su111111ctr /el'm) 

II. POLICY SCOPE AND AUDIENCE
These procedures are applicable to all forme: SUSLA student. 

III. POLICY COMPLIANCE
It will be the responsibility of the Office of Admissions to verify student eligibility for readmissions, 
if the non-enrollment periods exceeds a year. If the student's absence exceeds a year, two 
t'.011sec11tivl' semestersJnll c,11d s1m11111.•r (excluding tlw s11111mc>r term) and they attempt to register,
they will be referred to the admissions office to re-apply for admissions . 

•.. 

llPage 



POLICY DEFINITION 

Definition: Former Student

A former student who was not in attendance the semester prior to the one for which he/she 
wishes to be enrolled is not required to submit an application for admission. A student readmitted 
will return to the same academic status, unless he/she has earned additional college credits 
to alter his/her status. Any former student who has attended another college after leaving 
Southern University at Shreveport will be required to provide an official transcript from that 
College if they wish to receive credit from the previous institution. (See requirements for transfer 

students) 

IV. POLICY IMPLEMENTATION PROCEDURES

Procedures: 

Former students who have applied for admission, submitted required college transcripts if 

applicable, paid appropriate application fee, and satisfied immunization requirements (shot 
records or waive;:) will be granted acceptance to SUSLA. 

Eligibility for readmission depends on individual circumstances and the requirements of the 
specific academic program. Readmission in limited-enrollment programs is offered on a space
available basis. Readmitted students must complete the admission requirements and the program's 
graduation requirements effective at the time of readmission. 

V. POLICY RELATED INFORMATION

Not applicable 

VI. POLICY lliSTORY AND REVIEW CYCLE

This is an existing policy under the 2015 online academic catalog. 

VII. POLICY URL

http:llwww.susla.edu/assets/suslaldocuments/academics/CurrentCatalogl2015 Catalog Univers 

ityAdmiss ions. pd(. 

2IPage 



VIII. POLICY APPROVAL

This section identifies the appropriate approval official(s). 

�� 

Rodney A. Ellis, Ed.D. Effective Date of Policy 
Chancellor, Southern University at Shreveport 

Ray L. Belton, Ph.D. Effective Date of Policy 
President-Chancel/or, Southern University and A&M College System 

The Honorable Mr. Domoine D. Rutledge Effective Date of Policy 

Chair - Southern University System Board of Supervisors 

3jPage 



AND AGRICULTURAi. & MECHANICAL COLLEGE

May 13, 2019 

Dr. Ray L. Belton, 
President- Chancellor 
Southem University System 
4th Floor, JS Clark Administration Building 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813 

Dr. James H. Ammons, 
Executive Vice-President & Vice Chancellor 
Southern University System 
3'd Floor, JS Clark Administration Building 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813 

RE: New Admission Policies 

Dear Dr. Belton & Dr. Atmnons, 

I hope all is well. I am requesting that the board review policies to assist with the recruitment 
and emollment of students on the Southem University and Agricultural & Mechanical College 
Baton Rouge campus. The policies are as follows: 

I. Policy on Admission for Out of State Students
2. Policy on First Time Out of State Fee Scholarship
3. Policy on Transfer Student Out of State Fee Scholarship

The new policy on out of state students will allow us to enl1ance our recruitment of out of state 
students to the Baton Rouge campus, while the policy on out of state fee waivers will expand the 
availability of the out of state fee waiver to more new and transfer students so that we can remain 
competitive with similar institutions, 



SOUTHER 
UNIV RSITY 

AND AGRICULTURAL & MECHANICAL COLLEGE 

POLICY TITLE 

First-Time, First-Year Out-of-State Fee Scholarship 

Responsible Unit: 
Enrollment Management 

Responsible Official: 

POLICY NUMBER 

2-001

Associate Vice-Chancellor for Enrollment Management 

Policy Classification: 
Enrollment Management - Admission & Recruitment 

I. POLICY STATEMENT AND RATIONALE

Effective Date: 

Last Reviewed Date: 
May 9, 2019 

Origination Date: 
May 9, 2019 

The Out-of-State Fee Scholarship Policy establishes criteria for the out-of-state fee waiver 

scholarship. Effective Spring 2019, we are proposing a Policy for Out-of-State Students Fee 

Waiver Scholarship that includes the following criteria. Applicants must: 

• Satisfy the admission requirements;
• Have a 2.5 cumulative grade point average to be considered;
• Complete and submit a Free Application for Federal Student Aid (F AFSA) for need

assessment;
• Complete the out-of-state fee waiver application after being admitted to the university,

and submit it with required documents; and
• First-time, First-Years must have and maintain a minimum of 15 credit hours each

semester and maintain a cumulative GPA of 2.50, to be evaluated at the end of each

spring semester.

To support out of state enrollment, we are proposing a change to the current policy which requires 

a 2.7 cumulative grade point average and a 20 ACT composite score, in addition to meeting 

minimum guidelines for admission. Our Louisiana and Texas HBCU competitors only require a 

2.5 cumulative grade point average for receipt of the out of state fee waiver once admitted. 

II. POLICY SCOPE AND AUDIENCE

This policy applies to the Vice-Chancellor for Student Affairs & Enrollment Management, Office 

of Admission & Recruitment, Office of the Registrar, and Office of the Bursar in the review and 

application of out of state fee waiver scholarships to the Baton Rouge campus. 

llPage 



III. POLICY COMPLIANCE

The Office of Admission & Recruitment will be responsible for reviewing all applicable candidate 

applications to ensure compliance with the policy in awarding scholarships. The Office of the 

Vice-Chancellor for Student Affairs & Enrollment Management will be responsible for reviewing 

all appeals for receipt of the out of state fee waiver scholarships to ensure compliance with the 

policy guidelines. 

IV. POLICY DEFINITIONS

The following are te1ms used in the policy: 

Fee Waiver 

A fee waiver is a waiver or removal of a university out of state fees. 

Scholarship 

A grant or payment made to suppo11 a student's education, awarded on the basis of academic or 

other achievement. 

V. POLICY IMPLEMENTATION PROCEDURES

Upon approval by the Board of Supervisors, the Admission & Recruitment will review all eligible 

out of state student applications and apply to eligible student financial aid and student accounts. 

VI. POLICY RELATED INFORMATION

We are responding to the cunent Southern University and Agricultural & Mechanical College 

policy on out of state fees which limits our ability to compete with our Louisiana and Texas HBCU 

competitors who only require a 2.5 cumulative grade point average for receipt of the University's 

out of state fee waiver once admitted. 

VII. POLICY HISTORY AND REVIEW CYCLE

This is a new policy designed to replace the Legacy scholarship created in 2015. The review cycle 

will be consistent with the system five-year review cycle. 

VIII. POLICY URL

This section identifies the Southern University System website where the system policies are 

archived at www.subr.edu. 

IX. POLICY APPROVAL

Ray L. Belton, Ph.D. Effective Date of Policy 
President-Chancellor, Southern University and A&M College System 

The Honorable Domoine D. Rutledge, Esq., Effective Date of Policy 

Chairman, Southern University System Board of Szpervisors 

21Page 



AND AGRICULTURAL & MECHANICAL COLLEGE _.. 

POLICY .TITLE 

Transfer Out-of-State Fee Scholarship ,:'� 

POLICY NUMBER 

2-002

·· . •  •. ,.. . . . ·· 

. . . --�· . �·
. : . . 

Responsible Unit: Effective Date: 
Emollment Management 

Last Reviewed Date: 
�ay 9, 2019 Responsible Official: 

Associate Vice-Chancellor for Emollment Management 

Policy Classification: Origination Date: 
Emollment Management - Admission & Recruitment May 9, 2019 

I. POLICY STATEMENT AND RATIONALE
The Transfer Out-of-State Fee Scholarship Policy establishes criteria for the out of state fee waiver 
scholarship. Effective Spring 2019, we are proposing a Policy for Transfer Out-of-State Students 
Fee Waiver Scholarship that includes the following: 

• 

. Satisfy the admission requirements. 
Have a 2.5 cumulative grade point average to be considered . 
Complete and submit a Free Application for Federal Student Aid (F AFSA) for need 
assessment. 
Complete the out-of-state fee waiver application after being admitted to the university., 
and submit it with required documents. 
Have and maintain a minimum of 15 credit hours each semester and maintain a 
cumulative GPA of 2.50, to be evaluated at the end of each spring semester; and 
Transfer _students with an Associate Degree must have a "C" or better in both College 
English and Math. 

There is currently no policy on the out of state fee waiver for transfer students. This policy will 
bring resolution to parents and transfer students who want to attend Southern University Baton 
Rouge. 

II. POLICY SCOPE AND AUDIENCE
This policy applies to the Vice-Chancellor for Student Affairs & Emollment Management, Office 
of Admission & Recruitment, Office of the Registrar, and Office of the Bursar in the review and 
application of out of state fee waiver scholarships to the Baton Rouge campus. 

llPage 



III. POLICY COMPLIANCE

The Office of Admission & Recruitment will be responsible for reviewing all applicable candidate 
applications to ensure compliance with the policy in awarding scholarships. The Office of the 
Vice-Chancellor for Student Affairs & Emollment Management will be responsible for reviewing 
all appeals for receipt of the out of state fee waiver scholarships to ensure compliance with the 
policy guidelines. 

IV. POLICY DEFINITIONS

The following are terms used in the policy: 

Transfer Student 

A transfer student is anyone who has attended another college or university after graduating from high 
school and wishes to enroll in an undergraduate degree program at Southern University Baton Roug� 
campus. 

Fee Waiver 

A fee waiver is a waiver or removal of a university out of state fees. 

Scholarship 

A grant or payment made to support a student's education, awarded on the basis of academic or 
other achievement. 

V. POLICY IMPLEMENTATION PROCEDURES

Upon approval by the Board of Supervisors, the Admission & Recruitment will review all eligible 
out of state student applications and apply to eligible student financial aid and student accounts. 

VI. POLICY RELATED INFORMATION

We are responding to the current President's Legacy Scholarship which establishes the policy and 
process for out of state fee waivers, but does not provide guidance for transfer out of state students 
with regard to the fee waiver. 

VII. POLICY HISTORY AND REVIEW CYCLE

This is a new policy designed to replace the Legacy scholarship created in 2015. The review cycle 
will be consistent with the system five-year review cycle. 

VIII. POLICY URL

This section identifies the Southern University System website where the system policies are 
archived at www.subr.edu. 

IX. POLICY APPROVAL

Ray L. Belton, Ph.D. Effective Date of Policy 

President-Chancellor, Southern University and A&M College System 

The Honorable Domoine D. Rutledge, Esq., Effective Date of Policy 

Chairman, Southern University System Board of Supervisors 

21Page 



AND AGRICULTURAL & MECHANICAL COLLEGE 

Responsible Unit: 
Enrollment Management 

Responsible Official: 

POLICY TITLE 

Out of State Admission Policy 

POLICY NUMBER 

2-003

Associate Vice-Chancellor for Enrollment Management 

Policy Classification: 
Enrollment Management - Admission & Recruitment 

I. POLICY STATEMENT AND RATIONALE

Effective Date: 

Last Reviewed Date: 
May 9, 2019 

Origination Date: 
May 9, 2019 

Prior to February 25, 2019 the admission policy for out of state students was an 18 English, 19 

Math and 20 Composite, and 17 of the 19 units to be considered core. If they took the SAT they 

needed a 510 Math, 500 in evidenced based Reading and Writing and a 1030 Composite. After 

February 25, 2019, out of state students must either meet core requirements, with the same test 

scores, or have a 23 composite or an 1130 SAT. 

The Out of State Admission Policy establishes guidelines for out of state student admission. 

Effective Spring 2019, we are proposing a Admissions Policy for Out-of-State Students that 

includes the following: 

1. Minimum high school GPA of2.0 on a 4.0 scale;

2. Students whose state has different core requirements from Louisiana must meet 14 out the 19

core cuniculum courses;

3. Minimum ACT English Score of 18 OR Math Score of 19 AND ACT Composite Score of

20;and

4. Minimum SAT Evidence-Based Reading/Writing Score of 500 OR Math Score of 510 AND

SAT Composite Score of 1030.

This policy will address the students who met the criteria that existed prior to February 25, 2019 

by providing admission to the Baton Rouge campus, while also enhancing our overall enrollment 

goals. 

II. POLICY SCOPE AND AUDIENCE

This policy applies to the Office of Admission & Recruitment in the review of out of state 

applications for admission to the Baton Rouge campus. 

11Page 



III. POLICY COMPLIANCE

The Office of Admission & Recruitment will be responsible for reviewing all out of state 

applications to ensure compliance with the policy. 

IV. POLICY DEFINITIONS

The following are te1ms used in the policy: 

Admission 

The process or fact of entering or being allowed to enter a place, organization, or institution. 

Core Requirements 

Louisiana cmriculum requirements include 19 units that include the following: 

4 English 

4Math 

4 Social studies 

4 Science 

2 Foreign Language 

1 Arts 

V. POLICY IMPLEMENTATION PROCEDURES

The Office of Admission & Recruitment staff will review all out of state admission applications 

to determine if students meet the policy. Students who meet the criteria will receive an admission 

letter that outlines their admission to the Southern University Baton Rouge campus. 

VI. POLICY RELATED INFORMATION

http://www.subr.edu/assets/subr/ AdmissionRecruitment/ Admissions-Requirements-2019. pdf 

VII. POLICY HISTORY AND REVIEW CYCLE

This is a new policy. The review cycle will be consistent with the system five-year review cycle. 

VIII. POLICY URL

This section identifies the Southern University System website where the system policies are 

archived at www.subr.edu. 

IX. POLICY APPROVAL

Ray L. Belton, Ph.D. Effective Date of Policy 

President-Chancellor, Southern University and A&M College System 

The Honorable Domoine D. Rutledge, Esq., Effective Date of Policy 

Chairman, Southern University System Board of Supervisors 

21Page 



OFFICE OF THE CHANCELLOR 

(225) 771-2552 

FAX (225) 771-2474 

Dr. Ray Belton 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LAW CENTER 

261 A. A. LENOIR HALL 

POST OFFICE Box 9294 

BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA 70813-9294 

May 8, 2019 

System President and Chancellor 
Southern University System 
J. S. Clark Administration Bldg., 4th Floor 
Baton Rouge, LA 70813 

RE: Early Law School Admissions Policy for students who are not undergraduate 
students matriculating at the Southern University Baton Rouge Campus 

Dear Dr. Belton: 

The Southern University Law Center (SULC) has, pursuant to the approval of the Southern 
University Board of Supervisors, an early law school admissions policy for students who seek admission 
into SULC prior to completing their undergraduate degrees. After a review of ABA accreditation standards 
and recent admissions standards and policies adopted by other U.S. law schools, it makes sense that SULC 
adopt a broader early admissions policy that allows for the admission of undergraduate students 
matriculating at other institutions than the Southern University Baton Rouge campus. 

The proposed policy would allow an undergraduate student that had completed successfully a 
minimum of 75% of the curriculum needed to graduate with a undergraduate bachelor's degree in their 
discipline from a regionally accredited U.S. college or university to be eligible for admission into SULC, 
as long as that student achieved a minimum LSAT score of 150 and had earned an undergraduate grade 
point average of 3.0 or above. I believe that Board approval for SULC to adopt such a policy for early 
admission for undergraduate students who have not matriculated at the Southern University Baton Rouge 
campus would insure that SULC remains competitive with other U.S. law schools that have adopted similar 
early admissions policies. 

I respectfully ask that this request be presented to the Southern University Board of 

Supervisors for review and approval at its May 2019 Board meeting. If you have any questions, 

please feel free to contact me. 

Yours since
f. 

f � 

ohn K. Pierre, Chancellor & 

anue B. Lacour Endowed Law Professor 

"An Equal Educational Opportunity Institution" 













Personnel Affairs 

Committee 



PERSONNEL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 
(Following the Governance Committee) 

J.S. Clark Administration Building- 2nd Floor 
Board of Supervisors Meeting Room 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
Thursday, May 23, 2019 

 
AGENDA 

 

1. Call to Order 
 

2. Roll Call 
 

3. Adoption of the Agenda 
 

4. Public Comments 
 

5. Action Items 
A. Request Approval of Personnel Action on Positions equal to or greater than $60,000/$75,000 

(faculty) 

 
 

Name Position/Campus Salary Funding Source 

1. Deleso A. Alford Professor 
Law Center- Instruction 
Tenure Track/Promotion 

(SULC) 

$121,000.00 State 

2. Adam Crepelle Associate Professor 
Law-Center-Instruction 
Tenure Track/Promotion 

(SULC) 

$100,000.00 State 

3. Koshaneke Gilbert Associate Director of Career Services 
Salary Adjustment/Additional Duties 

(SULC) 

$78,000.00 State 

4. Robert B. Harrison Director of Development 
New Hire/Replacement 

(SUS/SUBR) 

$90,000.00 State 

5. Justin James Interim Vice-Chancellor for Admin & Finance 
New Hire 
(SUNO) 

$93,600.00 State 

6. Mary W. Johnson Executive Assistant 
Salary Adjustment/Additional Duties 

(SULC) 

$84,000.00 State 

7. Michael D. Oeser Associate Professor 
Law Center-Instruction 
Tenure Track/Promotion 

(SULC) 

$103,500.00 State 

8. Cynthia Reed Associate Professor/Director of CLE 
Tenure Track/Promotion/Additional Duties 

(SULC) 

$103,500.00 State 



Page 2 

Personnel Affairs Agenda May 2019 
 
 
 

Name Position/Campus Salary Funding Source 

9. Mark L. Roark Associate Professor Law Center-Instruction Tenure 
Track/Promotion 

(SULC) 

$108,000.00 State 

10. Kenya J.H. Smith Associate Professor Law Center-Instruction Tenure 
Track/Promotion 

(SULC) 

$103,500.00 State 

11. Robbin Thomas Director of Alumni Affairs and Annual Fund Coordinator 
New Position/Salary Adjustment 

(SULC) 

$78,000.00 State 

 
 

B. Request Approval of Leaves of Absence Greater than three months 
1. Mark Thurman 2-year Unpaid Leave of Absence and Sabbatical (SULC) 

 
6. Other Business 

 
7. Adjournment 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MEMBERS 
Atty. Patrick Magee-Chair, Mr. John Barthelemy-Vice Chair, 

Dr. Curman L. Gaines, Mr. Sam Gilliam, Dr. Leon R. Tarver II, Ms. Arlanda Williams  
Atty. Domoine D. Rutledge- Ex Officio 



OFFICE OF THE CHANCELLOR 

(225) 771-2552

FAX (225) 771-2474 

Dr. Ray Belton 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LAW CENTER 

261 A. A. LENOIR HALL 

POST OFFICE Box 9294 

BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA 70813-9294 

May 1, 2019 

System President and Chancellor 
Southern University System 
J. S. Clark Administration Bldg., 4th Floor 
Baton Rouge, LA 70813 

RE: Appointment of Tenure-Track Professors for the 2019-2020 Academic Year 

Dear Dr. Belton: 

The Faculty Appointments, Retention, Promotion and Tenure (F ARPT) Committee met for 
several months to review the credentials of 90 candidates seeking tenure track faculty positions at 
the Southern University Law Center. Based upon their review they submitted fifteen candidates 
for me to review and consider for six tenure track faculty positions. 

Based upon my review, I am recommending that Deleso Alford, Kenya J. H. Smith, Marc 
Roark, Cynthia Reed, Michael Oeser and Adam Crepelle be appointed to tenure track positions. 
Kenya Smith, Deleso Alford,_ Marc Roark, and Adam Crepelle served as visiting professors at the 
Southern University Law Center during the 2018-2019 academic year. Cynthia Reed currently 
serves as the Director of Continuing Legal Education and Alumni Affairs, and has taught doctrinal 
courses at the Southern University Law Center. Michael Oeser currently serves as a Senior Tribal 
Counsel for the Ho-Chunk Tribal Nation Department of Justice and has had significant law school 
teaching experience. 

Five of the six candidates are Louisiana licensed attorneys with either significant 
professional experience, and/or a record of scholarly research and publications. The credentials 
of each candidate is attached to this letter. The proposed 9 month salary for Alford is $121,000 
and the proposed 9 month salary for Marc Roark is $108,000. The proposed 9 month salary for 
Reed, Smith and Oeser is $103,500. The proposed 9 month salary for Crepelle is $100,000. The 
proposed faculty rank for each candidate is associate professor. 

"An Equal Educational Opportunity Institution" 



Dr. Ray Belton 
May 1, 2019 
Page -2-

I respectfully request that the aforementioned recommendations be presented to the 
Southern University Board of Supervisors at the May, 2019 board meeting for approval. If you 
have any questions, please contact me. 

K. Pierre, Chancellor &
ue B. Lacour Endowed Professor 

Attachments 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LA w CENTER 



JOBCLASS3 8
SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM 

JOB CODE F 
CALID 

M 

Personnel Action Forml r �-0-�-I-TI-�-:--,-1-•1-�1 -,-1-,1.--.-1 �,
CAMPUS, SUS SUHR SULAC2'_ SUAREC SUNO SUSLA 

EMPLOYMENT CATEGORY: 

_L Academic 
__ Temporary 

Tenured 
l__ Tenured Track
__ Other (Specify)

9-MONTH X 12-MONTH __ OTHER __ (Specify)

___ Non-Academic 
___ Part-time { � of Full Time) 
___ Undergraduate Student 

Graduate Assistant 
Retiree Return To Work 

Civil Service 
Restricted 

___ Job Appointment 
___ Probationary 

Permanent Status 

Previous Employee ....:;N"IA�-------------- Reason Left 
Salary Paid 

NIA 

Date Left NIA 

Profile of Person Recommended 

NIA 

Length of Employment 08/01/2019 To _,o,,s/Je2112""'02e,0c_ ________ _ 
Effective Date _,0"'8'-'I0c,112=0"'19,_ ____________ _ 

Name Deleso A. Alford SS# XXX-XX-2474 Sex _ _,F'-- Race* __ B_ 
(Last4 digits only) 

Position Title: _,P�r�o�f"=•�•�r ______________ Department: Law Center- Instruction 

Check One __ Existing Position *Visa Type (See Reverse Side):

X New Position Expfration Date: ______ _ 
(Position vacaeey authorization form must be proceued and approved to fill 
ell!ting and new positions. Posltlon must be advertised before procuslng PAF, If 
applicable.) 

Years Experience _...12.__������------ Southern University Experience
Oegree(s): Type/Discipline (BA-Education): Institution/Location (SU-Baton Rouge): 

D.S. Southern University A&M College, BR., LA 
J.D. Southern University Law Center 
Master ofLaws(L.L.M.) Georgetown University Law Center 

Current Employer Southern University Law Center 

Personnel Action 

Year: 
1987 
1990 
2002 

Check One ___.x_ New Appointment 
Transfer 

Continuation Sabbatical Leave of Absence 
__ Replacement __ Other (Specify) 

Recommended Salary _S"-"12::,lo;De,0e,0 ______ _ Salary Budgeted $121,000 

Source of Funds General Appropriation 

Identify Budg�t: State Location 311001-32020-61003-31000 
Form Code: BORIO 

Change of: 

Position 
Status 
Salary Adjustment 

Visiting Professor 

Financial Ai 
List total funds currently paid this employee by 
Southern University: 
*See Reverse Side

II Comments: (Use back of form) 

Page ...,_1 ___ _ 

Professor 

d sifrnature (if. aprilicable): 
Source of Funds 
311001-32020-61003-31000 

*See Reverse Side Graduate School signature (if, applicable): 

Dean/Unit Dead 
'7 

Item# --"1 ______ _ 

Amount 
$121000.00 

Date 

President Date Chairman/S.U. Board of Supervisors Date 



This information is requested solely for the purpose of determining compliance with Federal Civil Rights 
Laws and does not affect employment consideration. 

ETHNIC ORGIN (Please check one): 
___ Hispanic or Latino ______ Non-Hispanic or Non-Latino 

RACE (Please check all that apply): 
__ White, not of Hispanic origin. A person having origins in any of the original people of Europe, North Africa, or the Middle East. 

_X __ Black. not of Hispanic Origin. A person having origins in any of the Black racial groups of Africa. 

Hispanic. A person of Mexican, Puerto Ricim, Cuban, Central or South American, or other Spanish culture or origins, 
regardless of race. 

Asian or Pacific Islander. A person having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far Ea$t, Southeast Asia, the Indian 
___ Subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands. This area includes, for example, China, Japan, Korea, the Philippine Islands, and Samoa. 

American Indian or Alaskan Native. A person having origins in any of the original peoples of North American, and who 
___ maintains cultural identification through tribal affiliation or community recognition. 

COMMENTS: 
Deleso Alford served as a visiting professor at Southern University Law Center during the 2018-2019 academic year. The 
Faculty Appointments, Retention, Promotion and Tenure (FARPT) Committee at SULC has recommended that 
Deleso Alford be appointed to the professor tenure tract position at SULC for the 2019-2020 academic year. 

EMPLOYEE REGULAR WORK SCHEDULE: Dail 
EMPLOYEE DIRECT SUPERVISOR: V/C Roderick White 
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES SUPERVISED, (if any) 120 

HR USE ONLY: STATUS (circle one): EXEMPT NON-EXEMPT 

GUIDELINES: All employees, stndents, graduate assistants being employed through the use of this form 
are to report to and be cleared by the Human Resources before any employment is offered and before 
starting to work. All students are to bring with them clearance from the Financial Aid office, Statement 
of Account (fee receipt), and a class schedule. All prospective employees/students must bring a pictured 
ID, social security card, birth certificate, certificate of naturalization, resident alien card, Hl-B and J-1 
visas, passport, and F-l/l-94. The latter six (6) documents do not apply to U.S. Citizens. 

·oOcumentation must be provided for review and approval by Human Resources before employment is 
offered.

CLASS OF EMPLOYMENT /VISA STATUS}: ------------Ag 

United States Citizen/Certificate ofNaturalization 
Resident Alien 
H-1 Visa (Distinguished Merit & Ability)
J-1 Visa (Exchange Visitor Program)
F-1 Visa (Student Emp. FT Student at S.U.)
OPT (F-1 Visa-INS Prior Approval-"Practical Work Experience")

Do Not Write Below This Area 

For Human Resource and Budgetary Control Use Only! 

P AF APPROVAL PROCESS CHECKLIST (Must have the infonnation outlined below): 
___ Approved Position Vacancy Authorization Form (applicable for new and replacement positions) 

Position Vacancy Announcement (position advertised before processing P AF, if applicable) 
Application for Employment Fonn Admin/Fac/Uncl Positions(Civil Service Application for classified employees) 
Authority to Release (signed by employee) (submitted to Campus Police with Criminal/Background Check fonn) 

== Supervisory Criminal/Background Check Form (completed by employee/ verified and signed by supervisor) 
___ Exemptions Survey Form (signed by employee and budget head) 

Proposed Employee Appointment 
--- Proposed Employee Clearance 
__ Restricted/ Job Appointment/CS Rule 6.5g Letter of Justification (for classified, if applicable) 

CONTINGENT UPON AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS 
Rev. 5/112019 



SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM 
JOBCLASS3 8 

JOB CODE F 
CALID 

M 
Personnel Action Form rl �-0-�-IT-B-�0-:--.1-71---.-1-•1-71r--.1---.1 

CAMPUS: SUS SUBR SULAC _JL_ SUAREC SUNO SUSLA 

EMPLOYMENT CATEGORY: 

.lL_ Academic 
__ Temporary 

Tenured 
__ Tenured Track 
__ Other (Specify) 

9-MONTH _x_ 12-MONTH -- OTHER -- (Specify)

___ Non�Academic 
___ Part-time ( % of Full Time) 
___ Undergraduate Student 

Graduate Assistant 
Retiree Return To Work 

Civil Service 
Restricted 

___ Job Appointment 
___ Probationary 

Permanent Status 

Previous Employee _N=/A.,__ _____________ _ Reason Left 
Salary Paid 

NIA 

Date Left N/A 

Profile of Person Recommended 

NIA 

Length ofEmployment 08/01/2019 To ___,0,:513=1/2=02.,0'-----------
Effective Date ___,0,,8ic,0e,l/2=01�9c..._ ____________ _ 

Name Adam Crepelle SS# XXX-XX-1389 Sex -�M.,___ Race* _}y_ 

Position Title: 
(IA9t 4 digits only) 

__,A,,se,s,coc,,1,,_at,,ec,P"r-"o"fess
c,:,,oe_r ___________ Department: Law Center-Instruction 

Check One __ Existing Position *Visa Type (See Reverse Side):

X New Position 
(Position vacancy authorization form mWit be processed and approved to fill 
existing and new p�itions. Position must be advertised before procuslug PAF, if 

Expiration Date: ______ _ 

applicable.) 
Years Experience �6'---

-cc
-�����----,�� Southern University Experience

Degree(s): Type/Discipline (BA-Education): Institution/Location (SU.:Baton Rouge): 
1 

D.S. University of Louisiana, Lafayette, LA 
J.D. Southern University Law Center 
Master ofLaw University of Arizona, Tucson, AZ. 

Current Employer Southern University Law Center 

Personnel Action 

Check One _K_ New Appointment Continuation __ Sabbatical 
'.fransfer ___ Replacement __ Other (Specify) 

Recommended Salary _,$_,l,,_00,,,,c00,,0c.... _____ _ Salary Budgeted 

Source of Funds General Appropriation 

$100 000 

Year: 
2009 
2013 
2018 

Leave of Absence 

Identify Budget: State·· Location 311001-32020�61003-31000 
Form.Code: BORIO 

Change of: 
Page __,_I ___ _ Item# ---'-1 ______ _ 

Position 
Status 

From 
Visiting Professor Associate Professor 

Salary Adjustment 
Financial Aid shmature (if, annlicable): 

tly paid this employee by List total funds curren 
Southern University: 
*See Reverse Side

Source of Funds 
311001-32020-61003-31000 

II Comments: (Use back of form) I! 

•see Reverse Side Graduate School signature (if, applicable): 

President Date 

Amount 
$100 000.00 

Date 



This information is requested solely for the purpose of determining compliance with Federal Civil Rights 
Laws and does not affect employment consideration. 

ETHNIC ORGIN (Please check one): 

Hispanic or Latino ______ Non-Hispanic or Non-Latino 

RACE (Please check all that apply): 
_X __ White, not of Hispanic origin. A person baving origins in any of the original people ofEurope, North Africa. or the Middle East 

___ Black. not of Hispanic Origin. A person having origins in any of the Black racial groups of Africa. 

Hispanic. A person of Mexican, Puerto rucan, Cuban, Central or South American, or other Spanish culture or origins, 
regardless of race. 

Asian or Pacific Islander. A person having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian 
___ Subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands. This area includes, for example, China, Japan, Korea, the Philippine Islands, and Samoa. 

American Indian or Alaskan Native. A person having origins in any of the original peoples of North American, and who 
___ maintains cultural identification through tribal affiliation or community recognition. 

COMMENTS: 
Adam Crepelle served as a visiting professor at Southern University Law Center during the 2018-2019 academic year. 
The Faculty Appointments, Retention, Promotion and Tenure (FARPT) Committee at SULC has recommended that 
Adam Crepelle be appointed to the professor tenure tract position at SULC for the 2019-2020 academic year. 

EMPLOYEE REGULAR WORK SCHEDULE: Dail 
EMPLOYEE DIRECT SUPERVISOR: V/C Roederick White 
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES SUPERVISED, (if any) 100 

HR USE ONLY: STATIJS (circle one): EXEMPT NON-EXEMPT 

GUIDELINES: All employees, students, graduate assistants being employed through the use of this form 
are to report to and be cleared by the Human Resources before any employment is offered and before 
starting to work. All students are to bring with them clearance from tbe Financial Aid office, Statement 
of Account (fee receipt), and a class schedule. All prospective employees/students must bring a pictured 
ID, social security card, birth certificate, certificate of naturalization, resident'alien·.card, Hl-B and J-1 
visas, passport, and F-1/1-94. The latter six (6) documents do not apply to U.S. Citizens. 

Documentation must be provided for review and approval by Human Resources before employment is 
offered. 

CLASS OF EMPLOYMENT MSA STATIJSl: 

TYPE 
SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LAW CENTEf 

�BERED I Fll&.IOOJAl.!/l.lLABU 

United States Citizen/Certificate of Naturalization 
Resident Alien 
H-1 Visa (Distinguished Merit & Ability)
J-1 Visa (Exchange Visitor Program)
F-1 Visa(Student Emp. FT Student at S.U.) �"·-�---Fl 

FO OPT (F-1 Visa-INS Prior Approval-"Practical Work Experienceu) 

Do Not Write Below This Area 

For Human Resource and Budgetary Control Use Only! 

P AF APPROVAL PROCESS CHECKLIST (Must have the infonnation outlined below): 
___ Approved Position Vacancy Authorization Form (applicable for new and replacement positions)

Position Vacancy Announcement (position advertised before processing P AF, if applicable) 
--- Application for Employment Form Admin/Fac/Uncl Positions(Civil Service Application for classified employees) 
___ Authority to Release (signed by employee) (submitted to Campus Police with Criminal/Background Check fonn) 
___ Supervisory Criminal/Background Check Form (completed by employee/ verified and signed by supervisor) 
___ Exemptions Survey Form (signed by employee and budget head) 
__ · _· Proposed Employee Appointment 
___ Proposed Employee Clearance 
__ Restricted/ Job Appointment/CS Rule 6.5g Letter of Justification (for classified, if applicable) 

CONTINGENT UPON AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS 
Rev. 5/112019 



OFFICE OF THE CHANCELLOR 

(225) 771-2552

FAX (225) 771-2474 

Dr. Ray L. Belton 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LAW CENTER 

261 A. A. LENOIR HALL 

POST OFFICE Box 9294 

BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA 70813-9294 

Mayl,2019 

System President and Chancellor 

Southern University System and Baton Rouge Campus 

J. S. Clark Administration Building, 4th Floor 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813 

RE: Additional Duties/Promotion and Positions Vacancy Announcement Waiver and 

Authorization Request 

Dear Dr. Belton: 

Ms. Koshaneke Gilbert has served the Southern University Law Center (SULC) for 

almost four years as a Career Counselor in the Office of Career Services. The Office of Career 

Services serves over 600 enrolled law students and countless alumni who have access to services 

provided by the Office of Career Services. 

The Director of Career Services and Title IX Coordinator for the Southern University 

Law Center has recommended to me that Ms. Gilbert be promoted to Associate Director of 

Career Services, where she would maintain her current job duties and be responsible for the 

following additional job duties: 

• Advise and counsel students and alumni regarding career selection, job searches and

internships;

• Develop and administer career programming and resources for students;

• Manage implementation of the Public Interest Stipend and Public Interest Law Fellowship

Program

• Assist the Director with gathering required data and statistics for reporting agencies and

accrediting agencies.

"An Equal Educational Opportunity Institution" 



Dr. Ray L. Belton 
Mayl,2019 
Page -2-

• Assist the Director with gathering required data for the Kendall Vick Loan Reduction

Assistance Program
• Assist the Director with managing on campus recruiting and the On Campus Interviews (OCI)

Program
• Any and all duties necessary to fulfil the mission of the department.

This letter also seeks a waiver to search for an associate director and authorization to 
create an associate director position. This waiver and authorization would enable Ms. Gilbert to 
be promoted and negate a long drawn out process of interviewing and screening. Finally, I 
request that Ms. Gilbert's pay be adjusted from $63,000 as a career counselor to $78,000 as an 
associate director and that the requests that I have made be presented to the Southern University 
Board of Supervisors for approval at its May 2019 Board meeting. 

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me. 

Sincerely, 

/�L 1:, · p )sJ7fl_f)_
Jo K. Pierre, Chancellor & 

V e B. Lacour Endowed Professor 

SotJTHERN UNIVERSITY LAw CENTER 



JOBCLASSJ 2 
JOB CODE M SOUTIIERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM 

CAL ID 
u 

Personnel Action Form rl NUM-PO_S_I_
J:

_
E
o-:-�1-3�1-

M
-rl 9-�i-9-1•4-�,-3�1

CAMPUS, SUS SIJBR SULAC .2L_ SUAREC SUNO SUSLA 

EMPLOYMENT CATEGORY, 

Academic 
__ Temporary 

Tenured 
__ Tenured Track 
__ Other (Spedfy) 

9-MONTH 12-MONTH _x __ OTHER -- (Specify) 

X Non-Academic== Part-time ( % of Full Time) 
Undergraduate Student---
Graduate Assist.ant 
Retiree Return To Work 

Civil Service 
Restricted 

___ Job Appointment 
___ Probationary 

Permanent Status 

Previous Employee �N"IA�--------------- Reason Left 
Salary Paid 

NIA 
Date Left N/A 

Profile of Person Recommended 

NIA 

Length of Employment c--c"0'-'71,c0l,,12.,,0,el,,9 _________ _ To 06/30/2020 
Effective Date _,,_01,,_1""01,,_12.,0,,1,,9 _____________ _ 

Name Koshaneke Gilbert �=
"'c

"'-"XX
""'

-9,:,0e,2,c8 ___ Sex 
(Last 4 digits only) 

_ _,Fe...._ Race* _B __ 

Position Title: __,A"'s,,s,,oc,,i,,at,,e"D"i"'rec=to,,,rcco,cfccCec•e,rc,,e"er,._S,,_e,,rv=ic,,es'----- Department: �L,,a"'w"C,,_e,,,n,,t,,er�----------

Check One __ Existing Position *Visa Type (See Reverse Side):

X New Position 
(Position vacancy authorization form must be procwed and approved to fill 
txistiug and new positions, Position must be adverfucd before procuslng PAF, If 

Expiration Date: ______ _ 

applicable.) 

Years Experience ='-1"-I ,--,:--=cc--c,..,--.,.-.,.----c----c:c-c Southern University Experience
Degree(s): Type/Discipline (BA-Education): Institution/Location (SU-Baton Rouge): 

3 

BS -=S�o"'u�th�•�r�n�U�n�iv-'-'e�rs�i�ty'-----------
JD Southern University 

Current Employer Southern University Law Center 

Year: 
2004 
2008 

Check One ___1L_ New Appointment 
Transfer 

Personnel Action 

Continuation __ Sabbatical 
__ Replacement __ Other (Specify) 

Leave of Absence 

Recommended Salary ....,,S7-'-'8"0"0"'0".o"'·o ______ _ 

Source of Funds General Appropriation 

Salary Budgeted $78 000.00 

Identify Blldget: State 
Form Code: -cB

"co"'ru
""o=--------

Location 311001-38130-61002-35000 

Change of: 

Position 
Status 
Salary Adjustment 

List total funds curren 
Southern University: 
*See Reverse Side

� Comments: (Use 

*See Reverse Side

President 

Page -"1 ___ _ Item# _,l�-------

Career Counselor Associate Director of Career Services 
$63 000.00 $78,000.00 

Financial Aid sinnature (if. annJicablel: 
tly paid this employee by Source of Funds . Amount 

311001-38130-61002-35000 $63 000.00 

back of form) ! 

Graduate School signature (1f, apphcable): 

Date 

Date 

Date 

Date Chairman/S.U. Board of Supervisors Date 



This information is requested solely for the purpose of determining compliance with Federal Civil Rights
Laws and does not affect employment consideration. 

ETHNIC ORGIN (Please check one): 

___ Hispanic or Latino ______ Non-Hispanic or Non-Latino 

RACE (Please check all that apply): 

___ White, not of Hispanic origin. A person having origios In any of the original people of Europe, North Africa, or the Middle East 

_X __ Black. not of Hispanic Origin. A person having origins in any of the Black racial groups of Africa. 

Hispanic. A person of Mexican, Puerto Rican. Cuban, Central or South American, or other Spanish culture or origins, 
__ regardless of race. 

Asian or Pacific Islander. A person having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian 
___ Subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands. This area includes, for example, China, Japan, Korea, the Philippine Islands, and Samoa. 

American Indian or Alaskan Native. A person having origins in any of the original peoples ofNorth American, and who 
___ maintains cultural identification through tribal affiliation or community recognition. 

COMMENTS: 
The Office of Career Services serves over 600 enrolled law students and countless alumni who have access to services 
provided by the Office of Career Services. Therefore, the Director of Career Services and Title IX Coordinator for the 
Southern University Law Center has recommended that Ms. Gilbert be promoted to Associate Director of Career
Services, where she would maintain her current job duties and be responsible for the additional job duties. 

EMPLOYEE REGULAR WORK SCHEDULE: Dail 

EMPLOYEE DIRECT SUPERVISOR: Kerii Thomas 

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES SUPERVISED, (if any) 2 

HR USE ONLY: STATUS (circle one): EXEMPT NON-EXEMPT 

GUIDELINES: All employee,, students, graduate assistants being employed through the use of this form 
are to report to and be cleared by the Human Resources before any employment is offered and before 
starting to work. All students are to bring with them clearance from the Financial Aid office, Statement 
of Account (fee receipt), and a class schedule. All prospective employees/students must bring a pictured 
ID, social security card, birth certificate, certificate of naturalization, resident alien card, H1-B and J-1 
visas, passport, and F-1/1-94. The latter six (6) documents do not apply to U.S. Citizens. 

Documentation must be provided for review and approval by Human Resources before employment is 
offered. 

CLASS OF EMPLOYMENT MSA STATUS): 

TYPE m EXPIRES 

United States Citizen/Certificate of Naturalization 
Resident Alien 

SOUTl:\sRN UNIVERSITY LAW CENT[ 
ENCUMBERED/ FUNDS /l.VAiU\tlL 

H-1 Visa (Distinguished Merit & Ability)
J-1 Visa (Exchange Visitor Program)
F-l Visa (Student Emp. FT Stu.dent at S.U.)
OPT (F-1 Visa-INS Prior Approval-"Practical Work Experience")

OOC.i.lillil d--t-;; 
IJATE_,�R-ll---�-;--;/'/_'/

;,y,-----
8 

Do Not Write Below This Area 

For Human Resource and Budgetary Control Use Only! 

PAF APPROVAL PROCESS CHECKLIST (Must have the information outlined below): 
___ Approved Position Vacancy Authorization Form (applicable for new and replacement positions) 
___ Position Vacan�y Announcement (position advertised before processing PAF, if applicable) 

Application for Employment Form Admin/Fac/Uncl Positions(Civil Service Application for classified employees) 
___ Authority to Release (signed by employee) (submitted to Campus Police with Criminal/Background Check form) 
___ Supervisory Criminal/Background Check Form (completed by employee/ verified and signed by supervisor) 
___ Exemptions Survey Form (signed by employee and budget head) 
__ ._ Proposed Employee Appointment 
___ Proposed Employee Clearance 
__ Restricted/ Job Appointment/CS Rule 6.5g Letter of Justification (for classified, if applicable) 

Rev. S/1/2019 



·-----·--···-------------

JOB CLASS 6
soUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM 

JOB CODE 

CAL ID. 

Personnel Action Form I �E'iN I l IM. IB 1·g 12 IJ I
CAMPUS: SUS_ -XX- SUBR SULAC SUAREC SUI'fO SUSLA 

EMPLOYMENT CATEGORY: . 9-MONTH ___ 12-MONTH ..xx_ OTHER __ · (Specify) 

Academic 
Temporary 

-
-

·Tenured· 
Tenured Track 

__ Other (Specify) 

� Non-Academic .Civil Service 
__ ._. Part-time ( � of Full Time) 
_. __ · _ Undergraduate Student 

Restricted � 

Graduate Assistant 
Retiree Return To Work

. ·Job Appointmeii'G 
-. 

-
- Probationary ,...:_ 

--- Permanent Sta� --- -< 

Previous.Employee . --------------'--
Date Left· 

Reason Left
Salary Paid 

Profile of Person Recommended 
Length of Employment 
Effective Date · . \:June 1.. 2019

To 
a 

.N 

Name Robert ·B,. Harrison SS# _nx;-c-=--'-xx=---'-9_2_6_1 __ · Sex _M ___ �ce* ·
· (Lui 4 digits only) 

Position Title: Di rector of Development

Check One XXX Existing Position 

Department: Foundation

· *Visa Type (See Reverse Side):

New Position Expiration Date: 
(Position vacancy outhorization form must be processed and opproved to fill 

-------

existing and new positions. PosiHon must-be odvertlsed before processing PAF, if 
oppliooble.) 

Years Experience 15 years Fundra i sj ng Southern University Experience 
Degree(s): Type/Discipliile (BA�Education): Instit.ution/Lociitlon (SU-Baton Rouge): · 

BA-llrbao·Forestcy SU-Baton Rouqe 
MBA-Management lrPo h CY . OnlV Of sa Ill L ThrnndS-MN 

-Current Employer American.Red Cross

Pers'onnel Action 

Check One New Appointment Continuation __ · Sabbatical 
.Transfei:-· ,:· XX- R_eplacement. __ . Other {Specify)

N/A 

)��9
2017

Leave of Absence 

Recommended Salary 

Source of Funds 

$90,000.00 Salary Budgeted $90,000.00 

Identify Budget:
Form Code: Item # 

,. ' '' 

Location 
Page··----'-'---

--------

Change of: 

Position
Status 
Salary Adjustment 

List tobtlfunds currently paid this e�ployee by
Southern University: . 

· 

•see Reverse Side 
i Comments: (Use back ofform) I .

Chainnan/S.U. Board
of Supervisors 

Date 



This information is requested solely for the purpos·e of determining compliance with Federal Civil Rights Laws 
and does not affect einployment consideration. 

ETHNIC ORGIN (Please check one): 
__ · _· Hispanic or Latino , . ---'-��� Non-Hispanic or Non-Latino· 

. RACE (Please check all that apply): . ·· · 
__ White, not �fHispanic origin. A person baviog·on�s in•any ofihe original people ofEurope, No� Mica, 9r ll)e Middle East

__xxx_ Black. not-of Hispanic Origin. A person having origins in any of the Blacl< racial groups of Africa. 

Hispllllic. · A person of .M�xican, Puerto Rican, Cuban; Central or ,South American, or other Spanish· culture .or origins,
_·_._ regardless of race.: · · · · 

Asian or }'acific Islander. A pers�il having origins in any 6fthe original peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian • 
__ .Subcontinent, or the Pacific Isl311ds. This area incl�des, for exainple, China, Japan, Korea, the Philippine Islands, and Samoa. 

American Indian or Alaskan Native. ·A person.having origins in any of the �riginal peoples· of North American, and who
__ ·.maintains cultural identjfication througfrtrl�ai.affillation·or.coniinunity recognition. : 

·COMMENTS:

EMPLOYEE REGULAR WORK SCHEDULE: 
.EMPLOYEE DmECT. SUPERVISOR: .·. ·· 
NUMB]i:R OF EMPLOYEE� SU�ERVISED, (if an;r) 
.HR USE: ONLY: STATUS (circle o·ti.e): ·

· .. ·. , .·. :i 1'.: 

8:00am-5:00pm . .  ! · 

Al fre.d E. Harre 11 , : HF 

.. ,, 
NoN..:EXEMPT 

GUIDELINES: All employees, students, graduate·assistants being employed through the use of this form
are to ·report to and be cleared by the Human Reso:urces � !fny employment is offered .and before 
starting to work. . Air students are to bring \l'i�h �hem clearance from the �in.ancial Ai!l .offic!l, Sta.tement 

,•of Account (fee receipt), and. a class.s.�hedu.le.- Nl.prospective employees/studen(s must.bring a .pictured 
ID, social secU)'ity card, birth certificate,.-cl)r:tif'icate.ofnaturalization, resident alien card, Hl-B·and J-1
visas, passport; and F-1/1-94. The latter· sfi (6) documents do not apply to U.S. Citizens.

' . . . . . . . . .. : ,:. .. . ; : . ,,. . : . . 
Documentation mus

.
t be.pr.ovided·for review and approval byHuma� Resources before .. employment is 

offered. · · · · · 

CLASS OF EMPLOYMENT <YJSA STATUS}: 

United Stll.tes Citizen/Certificate ofNatu.talizatioq 
Resident Alien 
H-1 Visa (Distinguished Merit & Ability)
:I�l Visa (Exchange Visitor Program) · ·· 
F-1 Visa (Student Emp; FT Student at S.U.)
OPT (F-1 Visa-INS Prior Approval-"Prqcti.cal Wor� .�erieP;ce''.) 
. �. . . . . . . . . . '• . ·. . . . ..... � . . . . . . . 

... FUN-OS AVAILABLE

,..,;:;.,:._J)fF
.
ICE OFTHEV;f::E r• 'X�·,;:�-[ \•·1:, 

�R· Flt�ANCt::f:XRlRESI\\'.. ·:. J 
1<1 !··1_! ':,:

· · sou1hEl1N u·;,,i:v1::nsi f'< :3 {';.) 1 t:t.� 
us.. . . . 

. 

·:� �--- ·s\' s \ \°l
J1 · ' SIGNED · . DATE 
Ft .\.\\Ot>5- ll 30'1-�/t;O� - I boDO

. FO . .. 

. . . . . :. . . -� .. ' ·: . . ' 

. . Do Not Write Below This Area 

. For Hiiman.Res�c:e a.rid. Budgetary: Criritrot Use ·ohiit··'.' 
PAJt APP.ROYAL :PROCESS CH;Eq<;(,tS:J;,� ha:ie .the infoi:mation o��d 1)elow): .. ·• . . 

. . �-Al:lpr0ved fosition:Vapancy Amho�tio�.Form (.applfoabie. for new an,cl.-replac.em,¢nt_positio�s) . · . 
· _ Pos�tion Vacancy Anmiuncement u,osition advertised before proeessing P .AF; if appli�bie)

. ·.-... -. -- ·Application -for Employment Form A,�ac/Uncl P.o�tions(Civil ServlcirApplicatio-n fot classlfied.e�ployees)
·=== Authority to Release (signed by e�pieyee) (submitted·to Campus Police with CrimiI\al!Background eh�k form)
-· _· -- Supervisory Criminal/Back-ground Check Form ( completed by employee/ verified and signed•b)I.SUpervi�er) .
___ E.xemptions Survey F:o.nn ,(signed l?Y employee and budget head) 
_· __ Proposed Employee· Appointment 
__ Proposed Employee Clearance 
__ . Restricted/ Job Appointment/CS Rule 6.5g Letter of Justification (for classified, i{applicable) •.

Rev. 8/2612005 



SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY - BATON ROUGE, LA 70813 j 
sus x suBR suLAC suAREC suNo sdsLA 'f24/ll ;ttu11 

******************************************************************************************* 

POSITION VACANCY AUTHORIZATION 
******************************************************************************************* 

RFQUEST THAT THF. POSITION TITLE 
BE AUTHORIZED AS A VACANCY FOR 

Director of Development AS DESCRIBED BELOW 
System Foundation Office 

(Department or Unit) 

0 New Position X Unclassified 
Som·cc of Funds 
0 State 
D Grnnt -in-Aid

Ueplaccmcnt 
D Civil Service 
D Tcuul'ed 

. 0 Temporary D Faculty 
D Prnbationary (For Facnlty this is same :is te11u1·� ll'llclt) 0 System Revenue 

[] Ar.;ency F1111d State

VACANCY DESCRIPTION AND JUSTIFICATION 
(Include rank {for fa<.!ulty) and approximate salary; initiator of form must have prior approval ofsalaty/salary range with 
the appropriate Vice-Chancellor, Chancellor and/or President. Salaries for classified positions must be approved through 
flumnn Resources). 

The Director of Development will develop a culture of giving among the University's various constil1.1ents by engaging, 
. ��11cating, nnd scturing__annual charitable conh'ibutions. The Director of Development will maintain an a�rcssive 
�1edule of Rrospective donor meetings and provide direct supervision to the Foundation's student interns. The 
Director of Development will manage the daily operations of the annual fund, major gins, planned giving and other 
cfeveloement e_rograms as mutually agreed upou with the Foundation's Chief Executive Officer. 

Salary/Range: $85,00.00-$90,000.00 Previous lncumbenl (ifreplacemenu;:---

✓ Approved __ Disapproved �-- Ii... 

_j_ Appr·oved __ Disapp1·oved

FINANCE/8\JDGET OFFICE ONLY 
Fund:; Available

_ _lL_ __ Yes ___ No
______ tMe�q�a�----� 

__ Disapproved 

:Oct>art 

--0Provcd ___ Disapproved ------�-

--�•d __ Disapproved 

/✓g9�19 
visor of Budget Unit D)lh�

HUMAN RESOURCRS OFFICE ONLY 
Existing/ Approved Position 

/ Yes No---

Rev. 8/05/2013 



ROBERT HARRISON 

robert.harrison76@icloud.com 
CANDIDATE SUMMARY: 

Professional Management Director with over 15 years of progressive experience in top 10 
largest nonprofit organizations and Fortune 30 companies; providing leadership and 
guidance to professionals and volunteers focused on exceeding the objectives set 
forth in my assignments. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Key Capabilities: 

 Securing sponsorships and building relationships for events
 Strategic, goal-oriented approach in managing individual membership and

finance campaigns
 Successful in managing membership and fundraising initiatives
 Excellent ability to close major gifts and increase individual giving campaigns
 Proven recruitment, relationship and membership manager.

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Achievements: 

$734,864 raised annually and growing the campaign in each of those years 
and ending with $826,897 

or 
Women Luncheon, which resulted in significant growth annually with the 
gross amount of 30% increase resulting to $887,249 raised in 2016 and follow up 36% 
growth the following year increasing to $1,209,756 for the recent 2017 event 

 a portfolio of business with residential and commercial accounts where I grew 
the overall renewal rate from 78% to 87% and brought in new residential accounts over 
the previous penetration rate of 45% for my service area. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE: 

Donor Development Officer,  
February 2019 to Current  
American Red Cross: Minnesota – Dakota Region 
Currently I’m the Donor Development Officer for the American Red Cross in Minnesota. The 
American Red Cross provides domestic disaster relief, blood collection and distribution 
services, preparedness information, health and safety training, service to the armed forces, 
and international services. My assignment with the organization focuses on: identifying, 
engagement, cultivation, solicits, and stewards current and prospective donors in 
expanding their financial support of the work of the American Red Cross. 

Territory Manager, Xfinity 
November 2017 to Current  
Comcast, Twin Cities Market; West Region  

business customers to manage their personal, security, business and entertain needs. The 
marketplace turf I managed saw significant growth in sales revenue to where I saw 100 
percent quota status in every quarter; this increased the penetration rate for of services to 
consumers ensuring market share growth.  

Director; Go Red For Women 
July 2015 to March 2017 
American Heart Association, Midwest Affiliate; Twin Cities Market 

Fundraising: raising individual giving dollars and sponsorship dollars to ensure the 



continuation of educational messaging and research of heart disease in women 
through corporate and individual giving. The Twin Cities Go Red For Women event 
currently ranks in the top 3rd  out of 387 events nationally. 

other volunteers to help raise funds and bring awareness to the community about 
heart disease in women to peer to peer fundraising efforts. 

Learn for up to 800 guests, featuring educational workshops, vendor exhibits and 
luncheon program with keynote speaker. 

Special Events Manager; Relay for Life 
February 2011 to November 2013 
American Cancer Society, California Division; Los Angeles Region & Mid- South Division 
New Orleans Region 

rovided leadership to volunteer committee and team development to surpass set 
objectives for the 2011 Relay for Life campaign. Solicits and maintains high-level 
patron & corporate sponsors by developing year-round cultivation plan ensuring 
superior customer relations. Main focus on individual giving and increasing base 
of donors in the community. 

owners and community leaders in the New Orleans and Los Angeles markets. I 
was able to engage community leaders to improve relationships with major team 
captains and donors. 

Associate Development Director; COE 
December 2009 to November 2010 
Coalition for Engaged Education; Santa Monica, California 

Managed and developed databases of foundations and individuals gifts, also 
responsible for tracking of metric program performance, and developing answers 
for replies of quarterly and final report to funders as outlined  
in the grant agreements. Major duties included the project manager for the submission of 
the Lennox Promise Grant to the United States Department Education, this included 
reviewing the materials needed with department managers and providing logistical 
support for gathering any necessary attachments as needed. 

Field Director; Boy Scouts of America 
August 1999 to August 2008 
Northern Star Council; Saint Paul, Minnesota 

 Paul, MN 
office; this new assignment allowed me to provide leadership to six distinct 
districts. Assignment covered suburban and urban areas; under my management 
a team of six executives meet and exceeded objective assigned by the 
organizations board. 

g providing daily service to this large geographic area; and 
managing the volunteer leadership and overseeing that programs were 
maintained in 289 different program units that provided service to over 10,000 
youth and 3,000 volunteers. Under my leadership of my team of six executives 
meet and exceeded objectives assigned in the field, membership gains, improved retention, 
and increased the amount volunteer leadership positions. 

Education: 

Southern University A&M College; Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
Bachelor of Science, Urban Planning in Forestry Management & Policy 
-University of Saint Thomas; Saint Paul, Minnesota
Opus Business School, Mini Masters MBA;  Executive Education



OFFICE OF THE CHANCELLOR 

May 1, 2019 

Dear Dr. Belton: 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AT NEW ORLEANS 
6400 Press Drive 

New Orleans, LA 70126-0002 
(504) 286-5311

FAX (504) 284-5500 
www. suno.edu 

The purpose of this letter is to request that Mr. Justin James, Internal Auditor, occupy 
the position of Vice-Chancellor for Administration & Finance of Southern University at 
New Orleans on an interim basis (see attached Position Vacancy Authorization). I am 
respectfully requesting Mr. James be placed in this position, effective immediately, 
prior to Board of Supervisors' approval. Approval of this request will provide continuous 
leadership in the area of Administration and Finance, and insure that there are no gaps 
in service. 

Thank you in advance for your consideration. 

Respectfully, 

Approved: 
Dr. Ray Belton, Chancellor-President 
Southern University Sytem 

"A1t Equal Educational Opportunity Iustitution" 







SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY - BATON ROUGE, LA 70813 

SUS 0 SUBR O SULAC O SUAREC O SUNO O SUSLA 0 
*************************************************************************************** 

POSITION VACANCY AUTHORIZATION 
*************************************************************************************** 

REQUEST THAT THE POSITION TITLE AS DESCRIBED 
Interim Vice-Chancellor for Administration & Finance BELOW 

BE AUTHORIZED AS A VACANCY FOR Administration & Finance 
(Department or Unit) 

D New Position D Unclassified 
D Temporary D Faculty 

Source of Funds 
D State 
D Grant-in-Aid 

l2J Replacement 
D Civil Service 
D Tenured 0 Probationary (For Faculty this is same as tenure track) D System Revenue 

D Agency Fund State

VACANCY DESCRIPTION AND JUSTIFICATION 

Member of the Chancellor's executive leadership team, principal duties include financial oversight and management of 
University's fiscal and capital resources. Position directly oversees the following offices: Comptroller's Office, Campus 
Safety/ Facilities Management, Campus Police, Purchasing and General Services. 

Salary/Range: ....::.$9::..:3°''c:.6:::.36.::.._ ______ -=P-=r .... evc..:ic:.o.=us::..:.=In
::.;
c
c:.
u=m=b::..:e

c::n::.t oc(i::..:fr"'e""
pl .... ac_e __ m_en=t:....): __ Ju=l .... li .... n_R_e .... n_thr_o-"'p-'-e ____ _ 

Approved Disapproved 
Department Head Date 

__ Approved __ Disapproved 
Finance/Budget Unit Date 

FINANCE/BUDGET OFFICE ONLY HUMAN RESOURCES OFFICE ONLY 
Funds Available Existing/ Approved Position 

X Yes 

SiPnature 
Bud•et Number 

Approved 

�proved 

No X Yes 

Employee Class: I 
Exempt 

Date 
I 41 IO0l 441 l0 6!00246000 Verified Bv: 

Disapproved 
Vice Chancellor 

Disapprove� � r D-u.... , c
Chaii'ccitice President/' 

__ Approved __ Disapproved 
President 

An Equal Opportunity Employer 

No 

I Job Class: Classified 

Date: 

Date 

$¼!/2 
I te · 

Date 

Rev. 8/05/2013 



OFFICE OF THE CHANCELLOR 

(225) 771-2552 

FAX (225) 771-2474 

Dr. Ray L. Belton 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LAW CENTER 

261 A. A. LENOIR HALL 

POST OFFICE Box 9294 

BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA 70813-9294 

May 1, 2019 

System President and Chancellor 

Southern University System and Baton Rouge Campus 

J. S. Clark Administration Building, 4th Floor 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813 

RE: Salary Adjustment for Additional Duties 

Dear Dr. Belton: 

Dr. Mary W. Johnson has served as my executive assistant at the Law Center for almost 

three years. Her role has evolved over that time and I am seeking to expand her duties for her to 

serve in a critical support role for the Office of Career Services at the Law Center. Dr. Johnson, 

a long-time employee of the Southern University System and Baton Rouge campus transferred to 

the Law Center in January 2016 to serve as a Career Services Coordinator for a short period of 

time prior to assuming the role of Executive Assistant to the Chancellor. 

During her service as an Executive Assistant, I have tasked her from time to time to assist 

the Office of Career Services during certain "crunch periods" in the cycle of operations of that 

office. During the last 24 months, I have been engaged in cultivating new avenues of 

oppmtunity for our law students that will allow them to access a number of new specific 

employment and career opportunities that have developed quickly in the period following the 

recession, including jobs and career opportunities for law school graduates in the area of block 

chain, legal tech, Title IX compliance, health care compliance, cannabis regulation, legal 

operations in corporate and nonprofit organizations, cybersecurity, data security and privacy, 

government relations, cryptocurrency, and alternative legal services provider processes. 

The Law Center has joined several emerging organizations that are leading the changes 

with respect to emerging careers for law graduates. Those organizations include the Institute for 

the Future of the Practice of Law (IFLP), the Community of Legal Interns (CLI), the Corporate 

"An Equal Educational Opportunity Institution" 



Dr. Ray L. Belton 
May 1, 2019 
Page -2-

Legal Operations Consortium (CLOC), and other Law Tech organizations and initiatives. That 
activity has yielded ten new internship opportunities for our current law students with corporate 
entities like Net App, CISCO, Commins Engines, Lex Check, Juniper Networks and others that 
have yielded internship opp01iunities that are paying as much as $1,680 per week plus housing 

and travel. 

Because the scope of the aforementioned opportunities are expanding at a rapid pace, I 

thought it would be wise for Dr. Johnson to be assigned an oversight and liaison role with all of 

the emerging opportunities that have developed and will develop. She would serve as an 
additional human resource for the Office of Career Services and avoid the need to hire an 
addition staff person for the time being. I would respectfully request that Dr. Johnson be granted 

additional compensation in the amount of$15,000 per year. Her current salary is $69,000 per 

year. The expansion of Dr. Johnson's role will allow the Office of Career Services and the Law 
Center to cultivate, and expand relationships with the new employers, organizations and 

institutions that could open a whole new world of opportunities for Law Center students and 
graduates. 

I therefore ask that you place this request before the Southern University Board of 
Supervisors for them to consider for approval at their May 2019 Board meeting. If you have any 

questions, please contact me. 

'°;d:1( � � 
Im K. Pierre, Chancellor & 

ii anue B. Lacour Endowed Law Professor

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LAW CENTER 



JOB CLASS3 2 
JOB CODE M SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM 

---------�-�--�Personnel Action Form 
I ���� I 

3 
I M 1

9 
1
9 

I 
7 

I 
7 

I
CALID 

u 

CAMPUS: SUS SUBR SULAC _X_ SUAREC SUNO SUSLA 

EMPLOYMENT CATEGORY: 9-MONTII 12-MONTH _X_ OTHER __ (Specify)

__ X __ Non-Academic Academic 
Temporary 

-- Tenured
___ Part-time( % ofFullTime) 

Civil Service 
Restricted 

___ Job Appointment 
___ Probationary 

Permanent Status 
__ Tenured Track 
_L.. Other (Specify) 

___ Undergraduate Student 
Graduate Assistant 
Retiree Return To Work 

Previous Employee -"N,clA,,_ ______________ _
Date Left N/A 

Reason Left 
Salary Paid 

NIA 

NIA 

Profile of Person Recommended 

Length of Employment -,,'0'-'7'-'I0c,I,.,12,,,0""19'----------
Effective Date __,,07!!.l,c0l,,12,e0,al,c9 _____________ _ 

To 06/30/2020 

Name Mary W. Johnson _XXX�=-XesXc,-:,1"'2"'02
e,..,. 

__ Sex 
(La.st 4 digits Dnly) 

__,F�- Race* _B __ 

Position Title: �E"x"'e"cu,,,tiv�· '-'e�A�s"s"isc,:ta,,n,_,t __________ Department: ---"Le,aw"-'Ce,ee,n.,tes,rc_ _________ _ 

*Visa Type (See Reverse Side): Check One __x_ Existing Position 

New Position 
(Position vacancy authorization form must be pro�es.sed and approved to fill 
existing and new positions. p05Jfion must be advertised befort proees.slng PAF, if 
applicable.) 

Expiration Date: ______ _

Years Experience ....,,2.:.7 _____________ Southern University Experience 
Degree(s): Type/Discipline (BA-Education): Institution/Location (SU-Baton Rouge): 

2 

BS -'s,.,o,,u.,th.,eecrn"--'U'-'n"-iv,.,ec,.rs,,i,.,tyc._ _________ _ 
MA Public Administration Southern University 
PhD. Public Policy Southern University 

Current Employer Southern University Law Center 

Personnel Action 

Year: 
2002 
2004 
2018 

Check One __ New Appointment _K_ Continuation Sabbatical Leave of Absence 
Transfer __ Replacement __ Other (Specify) 

Recommended Salary _;,S,;84,,0,c0"0"'.o"o'-------

Source of Funds General Appropriation 

Salary Budgeted $84 000.00 

Identify Budget: _,S,,ta,,_t,,ec._ _____ _ Location 311001-31120-61002-36000 

Change of: 
Form Code: _,,B-"O"R"l"0 ______ _ Page _l"------ Item# -"-1 ______ _ 

Position 
Status 
Salary Adjustment 

Executive Assistant 
$69,000.00 

Financial Ai 
List total funds currently paid this employee by 
Southern University: 
*See Reverse Side

. ij Comments: (Use backofform) 

To 
Executive Assistant 

$84 000.00 

d si0nature (if, annlicablC): 
Source of Funds Amount 
311001-31120-61002-36000 $69 000.00 

*See Reverse Side Graduate School signature (1f, applicable): 

President Date Chairman/S.U, Board of Supervisors Date 



This information is requested solely for the purpose of determining compliance with Federal Civil Rights 
Laws and does not affect employment consideration. 

ETHNIC ORGIN (Please check one): 
___ Hispanic or Latino ______ Non-Hispanic or Non-Latino 

RACE (Please check all that apply): 
__ White, not of Hispanic origin. A person having origins in any of the original people of Europe, North Africa, or the Middle East 

_X __ Black. not of Hispanic Origin. A person having origins in any of the Black racial groups of Africa. 

Hispanic. A person of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South American, or other Spanish culture or origins, 
___ regardless of race. 

Asian or Pacific Islander. A person having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian 
Subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands. This area includes, for example, China, Japan, Korea, the Philippine Islands, and Samoa. 

American Indian or Alaskan Native. A person having origins in any of the original peoples of North American, and who 
___ maintains culturaJ identification through tribal affiliation or community recognition. 

COMMENTS: 
Dr. Mary Johnson has been assigned an oversight and liaison role with all of the emerging opportunities that have 
developed and will develop. She will serve as an additional human resource for the Office of Career Services and avoid 
the need to hire an addition staff person for the time being. 

EMPLOYEE REGULAR WORK SCHEDULE: Dail 
EMPLOYEE DIRECT SUPERVISOR: Chancellor John Pierre 
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES SUPERVISED, (if any) 130 

HR USE ONLY: STATUS (circle one): EXEMPT NON-EXEMPT 

GUIDELINES: All employees, students, graduate assistants being employed through the use of this form 
are to report to and be cleared by the Human Resources before any employment is offered and before 
starting to work. All students are to bring with them clearance from the Financial Aid office, Statement 
of Account (fee receipt), and a class schedule. All prospective employees/students must bring a pictured 
ID, social security card, birth certificate, certificate of riaturalization, resident alien card, Hl-B and J-1 
visas, passport, and F-1/1-94. The latter six (6) documents do not apply to U.S. Citizens. 

Documentation must be provided for review and approval by Human Resources: before employment is 
offered. 

CLASS OF EMPLOYMENT MSA STATUS\: 

United States Citizen/Certificate ofNaturalization 
Resident Alien 
H-1 Visa (Distinguished Merit & Ability)
J-1 Visa (Exchange Visitor Program)
F-1 Visa (StudentEmp. FT Student at S.U.)
OPT (F-1 VisaMINS Prior Approval-"Practical Work Experience")

60!JEHERN UNIVERBXiPIRB!W CENTER 

F.�CUMBERED I FUNDS AVAILABLE

:

C

EiD.# 8'i2f 
JI .,.,.,: ___ _,,,-----
FY----=---'----"'-'-µr-'---

FO 

Do Not Write Below This Area 

For Human Resource and Budgetary Control Use Only! 

PAF APPROVAL PROCESS CHECKLIST (Must have the information outlined below): 
___ Approved Position Vacancy Authorization Form (applicable for new and replacement positions) 
___ Position Vacancy Announcement (position advertised before processing P AF, if applicable) 
___ Application for Employment Form Admin/Fac/Uncl Positions(Civil Service Application for classified employees) 
___ Authority to Release (signed by employee) (submitted to Campus Police with CriminaVBackground Check form) 
___ Supervisory Criminal/Background Check Form (completed by employee/ verified and signed by supervisor) 
___ Exemptions Survey Form (signed by employee and budget head) 
___ Proposed Employee Appointment 
___ Proposed Employee Clearance 
__ Restricted/ Job Appointment/CS Rule 6.5g Letter of Justification (for classified, if applicable) 

CONTINGENT UPON AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS 
Rev. 5/1/2019 



SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM 
JOBCLASS3 8 

JOB CODE F 
CALID 

M 

Personnel Action Form 1��-0-8-1-TI-Eo-:-�1-,1--1��1-,1-�1 �I
CAMPUS, SUS SUBR SULAC _X_ SUAREC SUNO SUSLA 

EMPLOYMENT CATEGORY, 

..x_ Academic 
__ Temporary 

Tenured 
.JL_ Tenured Track 
__ Other (Specify) 

9-MONTH _x_ 12-MONTH -- OTHER -- (Specify)

Non-Academic 
___ Part-time(� ofFullTime) 
___ Undergraduate Student 

Graduate Assistant 
Retiree Return To Work 

Civil Service 
Restricted 

___ Job Appointment 
___ Probationary 

Permanent Status 

Previous Employee -=NIA�-------------- Reason Left
Salary Paid 

NIA 

Date Left N/A 

Profile of Person Recommended 

NIA 

Length of:Emp1oyment 08/01/2019 To _,o,,s,,13c,t,.no,O,e20e._ _________ _ 
Effective Date __,0e,8lc,0celn""'o1'"9'--------------

Name Michael D. Oeser SS# XXX-XX-0487 Sex _ _,Mc,.._ Race"' ___JY_ 

Position Title: 
(Lut 4 digits only) 

�Ass=ec•:.•i=•t�•�P�r�•�fes=••�'----------- Department: Law Center Instruction 

Check One __ Existing Position *Visa Type (See Reverse Side):
X New Position Expiration Date: ______ _ 

(Position vacancy authorWl.tion form must be processed and approved to fill
t:xirtlng and new positions. Position must be advertised before procwilng PAF, If
applicable.) 

Years Experience -"14:,_ ____________ Southern University Experience
Degree(s): Type/Discipline (BA-Education): Institution/Location (SU-Baton Rouge): 

B.A, _,U�n._,iv�e._,.-s,,.i�ty�•,,.f�H._,o,,.u.,s,,,to,,n,__�-���-----
J.D, University of Wisconsin Law School 
Master of Laws U.S.

Current Employer The Oeser Law Firm 

University ofWisconsln Law School 

Personnel Action 

Year: 
1993 
1998 
2010 

Check One _1f__ New Appointment 
Transfer 

Continuation __ Sabbatical 
__ Replacement __ Other (Specify) 

Leave of Absence 

Recommended Salary _$e..,1""03=50::;0e..,. ______ _ 

Source of-Funds General Appropriation 

Change of: 

Position 
Status 

Identify Budget: 
Form Code: 

Salary Adjustment 

State 
BORIO 

Salary Budgeted $103500 

Location 311001-32020-61003-31000 
Page _,_I ___ _ Item# _,_I ______ _ 

Financial Ai 
List total funds currently paid this employee by 
Southern University: 

d sin-nature (fft annlicable'I: 
Source of Funds Amount 
NIA NIA 

*See Reverse Side
Comments: (Use back of form) 

zsee Reverse Side Graduate School signature (1f, apphcable): 

Date 

Date 

Date 

Date 

President Date Chairm&n/S.U. Board of Supervisors Date 



This information is requested solely for the purpose of determining compliance with Federal Civil Rights 
Laws and does not affect employment consideration. 

ETHNIC ORGIN (Please cheek one): 

___ Hispanic or Latino ______ Non-Hispanic or Non-Latino 

RACE (Please check all that apply): 

_K__ White, not of Hispanic origin. A person having origins in any of the original people ofEurope, North. Afiica, or the Middle East. 

___ Black. not of Hispanic Origin. A person having origins in any of the B1ack racial groups of Africa. 

Hispanic. A persOn of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South American, or other Spanish culture or origins, 
___ regardless of race. 

Asian or Pacific Islander. A person having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian 
Subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands. This area includes, for example, Chlna, Japan, Korea, the Philippine Islands, and Samoa. 

American Indian or Alaskan Native. A person having origins in any of the original peoples of North American. and who

maintains cultural identification through tribal affiliation or community recognition. 

COMMENTS: 
Michael Oeser currently serves as a Senior Tribal Counsel for the Ho-Chunk Tribal National Depart of Justice and has 
had significant law school teaching experience. The Faculty Appointments, Retention, Promotion and Tenure (FARPT) 
Committee at SULC has recommended that Michael Oeser be appointed to the professor tenure tract position at SULC 
for the 2019-2020 academic year 

EMPLOYEE REGULAR WORK SCHEDULE: Dail 

EMPLOYEE DIRECT SUPERVISOR: V /C Roederick White 

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES SUl'ERVISED, (if any) 120 

HR USE ONLY: STATUS (circle one): EXEMPT NON-EXEMPT 

GUIDELINES: All employees, students, graduate assistants being employed through the use of this form 
are to report to and be cleared by the Human Resources before any employment is offered and before 
starting to work. All students are to bring with them clearance from the Financial Aid office, Statement 
of Account (fee receipt), and a class schedule. All prospective employees/students must bring a pictured 
ID, social security card, birth certificate, certificate of naturalization, resident alien card, Ht-B and J-1 
visas, passport, and F-1/1-94. The latter six (6) documents do not apply to U.S. Citizens. 

Documentation must be provided for review and approval by Human Resources before employment is 
offered. 

CLASS OF EMPLOYMENT {VISA STATUS}: 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LAW CENTER

ENCU�ED I FUNDS �LE
United States Citizen/Certificate of Naturalization 
Resident Alien 
H-1 Visa (Distinguished Merit & Ability) 
J-1 Visa (Exchange Visitor Program)
F-1 Visa (Student Emp. FT Student at S.U.)

OOC. l.[b$_ 

RA 
DATE 

HI 

BY JI 
Fl 

�f 
;)µ1� 

OPT (F-1 Visa-INS Prior Approval-"Practical Work Experiencen) FO 

Do Not Write Below This Area 
For Human Resource and Budgetary Control Use Only! 

P AF APPROVAL PROCESS CHECKLIST (Must have the information outlined below): 
___ Approved Position Vacancy Authorization Form (applicable for new and replacement positions) 
___ Position Vacancy Announcement (position advertised before processing PAF, if applicable) 

Application for Employment Form Admin/Fac/Uncl Positions(Civil Service Application for _classified employees) 
___ Authority to Release (signed by employee) (submitted to Campus Police with Criminal/Background Ch�k form) 
___ Supervisory Criminal/Background Check Form (completed by employee/verified and signed by supervisor) 
___ Exemptions Survey Form (signed by employee and budget head) 
___ Proposed EmployeeAppointment 
__ Proposed Employee Clearance 
__ Restricted/Job Appointment/CS Rule 6.5g Letter ofJustification (for classified, if applicable) 

CONTINGENT UPON AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS 
Rev. 5/1/2019 



OFFICE OF THE CHANCELLOR 

(225) 771-2552 

FAX (225) 771-2474 

Dr. Ray L. Belton 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LAW CENTER 

261 A. A. LENOIR HALL 

POST OFFICE Box 9294 

BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA 70813-9294 

May 1, 2019 

System President and Chancellor 

Southern University System and Baton Rouge Campus 

J. S. Clark Administration Building, 4th Floor 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813 

RE: Salary Adjustment for Additional Duties & Waiver of Search 

Dear Dr. Belton: 

Cynthia Reed is being recommended for a tenure track faculty position for the 2019-2020 

academic year. Ms. Reed is currently the Director of Continuing Legal Education (CLE) and 

Alumni Affairs. If the Board of Supervisors approves the appointment of Ms. Reed for the 

tenure track faculty position, there will be a need to realign her duties. I have proposed by a 

recommendation through a separate letter that Ms. Reed have an appointment of Associate 

Professor and Director of CLE. 

I further propose that Ms. Robbin Thomas, the Annual Fund Coordinator at the Law 

Center assume the duties related to alumni affairs and that the functions of alumni affairs and the 

annual fund be combined. Therefore, I propose that Ms. Thomas become the Director of Alumni 

Affairs and Annual Fund Coordinator. This alignment would contribute to organizational 

efficiency, would save the Law Center from having to hire an additional person, and allow the 

Law Center to be prudent in conserving its financial resources. 

I further request that there be a waiver of any search, if necessary and that Ms. Thomas 
be allowed a salary adjustment from $66,000 her current salary to $78,000. I respectfully ask 

that you present this proposal to the Southern University Board of Supervisors for the Board to 

consider for approval at its May 2019 meeting. 

"An Equal Educational Opportunity Institution" 



Dr. Ray L. Belton 

May 1, 2019 

Page -2-

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me. 

Yours sincerely, 

· MG t L \PwUVL 
J hn K. Pierre, Chancellor & 

anue B. Lacour Endowed Law Professor 

SouTHERN UNIVERSITY LAw CENTER 







JOBCLASS3 8
SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM 

JOB CODE
CALID 

F

M
Personnel Action Form rl �-O-SI_!_�-�-N-..,.., -..,,---,-,--,,-----,1--,-1-•1 

CAMPUS: SUS SUBR SULAC .2f_ SUAREC SUNO SUSLA

EMPLOYMENT CATEGORY: 9-MONTH _X_ 12-MONTH __ OTHER __ (Specify)

Non-Academic l_ Academic 
__ Temporary 

Tenured 
l_ Tenured Track
__ Other (Specify)

___ ParMime ( % of Full Time) 
Civil Service 
Restricted 

___ Job Appointment
___ Probationary 

Permanent Status

___ Undergraduate Student 
Graduate Assista'nt 
Retlree Return To Work

Previous Employee �N�IA�---------------
Date Left NIA 

Reason Left 
Salary Paid 

NIA 
NIA

Profile of Person Recommended 
Length of Employment _-,,-"0�81�0�112=01�9�--------
Effective Date _,0""Blc,c0"'112.,,0,cl,,9�-------------

To 05131/2020

Name Marc L. Roark SS# XXX-X:X-4739 Sex ---"M
"-

- Race• _}Y_ 
(Last 4 digits only) 

Position Title: �As=••�•�i•�t�•�P�r�•��"�•�•�r __________ Department: Law Center- Instruction

Check One __ Existing Position *Visa Type (See Reverse Side):

X New Position Expiration Date: ______ _
(Position vacancy authorization form mmt be processed Qnd approved to fill 
existing and new positions. Position rou5t bt adverti$td before proces.,ing PAF, if 
applicable,) 

Years Experience _1�4�------------ Southern University Experience
Degree(s): Type/Discipline (BA-Education): Institution/Location (SU-Baton Rouge): 

B.A. 
J.D. 
Master of Laws U.S.

Louisiana State University 
Loyola University School of Law
Duke University School of Law 

Current Employer Southern University Law Center

Personnel Action 

Year:
1997 
2002 
2006

Check One _L New Appointment 
Transfer 

Continuation Sabbatical Leave of Absence
__ Replacement __ Other (Specify)

Recommended-Salary �$�1�08=0�00�------- Salary Budgeted $108,000

Source of Funds General Appropriation

Identify Budget: _· "'S'=
ta

,,
t
=,
• �-----

Form Code: _B=O�R�l�0--�-�--
Location 311001-32020-61003-31000 

Page �1 ____ _ Item# �1 ______ _
Change of:

Position
Status 
Salary Adjustment

From
Visiting Pi-ofessor 

Financial Ai 
List total funds currently paid this employee by 
Southern University: 
*See Reverse Side 

Comments: (Use back of form)

Associate Professor

d sie-nature (if, applicable):
Source of Funds 
311001-32020-61003-31000

*See Reverse Side Graduate School s1gnature (1f, apphcable):

Amount 
$108,000.00

President Date Chalrman/S.U. Board of Supervisors

Date 

Date



This information is requested solely for the purpose of determining compliance with Federal Civil Rights 
Laws and does not affect employment consideration. 

ETHNIC ORGIN (Please check one): 

___ Hispanic or Latino ______ Non-Hispanic or Non-Latino 

RACE (Please check all that apply): 

_X __ White, not of Hispanic origin. A person having origins in any of the original people ofEurope, North Africa, or the Middle East. 

Black. not of Hispanic Origin. A person having origins in any of the Black racial groups of Africa. 

Hispanic. A person of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South American, or other Spanish culture or origins, 
___ regard.less of race, 

Asian or Pacific Islander. A person having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian 
Subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands. This area includes, for example, China, Japan, Korea, the Philippine Islands, and Samoa. 

American Indian or Alaskan Native. A person having orig.ins in any of the original peoples of North American, and who 
___ maintains cultural identification through tribal affiliation or community recognition. 

COMMENTS: 
Marc Roark served as a visiting professor at Southern University Law Center during the 2018-2019 academic year. The 
Faculty Appointments, Retention, Promotion and Tenure (F ARPT) Committee at SULC has recommended that 
Marc Roark be appointed to the professor tenure tract position at SULC for the 2019-2020 academic year 

EMPLOYEE REGULAR WORK SCHEDULE: Dail 

EMPLOYEE DIRECT SUPERVISOR: V/C Roederick White 

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES SUPERVISED, (if any) 120 

HR USE ONLY: STA11JS (circle one): EXEMPT NON-EXEMPT 

GUIDELINES: AJl employees, stndents, graduate assistants being employed through the use of this form 
are to report to and be cleared by the Human Resources before any employment is offered and before 
starting to work. AJl stndents are to bring with them clearance from the Financial Aid office, Statement 
of Account (fee receipt), and a class schedule. All prospective employees/stndents must bring a pictnred 
ID, social security card, birth certificate, certificate of naturalization, resident alien card, Hl-B and J-1 
visas, passport, and F-l/I-94. The latter six (6) documents do not apply to U.S. Citizens. 

Documentation must be provided for review and approval by Human Resources before employment is 
offered .. 

CLASS OF EMPLOYMENT /VISA STATUS): 

ITfl\ 

United States Citizen/Certificate of Naturalization 
Resident Alien 
H-1 Visa (Distinguished Merit & Ability)
J-1 Visa (Exchange Visitor Program)
F-1 Visa (Student Emp. FT Student at S.U.)
OPT (F-1 Visa-INS Prior Approval-"Practical Work Experience")

Do Not Write Below This Area 
For Human Resource and Budgetary Control Use Only! 

P AF Al'PROV AL PROCESS CHECKLIST (Must have the information outlined below): 
___ Approved Position Vacancy Authorization Form (applicable for new and replacement positions) 
___ Position Vacancy Announcement (position advertised before processing P AF, if applicable) 

Application for Employment Form Admin/Fac/Uncl Positions(Civi� Service Application for classified employees) 
___ Authority to Release (signed by .employee) (submitted to Campus Police with Criminal/Background Check fom1) 
___ Supervisory Criminal/Background Check Form (completed by employee/ verified and signed by supervisor) 
_. __ Exemptions Survey Form (signed by employee and budget head) 

. ___ Proposed Employee Appointment 
___ Proposed Employee Clearance 
__ Restricted/ Job Appointment/CS Rule 6.Sg Letter of Justification (for classified, if applicable) 

CONTINGENT UPON AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS 
Rev. S/112019 



SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM 
JOBCLASS3 8 

JOB CODE F 
CAL ID 

M 
Personnel Action Form 1-�-0-51-T-

:i

-
�
-N--

i
--

i
--

i
--

i
--

i
--

i 
--1 

CAMPUS: SUS SUBR SULAC .JL__ SUAREC SUNO SUSLA 

EMPLOYMENT CATEGORY: 9-MONTH _.lf_ 12-MONTH __ OTHER __ (Specify)

___ NonwAcademic � Academic 
__ Temporary 

Tenured 
__K_ Tenured Track 
__ Other (Specify) 

___ Part-time ( % of Full Time) 
Civil Service 
Restricted 

___ Job Appointment 
___ Probattonary 

Permanent Status 

___ Undergraduate Student 
Graduate Assistant 
Retiree Return To Work 

Previous Employee _!:!eNIA:,__ _____________ _
Date Left NIA 

Reason Left 
Salary Paid 

NIA 

NIA 

Profile of Person Recommended 
Length of Empioyment __,,O,,Sle,O_el/2=01"9:._ ________ _ To 05/31/2020 
Effective Date _,O,e8t,/0,el/2""'-01,c9c_ ____________ _

Name Kenya J.H. Smith SS# XXX-XX-6315 Sex --"M,,__ Race* _B __ 
{Lut4 digits, only) 

Position Title: Associate Professor Department: Law Center Instruction 

Check One __ Existing Position *Visa Type (See Reverse Side):

X New Position Expiration Date: ______ _ 
(Position vacancy autboriu.tion form mu1t be processed and approvc-d to fill 
existing and new po.ritions. Poslt1on must be advertised before proccs_slng PAF, If 
1.pplicablc.) 

Years Experience --"1e_9 _____________ Southern University Experience 
Degree(s): Type/Discipline (BA-Education): Institution/Location (SU-Baton Rouge): 

D.S. Southern University at New Orleans 
J.D. The University of Wisconsin Law School 

Current Employer Southern University Law Center 

Personnel Action 

1 

Year: 
1996 
1999 

Check One X New Appointment Continuation __ Sabbatical Leave of Absence 
-- Transfer .. _._._._ Replacement __ Other (Specify) 

Recommended Salary _$e.,:10e,30c5e,Oe,Oc_ _____ _ Salary Budgeted 

Source of Funds General Appropriation 

$103 500 

Identify Budget: State Location 311001-32020-61003-31000 
Form Code: BORIO 

Change of: 

Position 
Status 
Salary Adjustment 

Visiting Professor 

$100 000 00 "·' 

Page _cl ___ _ Item# ....cl _______ _ 

Associate Professor 
$103 500.00 

Financial Aid si-ature (if, annJicable'i: 
ntly paid this employee by List total funds curre 

Southern University: 
*See Reverse Side

Source of Funds Amount 
311001-32020-61003-31000 $100,000.00 

II Comments: (Use back of form) � 

*See Reverse Side Graduate School signature (if, applicable): 

Date 

President Date Chairman/S.U. Board of Supervisors Date 



This information is requested solely for the purpose of determining compliance with Federal Civil Rights Laws and does not affect employment ,;:onsideration. ETHNIC ORGIN (Please check one): __ Hispanic or Latino _____ Non-Hispanic or Non-Latino RACE (Please check all that apply): __ White, not of Hispanic origin. A person having origins in any of the original people of Europe, North Africa, or the Middle East 
_X __ Black. not of Hispanic Origin. A person having origins in any of the Black racial groups of Africa. 

Hispanic. A person of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South American, or other Spanish culture or origins, __ regardless of race. 
Asian or Pacific Islander. A person having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East. Southeast Asia, the Indian __ Subcontinent. or the Pacific Islands. 11tis area includes, for example, China, Japan, Korea, the Philippine Islands, and Samoa. 
American Indian or Alaskan Native. A person having origins in any of the original peoples of North American, and who __ maintains cultural identification through tribal affiliation or community recognition. 

COMMENTS: Kenya Smith served as a visiting professor at Southern University Law Center during the 2018-2019 academic year. The Faculty Appointments, Retention, Promotion and Tenure (FARP1) Committee at SULC has recommended that Kenya Smith be appointed to the professor tenure tract position at SULC for the 2019-2020 academic year. 
EMPLOYEE REGULAR WORK SCHEDULE: Dail EMPLOYEE DIRECT SUPERVISOR: VIC Roederick White NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES SUPERVISED, (if any) 100 
HRUSEONLY: STATUS (circle one): EXEMPT NON-EXEMPT 

GUIDELINES: All employees, stndents, graduate assistants being employed through the use of this form are to report to and be cleared by the Human Resources before any employment is offered and before starting to work. All students are to bring with them clearance from the Financial Aid office, Statement of Account (fee receipt), and a class schedule. All prospective employees/students must bring a pictured ID, social se,;:urity card, birth certificate, certificate of naturalization, resident alien card, Hl-B and J-1 visas, passport, and F-1/1-94. The latter six (6) documents do not apply to U.S. Citizens. 
Documentation must be provided for review and approval bY Human Resources before employment is offered. 
CLASS OF EMPLOYMENT MSA STATUS): 
D'!'la SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LAW CEN1E 

�MBERED / F\.ltm�AILABU United States Citizen/Certificate of Naturalization Resident A1ien H-1 Visa (Distinguished Merit & Ability)J-1 Visa (Exchange Visitor Program)F-1 Visa (StudentEmp. FT Student at S.U.)
;E_,.□._• __ 4,?-;1+', t '/C-:J9'---
it __ __;�,ec.:..:_:..:__.t(l,-'-°P,f--'-, -Fl OPT (F-1 Visa-INS Prior Approval-"Practical Work Experience") FO 

Do Not Write Below This Area 
For Human Resource and Budgetary Control Use Only! 

P AF APPROVAL PROCESS CHECKLIST (Must have the information outlined below): ___ Approved Position Vacancy Authorization Form (applicable for new and replacement positions) ___ Position Vacancy Announcement (position advertised beforeprocessingPAF, if applicable) Application for Employment Form Admin/Fac/Uncl Positions(Civil Service Application for classified employees) ___ Authority to Release (signed by employee) (submitted to Campus Police with•Criminal/Background Check fonn) ___ Supervisory Criminal/Background Check Form (completed by employee/ verified and signed by supervisor) ___ Exemptions Survey Form (signed by employee and budget head) ___ Proposed Employee Appointment ___ Proposed Employee Clearance __ Restricted/ Job Appointment/CS Rule 6.5g Letter of Justification (for classified, if applicable) 
CONTINGENT UPON AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS 

Rev. 5/1/2019 



JOBCLASS3 2 
JOB CODE M SOUTHERN UNIVERSI'IY SYSTEM 

CAL ID 
u 

Personnel Action Form rl 
�

-O-S_IT_
B
_
i
o-
:
---,-

1-3--,1-M-rl -9--.1-9--,lc-7--.-1-7--,1 

CAMPUS, SUS SUBR SULAC .JL_ SUAREC SUNO SUSLA 

EMPLOYMENT CATEGORY, 

Academic 
== Temporary 

Tenured 
Tenured Track 

_K._ Other (Specify) 

9-MONTH 12-MONTH _x __ OTHER -- (Specify)

__ X __ NonwAcademic 
___ Part-time ( % . ofFuU Time) 
___ Undergraduate Student 

Graduate Assistant 
Retiree Return To Work 

Civil Service 
Restricted 

___ Job Appointment 
___ Probationary 

Permanent Status 

Previous Employee �N�A�--------------- Reason Left 
Salary Paid 

N/A 
Date Left NA 

Profile of Person Recommended 

NA 

Length of Employment �•�7/�0�1/2=01�9 _________ _ To 06/301Z020 
Effective Date _0�7�/0�l�IZ�O�l�9 _____________ _ 

Name Robbin Thomas �X�XX=-XX=-�0�6�40�-- Sex 
(Last 4 digits only) 

-�F __ Race• __ B_

Position Title: Director of Alumni Affairs and Annual Fund Co Department: �L�•�w_C~•�•~t�"-----------

*Visa Type (See Reverse Side): Check One 2-- Existing Position 

New Position Expiration Date: ______ _ 
(Position vacancy authorization form mll!t be prottssed and approvtd to fill 
existing and new positions. Position must be advertised before processing PAF, if 
applicable.) 

Years Experience �2�8�------------ Southern University Experience
Degree(s): Type/Discipline (BA-Education): Institution/Location (SU-Baton Rouge): 

3 

BS-Accounting �S-•�u�th�•�rn�· �U�ni�v�•�r�•i�ty�----------

Current Employer Southern University Law Center 

Personnel Action 

Year: 
2002 

Check One __ New Appointment l_ ContinU:ation Sabbatical Leave of Absence 
Transfer __ Replacement __ Other (Specify) 

Recommended Salary �S7~8�,0�0�0�.0�0�-------

Source of Funds General Appropriatlon 

Change of: 

Position 
Status 

Identify Budget: State 
Form Code: BORIO 

From 
Coordinator Program Manager 
$66 000.00 

Salary Adjustment 

Salary Budgeted $78 000.00 

Location 311001-31410-61002-36000 
Page�! ____ _ Item# _!�-------

To 
Director of Alumni Affairs & Annual Fund Cor. 
$78 000.00 

Financial Ai 
List total funds c�rrently paid this employee by 
Southern University: 

d sh:mature (if, annlicable); 
Source of Funds Amount 
311001-31410-61002-36000 S66,000.00 

*See Reverse Side
jj Comments: (Use back of form) 

*See Reverse Side Graduate School signature (1f, appbcable): 

President Date Chalrman/S.U. Board of Supervisors Date 



This information is requested solely for the purpose of determining compliance with Federal Civil Rights 
Laws and does not affect employment consideration. 

ETHNIC ORGIN (Please check one): 

__ Hispanic or Latino ______ Non-Hispanic or Non-Latino 

RACE (Please check all that apply): 

___ White, not of Hispanic origin. A person having origins in any of the original people of Europe, North Africa, or the Middle Easl 

_X __ Black. not of Hispanic Origin. A person having origins in any of the Black racial groups of Africa. 

Hispanic. A person of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South American, or other Spanish culture or origins, 
___ regardless of race. 

Asian or Pacific Islander. A person having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian 
___ Subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands. This area includes, for example, China, Japan, Korea, the Philippine Islands, and Samoa. 

American Indian or Alaskan Native. A person having origins in any of the original peoples of North American, and who 
--. _ maintains cultural identification through tribal affiliation or community recognition. 

COMMENTS: 
If the Board of Supervisors approves the appointment of Ms. Cynthia Reed for the tenure tract faculty position, there will 
be a need to realign her duties. Therefore; Chancellor, John Pierre has recommended that Robbin Thomas become the 
Director of Alumni Affairs and Annual Fund Coordinator .. 

EMPLOYEE REGULAR WORK SCHEDULE: 

EMPLOYEE DIRECT.SUPERVISOR: 

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES SUPERVISED, (if any) 

HR USE ONLY: STATUS (circle one): 

Dail 

Chancellor, John Pierre 

130 

EXEMPT NON-EXEMPT 

GUIDELINES: All employees, students, graduate assistants being employed through the use of this form 
are to report to and be cleared by the Human Resources before any employment is offered and before 
starting to work. All students are to bring with them clearance from the Financial Aid office, Statement 
of Account (fee receipt), and a class schedule, All prospective employees/students must bring a pictured 
ID, social security card, birth certificate, certificate of naturalization, resident alien card, Hl-B and J-1 
visas, passport, and F-1/1-94. The latter six (6) documents do not apply to U.S. Citizens. 

Documentation must be provided for review and approval by Human Resources before employment is 
offered. 

CLASS OF EMPLOYMENT <VISA STATUS\: 
SOUTHEFlN UNIVERSITY LAW CENTER 

ENCU�ED / FUNDS �LE 

United States Citizen/Certificate of Naturalization 
Resident Alien 
H-1 Visa (Distinguished Merit & Ability)
J-1 Visa (Exchange Visitor Program)

DOC.I.DJs 

::TE�� w-f __ 
Wd✓ 

F-1 Visa (Student Emp. FT Student at S.U.)
OPT (F-1 Visa-INS Prior Approval-"Practical Work Experience")

Fl 
. FO 

Do Not Write Below This Area 
For Human Resource and Budgetary Control Use Only! 

P AF APPROVAL PROCESS CHECKLIST (Must have the information outlined below): 
___ Approved Position Vacancy Authorization Form (applicable for new and replacement positions) 
___ Position Vacancy Announcement (position advertised before processing PAF, if applicable) 

Application for Employment Form Admin/Fac/Uncl Positions(Civil Service Applicatioi;i for classified employees) 
___ Authority to Release (signed by-employee) (submitted to Campus Police with Criminal/Background Checkfonn) 
___ Supervisory Criminal/Background Check Form (completed by employee/ verified and signed by supervisor) 
___ Exemptions Survey Fonn (signed by employee and budget head) 
___ Proposed Employee Appointment 
___ Proposed Employee Clearance 
__ Restricted/ Job Appointment/CS Rule 6.5g Letter ofJustification (for classified, if applicable) 

CONTINGENT UPON AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS 
Rev, S/1/2019 



OFFICE OF THE CHANCELLOR 

(225) 771-2552

FAX (225) 771-2474 

May 1, 2019 

Dr. Ray L. Belton 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LAW CENTER 

261 A. A. LENOIR HALL 

POST OFFICE Box 9294 

BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA 70813-9294 

System President and Chancellor 
Southern University System and Baton Rouge Campus 
J. S. Clark Administration Building, 4th Floor 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813 

RE: Request for 2 Year Unpaid Leave of Absence and Sabbatical 

Dear Dr. Belton: 

Professor Mark Thurmon has been offered and has accepted an appointment as the 
Deputy Chief Trademark Judge with the United States Patent and Trademark Office (USPTO). 
Professor Thurmon would be working with the Trademark Trial and Appeal Board and his duties 
will also include participation in the overall management and direction of the Office. His 
appointment begins at the end of May and represents recognition that the Southern University 
Law Center has faculty members that are preeminent leaders in the area of intellectual property 
law. 

Professor Thurmon is requesting an unpaid leave of absence and sabbatical to pursue this 
exciting and important opportunity. I therefore ask that you place this request for the Board of 
Supervisors to consider for approval at its May 2019 Board meeting. Thurman is currently a 
tenured law professor. If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me. 

\ 

�o

m

s sincer

�. p 

hn K. Pierre, Chancellor & 
anue B. Lacour Endowed Law Professor 

"An Equal Educational Opportunity Institution" 



JOBCLASS3 8 
SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM 

JOB CODE F 
CALID 

M 

Personnel Action Form rl �-O-S-
M
IT_
B_io-:--,-1-3---,,-M-

1r9-T,-9-----,lr6-r1-
3---.I 

CAMPUS, SUS SUBR SULAC 2L_ SUAREC SUNO SUSLA 

EMPLOYMENT CATEGORY, 

.1l_ Academic 
__ Temporary 

Tenured 
__ Tenured Track 
__ Other (Specify) 

9-MONTH 12-MONTH _g_ OTHER __ (Specify) 

___ Non-Academic 
___ Part-time( % of Full Time) 
___ Undergraduate Student 

Graduate Assistant 
Retiree Return To Work 

Civil Service 
Restricted 

___ Job Appointment 
___ Probationary 

Permanent Status 

Previous Employee --"N,,IAc,._ _____________ _ Reason Left 
Salary Paid 

NIA 

Date Left N/A 

Profile of Person Recommended 

NIA 

Length of Employment 08/01/2019 To -"0:,,513=012e,02""'1'--------------
Effective Date __eOB,,,l2_01,,12ecOe,1�9 _____________ _ 

Name Mark Thurtnon �x�•=x�-•�•�-�•6,,2,.,7 ____ Sex -�M�- Race* � 
(Last4 digit$ only) 

Position Title: Professor Department: Law Center- Instruction --'-'==�-----------

*Visa Type (See Reverse Side):Check One _K__ Existing Position 

New Position 
{Poiition vacancy authorization form must be proceued and approved to fill 

tXi$ling and new positions. Position must be advertiJed before processing PAF, If 

Expiration Date: �---�--

applicable.) 
Years Experience _2,,2,_ ____________ Southern University Experience 10 
Degree(s): Type/Discipline (BA-Education): Institution/Location (SU-Baton Rouge): 

J.D. Duke University School of Law 
B.S. - Electrical Engineering Louisiana State University 

Current Employer Southern University Law Center 

Personnel Action 

Check One __ New Appointment Continuation l_ Sabbatical 
Transfer === Replacement __ Other (Specify) 

Recommended Salary __:,-0,:-c_ ________ _ Salary Budgeted -0-

Year: 
1993 
1985 

Leave of Absence 

Source of.Funds __,s,,ta,,t,,ec.._ __________________________________ _

Change of: 

Position 
Status 

Identify Budget: 
Form Code: 

Salary Adjustment 

State 
BORl0 

Location 311001-32020-61002-31000 
Page -"1 ____ _ Item# _1"--------

Financial Aid sl"nature (if. ann]icable): 
List total funds curren 
Southern University: 
*See Reverse Side

tly paid this employee by Source of Funds Amount 
311001-32020-61003-31000 $113.366 

ij Comments: (Use back of form) i 

*See Reverse Side Graduate School signature {If, applicable): 

Date 

President Date Chairman/S.U. Board of Supervisors Date 



This information is requested solely for the purpose of determining compliance with Federal Civil Rights 
Laws and does not affect employment consideration. 

ETHNIC ORGIN (Please check one): 

__ Hispanic or Latino ______ Non-Hispanic or Non-Latino 

RACE (Please check all that apply): 

_X __ White, not of Hispanic origin. A person having origins in any oft.he original people ofEurope, North Africa, or the Middle East 

___ Black. not of Hispanic Origin. A person having origins in any of the Black racial groups of Africa. 

Hispanic. A person of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South American, or other Spanish culture or origins, 
__ regardless of race. 

Asian or Pacific Islander. A person having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian 
Subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands. This area includes, for example, Chlna, Japan, Korea, the Philippine Islands, and Samoa. 

American Indian or Alaskan Native. A person having origins in any of the original peoples of North American, and who 
___ maintains cultural identification through tribal affiliation or community recognition. 

COMMENTS: 
Mark Thurmon is currently a tenured law professor. Professor Thurmon is requesting an unpaid leave of absence and 
Sabbatical for two years (2yrs); the Fall 2019, Spring 20201 Fall 2020 and Spring 2021 semesters.

EMPLOYEE REGULAR WORK SCHEDULE: Dail 
EMPLOYEE DIRECT SUPERVISOR: V/C Roederick White 
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES SUPERVISED, (if any) 100 

HR USE ONLY: STATUS (circle one): EXEMPT NON-EXEMPT 

GUIDELINES: All employees, students, graduate assistants being employed through the use of this form 
are to report to and be cleared by the Human Resources before any employment is offered and before 
starting to work.. All students are to bring with them clearance from the Financial Aid office, Statement 
of Account (fee receipt), and a class schedule, All prospective employees/students must bring a pictured 
ID, social security card, birth certificate, certificate of naturalization, resident alien card, Hl-B and J-1 
visas, passport, and F-1/I-94. The latter six (6) documents do not apply to U.S. CitizeDB, 

Documentation must be provided for review and approval by Human Resources before employment is
offered. 

CLASS OF EMPLOYMENT /VISA STATUS): 

United States Citizen/Certificate of Naturalization 
Resident Alien 
H-1 Visa (Distinguished Merit & Ability)
J-1 Visa (Exchange Visitor Program)
F-1 Visa (Student Emp. FT Student at S.U.)
OPT (F-1 Visa-INS Prior Approval-"Practical Work Experience")

Do Not Write Below This Area 

For Human Resource and Budgetary Control Use Only! 

PAF APPROVAL PROCESS CHECKLIST (Must have the information outlined below): 
___ Approved Position Vacancy Authqrization Form (applicable for new and replacement positions) 
___ Position Vacancy Announcement (position advertised before processing P AF, if applicable) 
___ Application for Employment Form Adrnin/Fac/Uncl Positions(Civil Service Application for classified employees) 
___ Authority to Release (signed by employee) (submitted to Campus Police with Criminal/Background Check fonn) 
___ Supervisory Criminal/Background Check Form ( completed by employee/ verified and signed by supervisor) 
___ Exemptions Survey Form (signed by employee and budget head) 
___ Proposed Employee Appointment 
___ Proposed Employee Clearance 
__ Restricted/ Job Appointment/CS Rule 6.Sg Letter of Justification (for classified, if applicable) 

CONTINGENT .UPON AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS 

Rev. 5/1/2019 



Board of Supervisors 



SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
J.S. Clark Administration Building- 2nd Floor 

Board of Supervisors Meeting 
Room Baton Rouge, Louisiana 

Friday, May 24, 2019 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 
 

2. Roll Call 
 

3. Adoption of the Agenda 
 

4. Public Comments 
 

5. Special Presentations 
A. Above and Beyond Award 

B. Special Presentations 

C. Legislative Update 

D. 2019 Bar Passage Rates (SULC) 

E. Presentation on Public/Private Partnerships 
 

6. Action Items 
A. Approval of Minutes of April 12, 2019 Regular Meeting of the SU Board of Supervisors 

  
B. Approval of Committee Reports and Recommendations 

C. Request Approval of MOU between SUBR and SUSF Relative to the 
Development of Additional Student Housing (SUBR) 

D. Request Approval of Joint Declaration of Intent Between the Department 
of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries of the Republic of South Africa 
and Southern University Ag Center and CAFCS (SUAREC) 

 
E. Request Approval of MOU Between SULC and the Mississippi Board of Choctaw 

Indians (SULC) 
 

F. Request Approval of Employment Contract for Chancellor Rodney 
Ellis (SUSLA) 

 
G. Request Approval of Employment Contract for Chancellor John 

Pierre (SULC) 
 

H. Resolutions 
 

7. Informational Items 
A. System President's Report 
B. Campus Reports 

 
8. Other Business 

 
9. Adjournment 



0 FFICE OF THE CHANCELLOR 

(225) 771-2552 

FAX (225) 771-2474 

Dr. Ray Belton 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LAW CENTER 

261 A. A. LENOIR HALL 

POST OFFICE Box 9294 

BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA 70813-9294 

May3,2019 

System President and Chancellor 
Southern University System 
J. S. Clark Administration Bldg., 4th Floor 
Baton Rouge, LA 70813 

RE: American Bar Association Recently Released Data on Bar Passage Rates 

Dear Dr. Belton: 

The American Bar Association (ABA) recently released data on bar passage rates of graduates of 
ABA approved law schools. In addition, the February 2019 bar results were first released by the Louisiana 
Supreme Court Committee. I would like to make a brief presentation to the Southern University Board of 
Supervisors on the results published at the May 2019 Board meeting. 

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me. 

Yours sincere

K 

/J �

Vanue B. Lacour Endowed Law Professor 

"An Equal Educational Opportunity Institution" 



Southern University and A&M College System 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING 

Calcasieu Parish School Board 
Board Meeting Room 

3310 Broad Street 
Lake Charles, Louisiana 70615 

Friday, April 12, 2019 
 

9:00 a.m. 
 

The Southern University Board of Supervisors meetings were called to order by Board 
Chair Atty. Domoine Rutledge. The invocation was given by Rev. Horace Bernard, pastor 
of the Faith Temple Church of God in Christ of Lake Charles, LA. 

 
PRESENT 
Atty. Domoine Rutledge, Dr. Samuel C. Tolbert, Jr., Mr. John Barthelemy, Atty. Tony 
Clayton, Dr. Leroy Davis, Mr. Raymond Fondel, Dr. Curman Gaines, Mr. Sam Gilliam, 
Mr. Richard Hilliard, Ms. Xavieria Jeffers, Mrs.  Ann Smith, Dr. Leon R. Tarver II, Ms. 
Arlanda Williams 

 
ABSENT 
Rev. Donald R. Henry, Atty. Patrick Magee, Dr. Rani Whitfield,  
 
UNIVERSITY PERSONNEL ATTENDING 
System President Ray Belton, Chief of Staff Katara Williams, Executive Vice 
President/Executive Vice Chancellor James Ammons, Vice President for Finance and Business 
Affairs Flandus McClinton, Vice President for Strategic Planning, Policy and Institutional 
Effectiveness Vladimir Appeaning, Vice President for External Affairs Robyn Merrick, 
Chancellors Dr. Lisa Mims-Devezin, (SUNO), Chief Administrative Officer Leslie McClellon 
for Dr. Rodney Ellis (SUSLA), and Atty. Roederick White for Chancellor John Pierre (SULC) 
and Interim Chancellor-Dean Dr. C. Reuben Walker (SUAREC). 
 
BOARD COUNSEL 
Attys. Winston DeCuir, Jr., and Deidre Robert 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 

Board of Supervisors Minutes April 12, 2019 
 

 
ACADEMIC AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 

Calcasieu Parish School Board 
Board Meeting Room 

3310 Broad Street 
Lake Charles, Louisiana 70615 

 
Minutes 

 
Board Chair Atty. Domoine Rutledge announced the convening of the Academic Affairs 
Committee. Academic Affairs Committee Chair Dr. Curman Gaines called the committee 
meeting to order. 
 
Present: Dr. Curman Gaines, Mr. John Barthelemy, Dr. Leroy Davis, Mr. Sam Gilliam, Dr. 
Leon R. Tarver II, Dr. Samuel C. Tolbert, Jr., and Atty. Domoine Rutledge 
 
Absent: None 
 

AGENDA ITEM 4: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
Upon the motion by Mr. John Barthelemy and seconded by Mr. Samuel Gilliam the agenda was 
recommended for adoption. 
 
Motion passed. 
 
AGENDA ITEMS 5: PUBLIC COMMENTS 
NONE 

 
AGENDA ITEM 6: ACTION ITEMS  
 

A. Request Approval of Recommendations for Faculty Tenure and Promotion 
(SUBR) 
 
Upon the motion by Dr. Samuel Tolbert and seconded by Dr. Leon R. Tarver II the 
recommendations for faculty tenure and promotions in rank at SUBR was recommended 
for approval. 
 
Motion passed. 
 

B. Request Approval of Addendum to Faculty Appointment and Promotion 
(SULC) 

 
Upon the motion by Dr. Tarver and seconded by Chairman Rutledge the addendum to 
the policy on faculty appointments and promotions in rank for the SU Law Center was 
recommended for approval. 
 
Motion passed. 
 



Page 3 

Board of Supervisors Minutes April 12, 2019 
 

 
C. Request Approval for Tenure and Promotion (SULC) 
 
Upon the motion by Mr. John Barthelemy and seconded by Dr. Leon R. Tarver II the 
proposed faculty promotions in rank and requests for tenure at the SU Law Center were 
recommended for approval. 
 
Motion passed. 
 

D.  Request Approval of Certification of Candidates for Spring 2019 Graduation 
Upon motion by Chairman Rutledge and seconded by Dr. Tarver the resolution to 
certify candidates for graduation at SUBR, SUNO, SULC and SUSLA was 
recommended for approval. 
 
Motion passed. 

 
E. Request Approval of Honorary Doctorate Degree for Louis Lionel Joseph 

 
Upon the motion by Dr. Tarver and seconded by Dr. Tolbert the honorary doctorate 
degree for Louis Lionel Joseph was recommended for approval. 
 
Motion passed. 

 
AGENDA ITEM 7: OTHER BUSINESS 
NONE 

 
AGENDA ITEM 8: ADJOURNMENT 

 
Upon the motion by Dr. Tarver and seconded by Dr. Tolbert the meeting was adjourned.  

Motion passed 

Chairman Rutledge announced that absence of Rev. Donald R. Henry due to the death of 
his mother and he asked that everyone continue to pray for the family. 
 
He also announced that Board Member Pat Magee was ill with flu and pneumonia and in 

the hospital. 

 



Page 4 

Board of Supervisors Minutes April 12, 2019 
 

 

FACILITIES AND PROPERTY COMMITTEE 
(Following the Academic Affairs Committee) 

Calcasieu Parish School Board 
Board Meeting Room 

3310 Broad Street 
Lake Charles, Louisiana 70615 

 
Minutes 

The Facilities and Property Committee was called to order by Mr. Richard Hilliard who was 
appointed by Chairman Rutledge to chair the committee. 

Present: Mr. Richard Hilliard, Mr. John Barthelemy, Dr. Leroy Davis, Mrs. Ann Smith and 
Atty. Domoine D. Rutledge 

Absent: Rev. Donald R. Henry and Dr. Rani Whitfield 
 
AGENDA ITEM 3: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

 
Upon the motion by Chairman Rutledge and seconded by Mr. Barthelemy the agenda was 
recommended for adoption. 

Motion passed. 

AGENDA ITEM 4: PUBLIC COMMENTS 
NONE 
 

AGENDA ITEM 6: INFORMATIONAL ITEM(S) 
 
A. Priority Project Updates (per campus) 
Mr. Eli Guillory, System Director of Facilities indicated that the report was included in 
the meeting packet.  He reviewed highlights of the progress of projects on each campus. 
 
B. Update on the Status of the Mississippi River Crest and its Impact on the SUBR 

Campus 
Mr. Guillory stated that the current elevation is 44.4 feet and that the river is down approximately 4 feet. 
There are signs of erosion, but erosion will be addressed in the new ravine repair and road repair.   

 
AGENDA ITEM 6: OTHER BUSINESS 
None 

 
AGENDA ITEM 7: ADJOURNMENT 
Upon the motion by Mr. Fondel and seconded by Mrs.  Ann Smith the meeting was adjourned. 
 
Motion passed. 
 
 
 



Page 5 

Board of Supervisors Minutes April 12, 2019 
 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 
(Following the Facilities and Property Committee) 

Calcasieu Parish School Board 
Board Meeting Room 

3310 Broad Street 
Lake Charles, Louisiana 70615 

 
Minutes 

 
The Finance Committee was called order by Committee Chair Dr. Leon R. Tarver II. 

 
Present: Dr. Leon R. Tarver, Dr. Leroy Davis, Dr. Curman Gaines, Mr. Sam Gilliam, Mr. 
Richard Hilliard, Ms. Arlanda Williams and Atty. Domoine Rutledge 

 
AGENDA ITEM 3: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
 
Upon the motion by Dr. Leroy Davis seconded by Dr. Sam Gilliam the agenda was 
recommended for adoption. 
 
Motion passed. 

 
AGENDA ITEM 4: PUBLIC COMMENTS 
NONE 

 
AGENDA ITEM 5: ACTION ITEM (S) 
 

A. Request Approval of Prior Year Funds to Improve Existing Parking Lot 
(SULC) 
Chancellor Pierre stated that the law center has prior year funds available to complete 
the parking lot for students at the SULC near the SU Museum.  Chancellor Pierre stated 
that he had been working with Dr. Tarver and the museum director to do asphalt paving 
to the area without infringing on the future growth plans for the museum.  He said that 
the parking lot would create a better atmosphere for the students on rainy days and that 
the project could begin mid-May and may be complete by the end of June. 
 
Upon the motion by Mr. Sam Gilliam and seconded by Ms. Arlanda Williams the 
request to use prior year funds to improve the parking lot for SULC students was 
recommended for approval 
 

Motion passed. 
 

B. Request Approval of Faculty Retirement Incentive Plan (SULC) 
Chancellor Pierre stated that the proposed plan is part of its fiscal management process 
to manage faculty costs.  The incentive plan is offered to faculty who are unsure of 
retirement. The plan proposes to pay faculty 100% of their salary over a 3-year period.  
 



Page 6 

Board of Supervisors Minutes April 12, 2019 
 

The plan has been implemented successfully for the past 2 years.  Vice Chancellor Hall 
and Associate Vice Chancellor George has been working to ensure that funds are 
available.  He said that new faculty will be onboarded with the implementation of the 
policy.  It is modeled after a plan that Loyola Law School implements. 
 
Upon the motion by Dr. Gaines and seconded by Mr. Gilliam the faculty retirement 
incentive plan for the SU Law Center was recommended for approval 
 
Motion passed. 
 

C. Request Approval of BA7’s 
Vice President McClinton stated that the BA-7 is being submitted on behalf of the SUNO 
campus to transfer money from auxiliary funds to the general fund to balance the budget. 
 
Upon the motion by Dr. Leroy Davis and seconded by Ms. Arlanda Williams the BA-7 
was recommended for approval 
 
Motion passed. 
 

D. Request Approval of SUBR Child Development Laboratory Fee Schedule for 2019-
2020 
Interim Chancellor Walker stated that the fee schedule was reviewed by Mr. Ben Pugh 
and Vice President McClinton and the schedule is comparable to other area day care 
centers. 
 
Upon the motion by Mr. Sam Gilliam and seconded by Dr. Leroy Davis the fee schedule 
was recommended for approval 
 
Motion passed. 

 
AGENDA ITEM 6:  INFORMATIONAL ITEM(S) 

A. Interim Financial Report 
Vice President McClinton stated that the report for all campuses and a summary for the 
System was included in the meeting materials.  He highlighted several of the campuses.  
He spoke with the Chief Financial Officer at the SUNO campus to discuss the budget 
shortfall in the amount of $200,000.  Additionally, expenditures also exceeded the 
budget.  The auxiliary funds are being moved to balance the general fund budget. 
Expenditures will have to be monitored to balance the budget without using prior-year 
funds. With the upcoming SACS visit the agency will be reviewing unrestricted net 
assets, those that the University controls and can move around.  Based on projections by 
the CFO at SUNO an additional $200,000 to $400,000 will be needed to balance the 
budget. 
 
Mr. Gilliam asked whether exigency is on the horizon and hard decisions being made. 
Chancellor Devezin stated that positions have been frozen and leadership changes will be  
 



Page 7 

Board of Supervisors Minutes April 12, 2019 
 

made also. In response to Mrs. Ann Smith’s question regarding financial exigency and its 
effect on the SUNO campus, Chancellor Devezin stated that exigency would damage 
recruitment.  President Belton stated that the System will provide guidance to the SUNO 
campus and additional resources will be identified in the legislature to reduce the deficit.  
He also stated that a special SACS committee visited the SUNO campus yesterday and a 
report would be forthcoming. Mrs. Smith said that she appreciates the support that the 
SUNO campus is being given.  Dr. Tolbert asked about the positions and the savings that 
will be yielded.  Chancellor Devezin said that frozen positions will yield approximately 
$700,000 and auxiliary funds through the housing department will yield approximately 
$1.3 million. Ms. Williams asked Chancellor Devezin about attrition and combining 
some of the positions that would be a cost saving without interrupting services.  Ms. 
Williams asked that a team is put together to look at the finances. She said that there 
needs to be a plan –a conservative plan.  She asked the CFO if he had explored ways to 
present to the Chancellor so that the University will not continue to operate in a deficit 
because it seems that SUNO is making a budget from an assumption.  She asked if 
attrition has been proposed or a reduction in force or if they had reviewed programs that 
may not be thriving and can be frozen. CFO Jullin Renthrope says that he makes 
projections from self-generated funds and expenses. This year enrollment did not meet 
projections. He said that self-generated revenues were used to cover the shortfall in the 
general fund. The supplement that SUNO received reduced the unrestricted net assests 
from the prior year. Chancellor Devezin said there is also a freeze on hiring and travel.  
She also stated that there would be a change in the leadership in the finance area.  Dr. 
Davis asked about the austerity plan that Chairman Rutledge requested.  Mrs. Ann Smith 
suggested that the Board be cognizant of becoming involved before President Belton and 
his administration has had an opportunity to take corrective action.  VP McClinton stated 
that the SUSLA campus also experienced a reduction in self-generated revenue because 
of enrollment.  The SUSLA CFO said that there are problems with expenditures 
including the fact that there was an increase in utilities.  The CFO stated that they would 
be able to transfer funds to balance the budget without using prior-year funds.  

 
AGENDA ITEM 7: OTHER BUSINESS 
None 
 
AGENDA ITEM 8: ADJOURNMENT 

 
Upon the motion by Dr. Leroy Davis and seconded by Mr. Sam Gilliam the meeting was 
adjourned.  
 
Motion passed. 
 



Page 8 

Board of Supervisors Minutes April 12, 2019 
 

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
(Following the Finance Committee) 

Calcasieu Parish School Board 
Board Meeting Room 

3310 Broad Street 
Lake Charles, Louisiana 70615 

 
Minutes 

 
The Governance Committee was called to order by Committee Chair Sam Gilliam. 
Present: Mr. Sam Gilliam, Dr. Leon R. Tarver II, Dr. Curman Gaines, Dr. Samuel Tolbert, Ms. 
Arlanda Williams and Atty. Domoine Rutledge.  

 
Absent:  Rev. Donald R. Henry 
 
AGENDA ITEM 3: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

Upon the motion by Dr. Tolbert and seconded by Dr. Leon Tarver the agenda was recommended 
for adoption. 
 
Motion passed. 
 
AGENDA ITEM 4: PUBLIC COMMENTS 

NONE 
 

AGENDA ITEM 5: ACTION ITEMS 
A. Request Approval to Amend Graduation Participation Policy and Implement 

Summer Commencement 
President Belton invited Dr. James Ammons, Executive Vice President to provide 
information to Board members about the proposed policy.  Dr. Ammons stated that last 
year the Board approved a graduation participation policy, but there was a typographical 
error with the date of implementation of the policy.  The intent of the policy was to require 
that students complete all requirements to participate in commencement.  However, 
because of the miscommunication, the University is allowing a one-time exemption to 
allow students lacking 1 (one) requirement to participate. The University will implement 
summer commencement beginning Summer 2019. There will be Fall, Spring and Summer 
commencements. 
 

Upon the motion by Dr. Tarver and seconded by Dr. Tolbert the amendment to the 
graduation participation policy was recommended for approval. 
 
Motion passed. 

 
B.  Request Approval to Amend Specific Sections of Board By-laws (SUS) 

Dr. Belton stated that the changes were presented to members of the Board last month.  In 
keeping with recent changes with congressional districts the by-laws must be revised. The 
by-laws indicated that there was 1 (one) member at large and that is being changed to 3 



Page 9 

Board of Supervisors Minutes April 12, 2019 
 

members at large. Also, in keeping with the Board’s list of standing committees the finance 
and internal audit committee is being renamed finance committee also the recruitment and 
admissions committee will be added to the standing committees.  Committee Chair Gilliam 
stated that administrators have stated that the changes will allow the University to comply 
with SACS requirements. 
 
Upon the motion by Dr. Tarver and seconded by Ms. Arlanda Williams the amendments to 
the Board’s by-laws were recommended for approval. 
 
Motion passed. 

 
AGENDA ITEM 6: OTHER BUSINESS 
NONE 

 
AGENDA ITEM 7: ADJOURNMENT 

 
Upon the motion by Dr. Samuel Tolbert and seconded by Dr. Gaines the recruitment and 
admissions committee adjourned. 
 
Motion passed.



Page 10 

Board of Supervisors Minutes April 12, 2019 
 

 
LEGAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 

(Following the Governance Committee) 

Calcasieu Parish School Board 
Board Meeting Room 

3310 Broad Street 
Lake Charles, Louisiana 70615 

 
Minutes 

 
The Governance Committee was called to order by Committee Chair Atty. Tony Clayton. 
Present: Atty. Tony Clayton, Mr. John Barthelemy, Dr. Leroy Davis, Ms.  Xavieria Jeffers, Dr. 
Samuel C. Tolbert and Atty. Domoine Rutledge.  
Absent:  Atty. Patrick Magee 

 
AGENDA ITEM 3: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

Upon the motion by Dr. Tolbert and seconded by Mr. Richard Hilliard the agenda was 
recommended for adoption. 

 
AGENDA ITEM 4: PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 
 

AGENDA ITEM 5: ACTION ITEMS 
A. Potential Conflict Acknowledgement and Waiver 

Committee Chair Clayton explained that the item presented is for potential conflict 
as it relates to Atty. Tim Hardy.  Atty. Hardy is asking the Board to approve a 
waiver for any conflict for any litigation involving Southern University.  He stated 
that the waiver is perfunctory in nature. 
 
Upon the motion by Dr. Tolbert and seconded by Ms. Xavieria Jeffers the potential 
conflict acknowledgement and waiver was recommended for approval. 
 
Motion passed. 
 

AGENDA ITEM 6: OTHER BUSINESS 
NONE 

 
AGENDA ITEM 7: ADJOURNMENT 
 

Upon the motion by Dr. Tolbert and seconded by Dr. Leroy Davis the committee adjourned. 
 
Motion passed.



Page 11 

Board of Supervisors Minutes April 12, 2019 
 

PERSONNEL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 
(Following the Legal Affairs Committee) 

Calcasieu Parish School Board 
Board Meeting Room 

3310 Broad Street 
Lake Charles, Louisiana 70615 

 
Minutes 

 
The Personnel Affairs Committee was called to order by acting Committee Chair Mr. John 
Barthelemy in the absence of Committee Chair Atty. Patrick Magee 
Present: Mr. John Barthelemy, Dr. Curman Gaines, Mr. Sam Gilliam, Dr. Leon R. Tarver II, 
Ms. Arlanda Williams and Atty. Domoine Rutledge 
Absent: Atty. Patrick Magee 
 
AGENDA ITEM 3: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
Upon the motion by and seconded by Mr. Gilliam the agenda was recommended for adoption. 
 
AGENDA ITEM 4: PUBLIC COMMENTS 
None 

 
AGENDA ITEM 5: ACTION ITEMS 
A. Request Approval of Personnel Action on Positions greater than $60,000 

Upon the motion by Dr. Tarver and seconded by Dr. Curman Gaines personnel items 5 A 1 
through 5A 14were recommended for approval in globo. 

 
Motion passed. 
 
Recommendations presented were as follows: 
 

1. Angela Allen-Bell, Associate Professor of Legal Analysis & Writing, SULC, at a salary of 
$106,170.02 (Tenure)  

 
2. Regina Ramsey James, Associate VC Evening Division & Emerging Program, SULC at a 

salary of $138,000.00 (Tenure) 
 

3. Wendy Shea, Associate Professor of Legal Analysis & Writing, SULC, at a salary of 
$106,000.00 (Tenure) 

 
4. Faisal Al-Khateeb, Associate Professor - Business Administration, SUNO at a salary of 

$75,800.00 (Tenure) 
 

5. Rebecca Chaisson, Full Professor/Dean of Social Work, SUNO, at a salary of $86,000.00 
 

6. Nabie Y. Conteh, Associate Professor, Business Administration, SUNO at a salary of 
$75,800.00 (Tenure) 

 
7. Albert Clark, Full Professor, Management & Marketing College of Business, SUBR, at a 

salary of $ 86,328.00 (Tenure) 



Page 12 

Board of Supervisors Minutes April 12, 2019 
 

 
8. Koffi Dodor, Associate Professor w/Tenure, Accounting, College of Business, SUBR at a 

salary of $ 99,600.00 
 

9. George Kirk, Full Professor, Management & Marketing, College of Business, SUBR at a 
salary of $ 86,328.00 

 
10. Jose Noguera, Full Professor, Management & Marketing (EBiz), College of Business, 

SUBR, at a salary of $ 86,328.00 
 

11. Joseph Omunuk, Full Professor, Accounting College of Business, SUBR at a salary of 
$125,800.00 

 
12. Darrell Asberry, Dean of Students/Head Coach, SU Laboratory School, at a salary of 

$85,000 
 

13. Nadia Washington Seals, Director of Virtual School, SU Laboratory School, at a salary of 
$86,000 

 
14. Renita Sherrard, Assistant Principal, SU Laboratory School, at a salary of $ 86,000 

 
B. OTHER BUSINESS 

NONE 
 

C. ADJOURNMENT 
Upon the motion by Dr. Tarver and seconded by Mr. Gilliam the meeting was 
adjourned 
 
Motion passed.



Page 13 

Board of Supervisors Minutes April 12, 2019 
 

Southern University and A&M College System 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING 

Calcasieu Parish School Board 
Board Meeting Room 

3310 Broad Street 
Lake Charles, Louisiana 70615 

 
Minutes 

Present 
Atty. Domoine Rutledge, Dr. Samuel Tolbert, Mr. John Barthelemy, Atty. Tony Clayton, Dr. 
Leroy Davis, Mr. Raymond Fondel, Dr. Curman Gaines, Mr. Sam Gilliam, Mr. Richard 
Hilliard, Ms. Xavieria Jeffers, Mrs. Ann Smith, Dr. Leon R. Tarver II, Dr. Rani Whitfield and 
Ms. Arlanda Williams. 
 
ABSENT 
, Rev. Donald R. Henry, Atty. Patrick Magee,  

 
UNIVERSITY PERSONNEL ATTENDING 
System President Ray Belton, Chief of Staff Katara Williams, Executive Vice 
President/Executive Vice Chancellor James Ammons, Vice President for Finance and Business 
Affairs Flandus McClinton, Vice President for Strategic Planning, Policy and Institutional 
Effectiveness Vladimir Appeaning, Vice President for External Affairs Robyn Merrick, 
Chancellors Dr. Lisa Mims Devezin (SUNO), Dr. Calvin Walker (SUAREC),Chief 
Administrative Officer Leslie McClellon for Dr. Rodney Ellis (SUSLA), and Vice Chancellor 
Roederick White for Atty. John Pierre (SULC). 

 
BOARD COUNSEL 
Attys. Winston DeCuir, Jr., and Deidre Robert 
 
AGENDA ITEM 4: ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

Upon the motion by Ms. Arlanda Williams and seconded by Mr. Raymond Fondel 
the agenda was recommended for adoption. 

 
AGENDA ITEM 5: PUBLIC COMMENTS  
NONE 
Chairman Rutledge publicly thanked the Calcasieu Parish School Board for allowing the Board 
to use their facility.  He acknowledged Mr. Fred Hardy who attended the meeting and also 
acknowledged Mr. Delafose.  He invited Mr. Hardy to the podium to bring greetings to the 
Board.  He thanked Dr. Samuel Tolbert and Mr. Raymond Fondel for bringing the Board’s 
meeting to Lake Charles.  He said he appreciates that the Board is carrying out the mission of 
Southern University. Chairman Rutledge also acknowledged the Calcasieu Parish Schools 
Superintendent Mr.  
 
 
 



Page 14 

Board of Supervisors Minutes April 12, 2019 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM 6: SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS/RECOGNITION 

A. Above and Beyond Award 
The Above and Beyond award was presented to Mr. Antonio Harris, Director of the 
Sustainable Agriculture Rural Development Institute (SARDI). Dr. Calvin Walker 
made the nomination to the Board’s committee and presented Dr. Walker to the 
audience.  He spoke about his expertise as a cattleman and an agriculturist. Board 
Chairman Rutledge and President Belton presented a plaque and certificate to Mr. 
Harris. Mr. Harris thanked Board members for the award and stated that he enjoys the 
work and thanked his family as well as faculty members that mentored him. 
 

B. Legislative Update 
Dr. Robyn Merrick gave the legislative update and attended the opening session 
where Governor Edwards outlined budget priorities and made a call for unity. A 
copy of the report was distributed to each member.  She said that the focus for the 
session is reinvestment of support in terms of funding including funding for 
unfunded mandates, enrollment management, and faculty and administrative 
salaries. A flier for HBCU Day at the legislature was distributed.  HBCU Day will 
be held Wednesday, April 24 and is replacing SU Day at the Legislature.  All 
HBCUs in the state will be participating.  
 

AGENDA ITEM 6: ACTION ITEMS 
 
Upon the motion by Mr. John Barthelemy and seconded by Dr. Tolbert action items 6A, 
6B, 6C, 6D, 6E and 6F were recommended for approval in globo. 

Motion passed. 
 

A. Approval of Minutes of March 21-22 Regular Meetings of the SU Board of 
Supervisors 

 
RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of the Southern University and 
Agricultural and Mechanical College System, that the minutes of the March 21-22, 
2019 regular meetings of the Board of Supervisors be and they are hereby 
approved. 
 
B. Approval of Committee Reports and Recommendations 
 

ACADEMIC AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 
 

A. Request Approval of Recommendations for Faculty Tenure and Promotion 
(SUBR)  

 
RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of the Southern University and 
Agricultural and Mechanical College System, upon recommendation by 
the Academic Affairs Committee, that the recommendations for faculty 
tenure and promotions, SUBR be and they are hereby approved. 
 
 



Page 15 

Board of Supervisors Minutes April 12, 2019 
 

 
B. Request Approval of Addendum to Faculty Appointment, Retention, 

Promotion and Tenure Rules and Procedures (SULC) 
 
RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of the Southern University and 
Agricultural and Mechanical College System, upon recommendation by 
the Academic Affairs Committee, that the addendum to the Faculty 
Appointment, Retention, Promotion and Tenure Rules and Procedures, 
SULC be and it is hereby approved. 
 

C. Request Approval for Tenure and Promotion (SULC) 
 
RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of the Southern University and 
Agricultural and Mechanical College System, upon recommendation by 
the Academic Affairs Committee, that the recommendations for tenure and 
promotion, SULC be and they are hereby approved. 

 
D. Request Approval of Certification of Candidates for Spring 2019 

Graduation (SUBR, SUNO, SULC, and SUSLA) 
 

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of the Southern University and 
Agricultural and Mechanical College System, upon recommendation by 
the Academic Affairs Committee, that the resolutions for the certification 
of graduates for SUBR, SUNO, SULC and SUSLA be and they are hereby 
approved. 
 

E. Request Approval of Honorary Degree for Louis Lionel Joseph 
 

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of the Southern University and 
Agricultural and Mechanical College System, upon recommendation by 
the Academic Affairs Committee, that the honorary degree for Louis 
Lionel Joseph be and it is hereby approved. 
 

Facilities and Property Committee 
 

A. Priority Projects Update 
 
RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of the Southern University and 
Agricultural and Mechanical College System, upon recommendation by 
the Facilities and Property Committee, that the Priority Projects Update 
report be and it is hereby received. 
 

B. Update on the Status of the Mississippi River Crest and Its Impact on the 
SUBR Campus 
 
RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of the Southern University and 
Agricultural and Mechanical College System, upon recommendation by 
the Facilities and Property Committee, that the report on the update on the 
status of the Mississippi River and its impact on the SUBR campus be and 
it is hereby received. 

 
 



Page 16 

Board of Supervisors Minutes April 12, 2019 
 

Personnel Affairs Committee 
 
A.  Request Approval of Personnel Action on Positions Equal to or Greater than 

$60,000 
 
1. Angela Allen-Bell 

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of the Southern University and 
Agricultural and Mechanical College System, upon recommendation by 
the Personnel Affairs Committee, that the recommendation for tenure for 
Angela Allen-Bell as Associate Professor of Legal Analysis & Writing, 
SULC at a salary of $106,170.02 be and it is hereby approved. 
 

2. Regina Ramsey James 
RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of the Southern University and 
Agricultural and Mechanical College System, upon recommendation by 
the Personnel Affairs Committee, that the recommendation for tenure for 
Regina Ramsey James as Associate Vice Chancellor Evening Division 
& Emerging Programs, SULC at a salary of $146,280.00 be and it is 
hereby approved. 
 

3. Wendy Shea 
RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of the Southern University and 
Agricultural and Mechanical College System, upon recommendation by 
the Personnel Affairs Committee, that the recommendation for promotion 
to professor with tenure for Wendy Shea, SULC at a salary of 
$106,000.00 be and it is hereby approved. 
 

4. Faisal Al-Khateeb 
RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of the Southern University and 
Agricultural and Mechanical College System, upon recommendation by 
the Personnel Affairs Committee, that the recommendation for promotion 
to associate professor with tenure for Faisal Al-Khateeb, Business 
Administration, SUNO at a salary of $75,800.00 be and it is hereby 
approved. 
 

5. Rebecca Chaisson 
RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of the Southern University and 
Agricultural and Mechanical College System, upon recommendation by 
the Personnel Affairs Committee, that the recommendation for promotion 
to professor for Rebecca Chaisson, School of Social Work, SUNO at a 
salary of $86,000.00 be and it is hereby approved. 
 

6. Nabie Y. Conteh 
RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of the Southern University and 
Agricultural and Mechanical College System, upon recommendation by 
the Personnel Affairs Committee, that the recommendation for promotion 
to Associate Professor with tenure for Nabie Y. Conteh, Business 
Administration, SUNO at a salary of $75, 800.00 be and it is hereby 
approved. 
 
 
 



Page 17 

Board of Supervisors Minutes April 12, 2019 
 

 
7. Albert Clark 

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of the Southern University and 
Agricultural and Mechanical College System, upon recommendation by 
the Personnel Affairs Committee, that the recommendation for promotion 
to Professor with tenure for Albert Clark, College of Business, SUBR at 
a salary of $86,328.00 be and it is hereby approved. 
 

8. Koffi Dodor 
RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of the Southern University and 
Agricultural and Mechanical College System, upon recommendation by 
the Personnel Affairs Committee, that the recommendation for promotion 
to Professor with tenure for Koffi Dodor, College of Business, SUBR at a 
salary of $99,600.00 be and it is hereby approved. 
 

9. George Kirk 
RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of the Southern University and 
Agricultural and Mechanical College System, upon recommendation by 
the Personnel Affairs Committee, that the recommendation for promotion 
to Professor with tenure for George Kirk, College of Business, SUBR at 
a salary of $86,328.00 be and it is hereby approved. 
 

10. Jose Noguera 
RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of the Southern University and 
Agricultural and Mechanical College System, upon recommendation by 
the Personnel Affairs Committee, that the recommendation for promotion 
to professor with tenure for Jose Noguera, College of Business, SUBR at 
a salary of $86,328.00 be and it is hereby approved. 
 

11. Joseph Omunuk 
RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of the Southern University and 
Agricultural and Mechanical College System, upon recommendation by 
the Personnel Affairs Committee, that the recommendation for promotion 
to professor with tenure for Joseph Omunuk, College of Business, SUBR 
at a salary of $125,800.00 be and it is hereby approved. 
 

12. Darrell Asberry 
RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of the Southern University and 
Agricultural and Mechanical College System, upon recommendation by 
the Personnel Affairs Committee, that the salary adjustment for Darrell 
Asberry as Dean of Students/Head Coach, SU Laboratory School at a 
salary of $85,000.00 be and it is hereby approved. 
 

13. Nadia Washington Seals 
RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of the Southern University and 
Agricultural and Mechanical College System, upon recommendation by 
the Personnel Affairs Committee, that the salary adjustment for Nadia 
Washington Seals as Director of Virtual Schools SU Laboratory 
School at a salary of $86,000.00 be and it is hereby approved. 
 
 
 
 



Page 18 

Board of Supervisors Minutes April 12, 2019 
 

 
14. Renita Sherrard 

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of the Southern University and 
Agricultural and Mechanical College System, upon recommendation by 
the Personnel Affairs Committee, that the salary adjustment for Renita 
Sherrard as Director of Virtual Schools SU Laboratory School at a 
salary of $86,000.00 be and it is hereby approved. 
 

C. Request Approval of Cooperative Endeavor Agreement Between SULC and 
BARBRI, Inc. (SULC) 
 
RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of the Southern University and 
Agricultural and Mechanical College System that the Cooperative Endeavor 
Agreement Between SULC and BARBRI, Inc., be and it is hereby approved. 
 

D. Request Approval of cooperative Endeavor Agreement Between SULC and 
Kaplan, Inc. (SULC) 
 
RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of the Southern University and 
Agricultural and Mechanical College System that the Cooperative Endeavor 
Agreement Between SULC and Kaplan, Inc., be and it is hereby approved. 
 

E. Request Approval of Cooperative Endeavor Agreement Between SULC and The 
City of Baker (SULC) 
 
RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of the Southern University and 
Agricultural and Mechanical College System that the Cooperative Endeavor 
Agreement Between SULC and the City of Baker, be and it is hereby 
approved. 
 

F. Request Approval of MOU Between SULC and the Tunica Biloxi Tribe of 
Louisiana (SULC) 
 
RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of the Southern University and 
Agricultural and Mechanical College System that the Cooperative Endeavor 
Agreement Between SULC and the Tunica Biloxi Tribe of Louisiana be and it 
is hereby approved. 
 

G. Request Approval of MOU Between SUS and Dfree Organization 
Ms. Janiah Lake with the Dfree Organization presented a video to the Board and gave 
statistics about the organization and the company’s mission to offer financial literacy to 
students. Dr. Kim Scott stated that 12 students have been identified to train the trainer 
sessions of the program.  First-year students will take the course, as well as Greek 
organization leaders and the Student Government Association.  Dr. Belton formally 
thanked Rev. Tolbert for introducing the organization to the University.   
 
Upon the motion by Dr. Tolbert and seconded by Mr. Fondel the MOU between SUS 
and Dfree was recommended for approval. 
 
Motion passed. 



Page 19 

Board of Supervisors Minutes April 12, 2019 
 

 
Chairman Rutledge announced that action items 6 H and 6 J would be taken 
together. 
 

H. SUSLA Chancellor’s Evaluation – Dr. Rodney Ellis (Executive Session May Be 
Required) 

I. SUNO Chancellor’s Evaluation – Dr. Lisa Mims Devezin (Executive Session May 
Be Required) 
(Item Tabled) 
Upon the motion by Dr. Davis and seconded Dr. Tarver the SUNO Chancellor’s 
evaluation was tabled. 
 
Motion passed. 
 

J. SULC Chancellor’s Evaluation – Atty. John Pierre (Executive Session May Be 
Required 
 
Chairman Rutledge announced that The Board of Supervisors may meet in executive 
session to discuss personnel matters under the provisions of Louisiana Revised Statue 
42:17. Consideration of the Chancellors’ evaluations are such a matter. While in 
executive session, the Board may meet with its staff, attorneys or other persons it 
deems necessary.  No votes or other action may be taken while in executive session. 
He then asked if there was a motion to go into executive session.  
 
Upon the motion by Dr. Tolbert and seconded Dr. Tarver the members convened in 
executive session. 
 
Roll Call: 
Yeas: Rutledge, Tolbert, Barthelemy, Clayton, Davis, Fondel, Gaines, Gilliam, 
Hilliard, Jeffers, Smith, Tarver, Williams 
 
Nays: None 
 
Motion passed. 
 
RECONVENTION 
The Personnel Committee met in executive session to consider the performance 
evaluations of Chancellor John Pierre and Chancellor Rodney Ellis.  While in 
executive session no motions were made, nor votes taken.  Chairman Rutledge 
asked if there was a motion to reconvene in open session?   
 
Upon the motion by Dr. Tarver and seconded Dr. Davis the members convened in open 
session. 
 
Roll Call: 
Yeas: Rutledge, Tolbert, Barthelemy, Clayton, Davis, Fondel, Gaines, Gilliam, 
Hilliard, Jeffers, Smith, Tarver, Williams 
 



Page 20 

Board of Supervisors Minutes April 12, 2019 
 

 
Nays: None 
 
Motion passed. 
 

K. Resolutions 
Commendations  
Best Wishes were extended to Attorney Katina Semien and members of the South 
Central Region of Alpha Kappa Alpha Sorority Incorporated.  The group will be 
hosting its 87th Regional Conference in New Orleans, LA on April 18-21, 2019 with 
more than 7,000 members registered.  Semien who is an SUBR political science 
graduate and an SU Law Center graduate serves as the regional director for the South 
Central Region which encompasses Louisiana, Texas, Arkansas, and New Mexico. 
 
Commendations also were extended to the Calcasieu Parish School Board 
 
Condolences were extended to:  
The Jesse “Punchy” Wilson Family 
The Barbara Echols Family 
The Richard Echols Family 
The Justine Simon Henry Family 
 
Upon the motion by Dr. Davis and seconded by Dr. Tolbert the resolutions were 
recommended for adoption. 

AGENDA ITEM 7: INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
System President’s Report 
Dr. Belton expressed thanks to Dr. Tolbert and Board members Fondel for facilitating the 
meeting of the Board in Lake Charles. 
 
Campus Reports were included in the meeting packet and are available on the SU Board 
website and available in the Board office for viewing. 

AGENDA ITEM 9: OTHER BUSINESS 
NONE 

AGENDA ITEM 9: ADJOURNMENT 

Upon the motion by Dr. Tolbert and seconded by Dr. Davis the meeting adjourned. 

Motion passed. 



 

 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
BETWEEN  

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM AND 
SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM FOUNDATION 

 
 

This Memorandum of Understanding (“Agreement”) is entered into effective the 1st of 
June, 2019 through the 1st of February, 2024 by and between Southern University System 
(“System”) and Southern University System Foundation (“Foundation”) (Southern University 
System and Southern University System Foundation hereinafter sometimes referred collectively 
to as the “parties”) for the purpose of engaging the Foundation to serve as the primary developer 
of the Southern University and Agricultural and Mechanical College (also commonly referred to 
as Southern University Baton Rouge or SUBR) campus residential, gateway and living and 
learning housing project(s). 

  
RECITALS 

 
1. The Southern University Baton Rouge campus endeavors to improve the campus 

buildings and infrastructure.  As such, to better serve its students, faculty and staff, 
SUBR is in the process of developing a campus master plan to replace and repair 
buildings and facilities on the campus as well as construct new buildings and facilities.  
  

2. In addition, the System has a strong interest in partnering with the local community and 
developing the land immediately surrounding the Baton Rouge campus.  

 
3. The Southern University System Foundation (“SUSF”) is authorized by Louisiana 

Revised Statute 17:3390 as a private nonprofit corporation to support the Southern 
University System, and the Louisiana legislature has determined that private support 
enhances the programs, facilities, and research and educational opportunities offered 
by public institutions of higher education in Louisiana. 

 
4. SUSF has been instrumental in securing private funding to support the school and more 

specifically through securing funding for a long-term strategic plan.  
 
5. SUSF and the System desire to formalize this partnership and further recognize the 

instrumental role SUSF will have in enhancing the campus and stimulating economic 
development in the surrounding community. 

 
  

Therefore, the System wishes to authorize the Foundation to assume primary responsibility 
for assisting SUBR with the development and implementation of the SUBR campus residential, 
gateway and living and learning project(s) for the improvement of campus buildings and facilities.  
This includes, but is not limited to, assisting the System and SUBR with identifying and securing 
financing for the development and implementation of the master plan, managing the 
implementation of the projects identified in the master plan and approved by the System, and, 



 

 2 

when mutually agreed upon, managing buildings and facilities for the benefit of the System and 
the campus.   

 
The term of this Agreement shall be five (5) years beginning June 1, 2019 and ending June 

1, 2024. 

The Foundation hereby accepts the responsibilities as authorized herein by the Southern 
University System.   

To continue to fund its operations and serve the System, the Foundation shall receive a 4% 
administrative fee on all funds generated for its development role and responsibilities.  This shall 
exclude capital outlay projects in which oversight is provided by the Office of Facilities planning. 

 
This Agreement is cancellable at either party’s sole discretion, for any reason, or for no 

reason, by giving sixty (60) days written notice. 
Any notices relative to this Agreement shall be sent to the following: 
 

Southern University System    SU System Foundation  
c/o Dr. Ray Belton, President-Chancellor  c/o Alfred E. Harrell III, CEO  
J.S. Clark Administration Bldg.- 4th Floor  J.S. Clark Administration Bldg.- 3rd Floor 
G. Leon Netterville Drive    G. Leon Netterville Drive 
Baton Rouge, LA  70813 Baton Rouge, LA 70813 

 

The parties voluntarily agree to engage each other herein for the benefit of the Southern 
University System and SU System Foundation. 

The parties further agree to the following miscellaneous provisions: 

i. Governing Law:  This Agreement shall be governed by Louisiana law and 
is fully performable in the Parish of East Baton Rouge, Louisiana. 

ii. Entire Agreement:  This Agreement is the entire agreement between the 
parties and, except as expressly provided herein, cannot be changed, altered, 
or amended except by written amendment signed by both parties.  The 
parties acknowledge and warrant that: (1) there are no other agreements, 
whether oral or written, express or implied, relating to the subject matter of 
this Agreement; and (2) neither party is entering into this Agreement in 
reliance on any promises or representations that are not expressly stated in 
this Agreement. 

iii. Amendments:  Amendments to this Agreement may from time to time be 
agreed to, executed, and made a part of this Agreement.  No amendment to 
this Agreement will be binding or enforceable unless it is in writing and is 
signed by both of the parties hereto. 



 

 3 

iv. Waiver:  The waiver by either party of a breach or violation of any 
provision(s) of this Agreement will not operate as or be construed to be a 
waiver of any other or subsequent breach or violation. 

v. Counterparts:  This Agreement may be signed and delivered in two (2) or 
more counterparts, each of which will be deemed an original and all of 
which together will constitute one and the same instrument. 

vi. Savings Clause:  The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision in this 
Agreement shall in no way affect the validity or enforceability of any other 
provision.  This Agreement shall be construed as if the invalid or 
unenforceable provision were never included in the Agreement.   

 

AGREED: 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM 
 
 
By: _____________________________________                         _______________________ 
 Mr. Domoine Rutledge, Esq. Chairman                                   Date 
            Southern University Board of Supervisors 
 
 
 
By: ______________________________________   _______________________ 
 Dr. Ray Belton, President-Chancellor    Date 
  
 
SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM 
FOUNDATION   
 
 
By:_______________________________________   _______________________ 
 Mr. Fred Banks, Chairman      Date 
 
 
By:_______________________________________   _______________________ 
 Mr. Alfred E. Harrell III, CEO     Date 



JOINT DECLARATION OF INTENT 

BETWEEN 

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, FORESTRY AND FISHERIES 

THE REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA 

AND 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AGRICULTURAL RESEARCH AND EXTENSION 

CENTER AND 

COLLEGE OF AGRICULTURAL, FAMILY AND CONSUMER SCIENCES 

Southern University System, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 



COOPERATION ON HUMAN CAPACITY DEVELOPMENT 

IN THE AREA OFRESEARCH, INNOVATION, AND EXTENSION 

The Department of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries of the Republic�-fSofaliAfrica 
(hereafter referred to as DAFF) and the Southern University AgriculturaJORes�arch and 
Extension Center (hereafter referred to as SUAREC) and Southern Unive.r.;iity and A&M 
College, College of Agricultural, Family and Consumer Sciences (SUBR Cf\J:CS) within the
Southern University System (SUS). · · 

Whereas, mindful of the existing good relations prevailing between their countries; 

Whereas, Declaration of Intent between the DAFF with SUAREC, and the SUBR 
CAFCS within the context of research innovation and extension to include matters related to 
agriculture and family and consumer sciences. 

Whereas, the shared importance of collaboration in human capacity development 
particularly in the area of research innovation and extension in response· to the general need for 
suitably qualified extension officers in Republic of South Africa (RSA) necessary in order to 
drive agricultural transformation; and 

Whereas, all parties jointly recognizing the importance availability of suitability 
qualified human resources in research, development and extension to improve agricultural 
productivity. 

THE PARTIES JOINTLY HEREBY record the following intentions: DAFF, 
SUAREC, and the SUBR CAFCS will collaborate with each other to support the research, 
technology transfer, and extension services dialogue and DAFF envisions through this dialogue 
to focus on supporting extension services in South Africa. 

ARTICLE 1: 
Scope 

According to the National Development Plan for South Africa and its Vision for 2030, South 
African's rural communities should have greater opporhmities to participate fully in the 
economic, social and political life of the country. Rural economies will be supported by 
agriculture and possibly by mining, tourism, agri-processing and fisheries. The following 
aspects were identified as essential, with special reference to extension and advisory services 
in South Africa: 

A. Improve and extend skills development and training in the agricultural and family and
consumer sciences sectors, including entrepreneurship training and the training of a
new cadre of extension officers that will respond effectively to the needs of small
holding farmers and contribute to their successful integration into the food value chain.

B. Innovative means for agricultural extension and training by the state in paitnership with
industries should be sought.

C. The postgraduate training is one the priority areas formalized under the Professional
Development Program (PDP). The goal of this program is to develop new generation
of researchers/scientists as part of succession planning for the Agriculture Research
Council (ARC) and the broader South African agricultural community.



D. Similar to any developing country, South Africa has a number of challenges that
constrain agricultural productivity. Some of the key challenges include.

1. Availability of suitability qualified human resources in research and development
and extension

2. Retention of highly qualified academic staff in rural universities

3. Limited experience in practical agricultural support systems for post-apartheid
South Africa and general lack of context-specific agricultural technologies

E. DAFF, SUAREC, and the SUBR CAFCS collaboration will focus on human capacity
development particularly in the area ofresearch innovation and extension.

ARTICLE 2: 
Provisions 

A. The Parties shall select 1 province for the implementation of human capacity
development particularly in the area of research, innovation and extension after
implementation an evaluation can be carried and the roll out to other provinces.

B. The dialogue may invite relevant participants from other government depattments;
organizations; private entities, academic specialists and the like if deemed necessary.

ARTICLE 3: 
Coordination, Duration, Termination, and Amendments 

A. The Participants will monitor and coordinate the implementation of the Declaration of
Intent and may update it when required. This intent will be valid for a period of three
(3) years upon signature of all patties.

B. Any Participant may terminate it at any time by means of written notification to the
other Participant, which termination will take effect six months after such notification.

DECLARATION OF INTENT SIGNED THIS __ DAY OF _____ _, 2019. 

Ms. Jenetha Mahlangu 
Minister of Agriculture 
Department of Agriculture, Forestry and 
Fisheries of the Republic of South Africa 

C. Reuben Walker, Ph.D.
Interim Chancellor & Dean
Southern University Agricultural Research
and Extension Center, College of
Agricultural, Family · and Consumer
Sciences

Ray L. Belton, Ph.D. 
President-Chancellor 
Southern University System 

Domoine D. Rutledge, J.D. 
Chairman 
Southern University System Board 
of Supervisors 



OFFICE OF THE CHANCELLOR 

(225) 771-2552 

FAX (225) 771-2474 

Dr. Ray Belton 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LAW CENTER 

261 A. A. LENOIR HALL 

POST OFFICE Box 9294 

BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA 70813-9294 

Mayl, 2019 

System President and Chancellor 
Southern University System 
J. S. Clark Administration Bldg., 4th Floor 
Baton Rouge, LA 70813 

RE: MOU Between the Southern University Law Center (SULC) and the 
Mississippi Board of Choctaw Indians (MCBI) 

Dear Dr. Belton: 

The Mississippi Board of Choctaw Indians (MCBI) the only federally-recognized Indian tribe in 
the State of Mississippi with (I) 11,0 IO members and land a base of 33,949 acres situated in ten counties 
in Mississippi, along with about 170 acres in Lauderdale County County, Tennessee; (2) a payroll of 
more than $100,000,000; and (3) one of the ten largest private employers in the State of Mississippi with 
fifteen business enterprises seeks to enter into an Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) to enhance 
practical training opportunities for SULC students. MCBI employs its own attorneys and routinely 
associates with outside attorneys to represent the sovereign interests of its tribal government, and to 
represent its tribal members in criminal matters, domestic relations matters, and estate matters brought in 
MBCI's Tribal Court. 

SULC has established a 3 semester hour credit course on Federal Indian law and has hosted or co
hosted two conferences during the 20I8-2019 academic year and has established relationships with the 
four federally recognized Indian tribes in Louisiana. This is the first collaboration with a federally 
recognized tribe outside the State of Louisiana. 

I respectfully request that this MOU be presented to the Southern University Board of 
Supervisors at its May 2019 meeting for the Board to review and consider for approval. If you have any 
questions, please feel free to contact me. 

You,ssin

:

rely, 

-��

o 111 I . Piertncellor & 
anue B. Lacour Endowed Law Professor 

"An Equal Educational Opportunity Institution" 



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
BETWEEN THE 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LAW CENTER 
AND THE 

MISSISSIPPI BAND OF CHOCTAW INDIANS 

This is a Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") between the 
Southern University Law Center ("SULC'1 and the Mississippi Band 
of Choctaw Indians ("MBCI" or "the Tribe'? to establish an "Indian 
Affairs Student Internship Program." 

1. Background

Indian law is a highly specialized field that is rooted in the unique sovereign status of 
Indian tribes and has been reaffirmed in countless judicial decisions, statutes, and 
executive orders. Indian law centers around jurisdictional disputes arising from tribal 
sovereignty. Due to rapid tribal economic growth since the advent of Indian gaming, 
tribes are now major employers in the Southeastern United States. Tribal businesses 
include much more than gaming, and non-Indian private enterprises and state 
agencies routinely Interact with Indian tribes. Attorneys who have studied Indian law 
will have an advantage when seeking employment with tribes. Attorneys that have 
taken Indian law but do not work for tribes will have an advantage when engaged in 
business Involving an Indian tribe. 

MBCI is the only federally-recognized Indian tribe in Mississippi. Today, the Tribe's 
population numbers 11,010 members, all of whom have at least a 50% Choctaw 
Indian blood quantum, and 60% of whom still speak the Choctaw language. The 
Choctaw Indian Reservation has a land base of 33,949 acres situated in ten different 
counties in rural Mississippi, along with about 170 acres In Lauderdale County, 
Tennessee. Today, with an annual payroll of more than $100 million, the Tribe is
among the state's ten largest private employers with 15 business enterprises 
providing permanent, full-time jobs for tribal members and area residents, while also 
generating tax-equivalent tribal revenues to fund basic tribal governmental services. 
MBCI employs its own attorneys and routinely associates with outside attorneys to 
represent the sovereign interests of its tribal government, and to represent Its tribal 
members in criminal matters, domestic relations matters, and estate matters brought 
in MBCl's Tribal Court. 

The Southern University Law Center (SULC) has been providing legal education for 
more than seventy (70) years and is the alma mater of many of Louisiana's premier 
jurists. Since its inception, SULC has maintained a reputation for balancing high 
standards with access and opportunity. The quest for academic excellence Is shaped 
by a desire to educate lawyers who foster a commitment to Important Ideals of social 
justice and public service. SULC offers a unique opportunity for students to receive a 
rigorous legal education in the context of a respectful, caring, and committed 
community of faculty and staff. 

As a historically black college, SULC sees adding an Indian Law Program (ILP) to its 
curriculum as a natural part of Its mission. SULC recognizes the struggles American 
Indians have suffered as a racial minority and SULC respects MBCl's inherent right to 
self-government and cultural preservation. By working together and providing practical 
"hands-on" training, MBCI can help the SULC educate its students for careers in 
Indian law. 

Therefore, recognizing the reciprocal benefits that collaboration provides, the MBCI 
and SULC hereby enter into this MOU to enhance practical training opportunities for 
the SULC students .. 

2. MBCI Deliverables



.. . 

a. In coordination with SULC faculty, create externship/internship program
opportunities for SULC students interested in becoming Indian law
professionals; and,

b. Engage in curricular training opportunities with the SULC faculty to
enhance the skill set of SULC students interested in Indian law careers.

3. SULC Deliverables

a. Establish an ILP that offers a 3-credit course on Federal Indian Law and
hosts at least one conference per academic year on an Indian law and
policy topic.

b. Identify tribal collaboration, grant/contract opportunities related to Indian
education projects, and foster and stimulate cooperation between the
SULC ILP and MBCI; and,

c. Create internship opportunities and experiential learning opportunities
for the SULC students related to Indian Affairs, legislation, and
regulation with Chitimacha.

MBCI and SULC hereby agree to use their best efforts to ensure the success of this 
MOU. The MOU will become final once it is approved by the Southern University 
System Board of Supervisors ('�he Board") and executed by authorized 
representatives of MBCl's governing body. 

The term of this agreement will be for five years with the option to renew for an 
additional number of years to be decided upon and approved by MBCl's Tribal Chief 
and the Board. This agreement and its implementation will be reviewed annually 
during the pendency of its term and during any subsequent renewed additional years. 
Both parties have the right to terminate this agreement for convenience upon 
providing ninety (90) days written notice to the other party. 

Signed this the ___ day of ___ � 2019, by John K. Pierre, Chancellor of the 
Southern University Law Center, and Phyliss J. Anderson, Tribal Chief of the 
Mississippi Band of Choctaw Indians. 

John K. Pierre, Chancellor 
Southern University Law Center 

Phyliss J. Anderson, Tribal Chief 
Mississippi Band of Choctaw Indians 

2 



EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

The Board of Supervisors of Southern University and Agricultural and Mechanical College 

(Board) hereby extends as Chancellor of Southern University Shreveport (SUSLA), Rodney A. 

Ellis, and (Chancellor) who hereby accepts the following terms of employment. 

TERM OF EMPLOYMENT 

The employment established in this Agreement is for a term of three (3) years, commencing on 
July I, 2019 and ending on June 30, 2022. 

The Board affirms the Chancellor's initial appointment as a full professor with tenure at SUSLA. 

The Chancellor will be tenured in the department that meets SACS credentialing requirements. 

DUTIES AND CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT 

The Chancellor shall report and be responsible to the Board through the System President as 

required in the Board's by-laws. 

The Chancellor's employment shall be subject to all other rules, orders and regulations established 

and adopted by the Board, as amended from time to time except as such rules, orders and 
regulations conflict with the express terms of this Agreement. 

The Chancellor shall comply with all other laws and regulations applicable to his specific office 

and public officials. 

The Chancellor will be subject to an annual review by the System President to be conducted in a 
manner and by a procedure determined by the System President. The President along with the 

Chancellor will establish performance goals. The goals and objectives will be the basis for his 

performance review for the three (3) years of the Agreement and any extensions thereof. 

COMPENSATION 

The Chancellor shall be paid an annual base salary of one hundred sixty thousand dollars 

($160,000.00). This annual salary will be paid in the form of equal monthly installments no later 

than the last calendar day of each month in accordance with SUS's payroll procedures. 

The Chancellor's base salary shall be subject to a onetime increase of2% on July 1, 2019. 

Page 1 of 5 



Based upon a positive performance evaluation and recommendation by the President to the Board, 
the Chancellor may receive subsequent annual increases not to exceed a total of 3% of his salary 
over the remaining term of the contract. 

The Chancellor shall receive a housing allowance of thirty-five thousand dollars ($35,000.00) 
annually and an automobile allowance of fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000.00) annually, which 
shall be paid in the form of equal monthly installments no later than the last calendar day of each 
month in accordance with SUS's payroll procedures. 

The Chancellor will be eligible to participate in the benefits plans for health, insurance, retirement 
and any other benefits that are available for full time administrative employees. 

The Chancellor will be required to meet the following benchmarks annually. The President through 
the Board has the discretion and the decision to provide incentive compensation to the Chancellor 
based on the following benchmarks. The benchmarks are as follows: 

I. Improve overall graduation rates from the base year of2018-2019.
2. Increase enrollment and retention rates from the base year of2018-2019.
3. Increase FTE enrollment by the end of the second year of agreement.
4. Increase partnerships that will increase visibility and financial resources from the base year of

2018-2019.

TERMINATION 

Termination Without Cause 

The Chancellor may be terminated without cause at the recommendation of the System President 
with approval of the Board. If the Chancellor is terminated without cause, he shall have the right 
to select an option as stated herein. If the Chancellor is terminated without cause and elects to 
become a full-time professor, he shall be entitled to eighty percent (80%) of his salary that he 
would have received as Chancellor for the balance of the initial term of this Agreement. 

The Chancellor, upon termination as Chancellor without cause, shall have the right to: (a) remain 
at SUSLA and assume the position of full professor with tenure at SUSLA or such other campus 
as may be mutually agreed upon by the parties or (b) he may elect to leave SUSLA. For purposes 
of this paragraph, the Chancellor shall receive eighty percent (80%) of his salary for the balance 
of the term of this agreement and upon the end of the term of this agreement, the Chancellor's 
faculty compensation shall be calculated as the average of the three highest paid faculty salaries in 
the department where the Chancellor is tenured. 

If the Chancellor elects to leave SUSLA following a termination without cause he will not be 
entitled to any further compensation beyond amounts earned as of his last day of employment. 

Page 2 of 5 



Any amounts owed Chancellor under this section shall be paid in the form of a lump sum no later 
than fifteen (I 5) days after Chancellor's last day of employment. 

The parties agree that the above payments represent liquidated damages and are all that is due 

should the Agreement be terminated without cause, except ordinary claims for benefits accrued 

and vested as of Chancellor's termination under any pension or welfare benefit plan sponsored 

and/or maintained by SUS for the benefit of full-time administrative employees. 

Resignation 

The Chancellor shall provide the System President with notice of resignation of at least ninety (90) 

days unless such notice is waived by the System President or occasioned by illness or disability. 

If the Chancellor voluntarily elects to leave his position as Chancellor during the term of 
employment herein he shall be entitled to assume his appointment as a full professor with tenure 

within the Southern University System upon the approval of the President. He shall be 
compensated at the average of the three highest paid faculty pay in the department he is tenured. 

The Chancellor is not entitled to summer faculty pay unless agreed by the President. His faculty 

position will begin at the start of the fall or spring semester immediately following the expiration 

of the ninety (90) day notice period or following the effective date of his resignation should it be 

sooner. 

Expiration 

After the end of the term of employment specified herein, the Chancellor shall revert to his position 

as an at-will Chancellor without any action required on the part of the President or Board. The 

Chancellor shall continue as Chancellor on an at-will basis upon expiration of this agreement 
subject to the same terms and conditions as other unclassified administrative staff. In the event the 

Chancellor is terminated or resigns after the expiration of this agreement, he shall be entitled to 

assume his appointment to the faculty at the same compensation as if he has resigned during the 
term of this agreement. 

Termination for Cause 

If the Chancellor is terminated for cause, he shall be terminated from all positions with SUSLA 

immediately, including his position as a tenured faculty member. If terminated for cause, with the 

exception of amounts earned prior to the Chancellor's termination date and ordinary claims for 

benefits accrued and vested as of Chancellor's termination under any pension or welfare benefit 

plan sponsored and/or maintained by SUS for the benefit of full-time administrative employees, 

the Chancellor shall be entitled to no fu1ther payments whatsoever after his termination date. The 
reasons for termination shall be provided to the Chancellor in writing and he shall be afforded an 

opportunity of not less than ten (I 0) days to respond to such notice and a due process hearing 

before the Board or a designated Board Committee. 

Page 3 of 5 



The Board may terminate the Chancellor for cause for the following reasons but not limited to: 

Conviction of a crime of moral turpitude; 

A finding of academic dishonesty as that term is defined in the Faculty Handbook; 

Felony indictment for a crime of moral,turpitude or other crime which would bring SUSLA's and 

Southern University System's reputation in disrepute; 

Neglect of duty; and 

Disability ( defined as an inability to fulfill the duties of Chancellor, with the provision of 
reasonable accommodations, for a period of at least ninety (90) consecutive days.). 

SERVICE ON CORPORATE BOARDS 

The Chancellor may serve as a member of the Board of Directors of other public or private 

corporations so long as such service is not a violation of any law and will not interfere with or 
detract from the performance of his duties and responsibilities as Chancellor or create any conflict 

of interest involving or affecting the SUSLA. The Chancellor shall obtain approval from the 
System President prior to accepting an appointment to, or agreeing to continued service on, any 
such Board. The System President shall not unreasonably withhold its approval. 

EDUCATIONAL BENEFITS 

The Chancellor and the members of his immediate family shall be entitled to any privileges or 
benefits of attendance at SUSLA or such other campus within the Southern University System as 
afforded other full-time employees of the SUSLA or other campuses within the Southern 
University System. 

NOTICES 

Any notice required or desired to be given under this Agreement shall be deemed given if given in 
writing, sent by postage prepaid certified mail, or hand delivery to: 

Chancellor Rodney A. Ellis, and/or delivered to him at his office at SUSLA. 

President, Dr. Ray L. Belton, Southern University System, 4th Floor, J.S. Clark Administration 
Building, Baton Rouge, La. 708 l 3 

Page 4 of5 



With copies to the General Counsel, Deidre Deculus Robert, Southern University System, 4th

Floor, J.S. Clark Administration Building, Baton Rouge, La. 70813 

ENTIRE CONTRACT 

This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding and agreement between the Board and the 
Chancellor with regard to all matters related to his employment. There are no other agreements, 
conditions or representations, oral written, express or implied, with regard thereto. This 
Agreement may be amended only in writing and signed by both parties thereto. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement is executed by Dr. Rodney A. Ellis, Chancellor, 
Southern University Shreveport; Dr. Ray L. Belton, President, Southern University System; Mr. 
Domoine Rutledge, Chairman, Board of Supervisors of Southern University and Agricultural and 
Mechanical College, as of the ____ day of ______ , 2019. 

CHANCELLOR,SOUTHERN 
UNIVERSITY SHRVEPORT 

DR. RODNEY A. ELLIS 

PRESIDENT, SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY 
SYSTEM 

DR. RAY L. BELTON 

CHAIRMAN, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AND 
AGRICULTURAL AND MECHANICAL 
COLLEGE 

MR. DOMOINE RUTLEDGE 

Page 5 of 5 



EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

The Board of Supervisors of Southern University and Agricultural and Mechanical College 

(Board) hereby extends as Chancellor of Southern University Law Center (SULC), John K. Pierre, 
and (Chancellor) who hereby accepts the following terms of employment. 

TERM OF EMPLOYMENT 

The employment established in this Agreement is for a term of three (3) years, commencing on 
July I, 2019 and ending on June 30, 2022. 

The Board affirms the Chancellor's initial appointment as a full professor with tenure at SULC. 

DUTIES AND CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT 

The Chancellor shall report and be responsible to the Board through the System President as 

required in the Board's by-laws. 

The Chancellor's employment shall be subject to all other rules, orders and regulations established 
and adopted by the Board, as amended from time to time except as such rules, orders and 
regulations conflict with the express terms of this Agreement. 

The Chancellor shall comply with all other laws and regulations applicable to his specific office 
and public officials. 

The Chancellor will be subject to an annual review by the System President to be conducted in a 
manner and by a procedure determined by the System President. The President along with the 
Chancellor will establish performance goals. The goals and objectives will be the basis for his 
performance review for the three (3) years of the Agreement and any extensions thereof. 

COMPENSATION 

The Chancellor shall be paid an annual base salary of two hundred twenty-seven thousand, fifteen 
dollars and fo1ty-four cent ($227,015.44). This annual salary will be paid in the form of equal 
monthly installments no later than the last calendar day of each month in accordance with SUS's 
payroll procedures. 

The Chancellors base salary shall be subject to a onetime increase of2% on July I, 2019. 

Page I of5 



Based upon a positive performance evaluation and recommendation by the President to the Board, 
the Chancellor may receive subsequent annual increases not to exceed a total of3% of his salary 
over the remaining term of the contract. 

The Chancellor shall receive a housing allowance of thitiy-five thousand dollars ($35,000.00) 
annually and an automobile allowance of fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000.00) annually, which 

shall be paid in the form of equal monthly installments no later than the last calendar day of each 

month in accordance with SUS's payroll procedures. 

The Chancellor will be eligible to pmiicipate in the benefits plans for health, insurance, retirement 
and any other benefits that are available for full time administrative employees. 

The Chancellor will be required to meet the following benchmarks annually. The President through 
the Board has the discretion and the decision to provide incentive compensation to the Chancellor 
based on the following benchmarks. The benchmarks are as follows: 

I. Improve overall graduation from the base year of2018-2019.

2. Increase retention rates from the base year of2018-2019.

3. Improve alumni participation and alumni giving from the base year of2018-2019.

4. Improve bar passage rates from the base year of2018-2019.

5. Increase faculty scholarship and research based upon the scholarship and research of the SULC
AALS report. partnerships that will increase visibility and financial resources from the base
year of 2018-2019.

TERMINATION 

Termination Without Cause 

The Chancellor may be terminated without cause at the recommendation of the System President 
with approval of the Board. If the Chancellor is terminated without cause, he shall have the right 

to select an option as stated herein. If the Chancellor is terminated without cause and elects to 
become a full-time professor, he shall be entitled to eighty percent (80%) of his salary that he 
would have received as Chancellor for the balance of the initial term of this Agreement. 

The Chancellor, upon termination as Chancellor without cause, shall have the right to: (a) remain 
at SULC and assume the position of full professor with tenure at SULC or such other campus as 
may be mutually agreed upon by the parties or (b) he may elect to leave SULC. For purposes of 
this paragraph, the Chancellor shall receive eighty percent (80%) of his salary for the balance of 

the term of this agreement and upon the end of the term of this agreement, the Chancellor's faculty 

compensation shall be calculated as the average of the three highest paid faculty salaries in the 
department where the Chancellor is tenured. 

Page 2 of 5 



If the Chancellor elects to leave SULC following a termination without cause he will not be entitled 

to any further compensation beyond amounts earned as of his last day of employment. Any 

amounts owed Chancellor under this section shall be paid in the form of a lump sum no later than 

fifteen (15) days after Chancellor's last day of employment. 

The parties agree that the above payments represent liquidated damages and are all that is due 

should the Agreement be terminated without cause, except ordinary claims for benefits accrued 

and vested as of Chancellor's termination under any pension or welfare benefit plan sponsored 

and/or maintained by SUS for the benefit of full-time administrative employees. 

Resignation 

The Chancellor shall provide the System President with notice of resignation of at least ninety (90) 

days unless such notice is waived by the System President or occasioned by illness or disability. 

If the Chancellor voluntarily elects to leave his position as Chancellor during the term of 

employment herein he shall be entitled to assume his appointment as a full professor with tenure 

within the Southern University System upon the approval of the President. He shall be 

compensated at the average of the three highest paid faculty pay in the department he is tenured. 

The Chancellor is not entitled to summer faculty pay unless agreed by the President. His faculty 

position will begin at the start of the fall or spring semester immediately following the expiration 
of the ninety (90) day notice period or following the effective date of his resignation should it be 
sooner. 

Expiration 

After the end of the term of employment specified herein, the Chancellor shall reve1t to his position 

as an at-will Chancellor without any action required on the part of the President or Board. The 
Chancellor shall continue as Chancellor on an at-will basis upon expiration of this agreement 

subject to the same terms and conditions as other unclassified administrative staff. In the event the 

Chancellor is terminated or resigns after the expiration of this agreement, he shall be entitled to 

assume his appointment to the faculty at the same compensation as if he has resigned during the 
term of this agreement. 

Termination for Cause 

If the Chancellor is terminated for cause, he shall be terminated from all positions with SULC 

immediately, including his position as a tenured faculty member. If terminated for cause, with the 

exception of amounts earned prior to the Chancellor's termination date and ordinary claims for 

benefits accrued and vested as of Chancellor's termination under any pension or welfare benefit 
plan sponsored and/or maintained by SUS for the benefit of full-time administrative employees, 

Page 3 of 5 



the Chancellor shall be entitled to no futther payments whatsoever after his termination date. The 

reasons for termination shall be provided to the Chancellor in writing and he shall be afforded an 

opportunity of not less than ten (I 0) days to respond to such notice and a due process hearing 
before the Board or a designated Board Committee. 

The Board may terminate the Chancellor for cause for the following reasons but not limited to: 

Conviction of a crime of moral turpitude; 

A finding of academic dishonesty as that term is defined in the Faculty Handbook; 

Felony indictment for a crime of moral turpitude or other crime which would bring SULC's and 

Southern University System's reputation in disrepute; 

Neglect of duty; and 

Disability (defined as an inability to fulfill the duties of Chancellor, with the provision of 
reasonable accommodations, for a period of at least ninety (90) consecutive days.). 

SERVICE ON CORPORATE BOARDS 

The Chancellor may serve as a member of the Board of Directors of other public or private 
corporations so long as such service is not a violation of any law and will not interfere with or 

detract from the performance of his duties and responsibilities as Chancellor or create any conflict 

of interest involving or affecting the SULC. The Chancellor shall obtain approval from the System 

President prior to accepting an appointment to, or agreeing to continued service on, any such 

Board. The System President shall not unreasonably withhold its approval. 

EDUCATIONAL BENEFITS 

The Chancellor and the members of his immediate family shall be entitled to any privileges or 

benefits of attendance at SULC or such other campus within the Southern University System as 

afforded other full-time employees of the SULC or other campuses within the Southern University 
System. 

NOTICES 

Any notice required or desired to be given under this Agreement shall be deemed given if given in 

writing, sent by postage prepaid certified mail, or hand delivery to: 

Chancellor John K. Pierre, and/or delivered to him at his office at SULC. 

Page 4 of 5 



President, Dr. Ray L. Belton, Southern University System, 4 th Floor, J.S. Clark Administration 
Building, Baton Rouge, La. 708 I 3 

With copies to the General Counsel, Deidre Deculus Robert, Southern University System, 4th

Floor, J.S. Clark Administration Building, Baton Rouge, La. 70813 

ENTIRE CONTRACT 

This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding and agreement between the Board and the 
Chancellor with regard to all matters related to his employment. There are no other agreements, 
conditions or representations, oral written, express or implied, with regard thereto. This 
Agreement may be amended only in writing and signed by both parties thereto. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement is executed by Dr. Rodney A. Ellis, Chancellor, 
Southern University Shreveport; Dr. Ray L. Belton, President, Southern University System; Mr. 
Domoine Rutledge, Chairman, Board of Supervisors of Southern University and Agricultural and 
Mechanical College, as of the ____ day of ______ , 2019. 

CHANCELLOR,SOUTHERN 
UNIVERSITY LAW CENTER 

MR. JOHN K. PIERRE 

PRESIDENT, SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY 
SYSTEM 

DR. RAY L. BEL TON 

CHAIRMAN, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AND 
AGRICULTURAL AND MECHANICAL 
COLLEGE 

MR. DOMOINE RUTLEDGE 

Page 5 of 5 


	Board of Supervisors Meetings May 23-24, 2019
	Document

	Academic Affairs
	Request to Establish the Native American Law and Policy Institute-SULC
	Ratification of Awarding of Honorary Juris Doctor degree to Atty. Benjamin Crump

	Facilities and Property
	Priority Projects Updates

	Finance Committee
	Request Approval of BA-7 (SUBR)
	Request to Approval Digital Course Material and Casebook/E-Casebook Fee for 1st yr students entering Fall 2019 (SULC)
	Request to Approve Increase in Undergraduate Nursing Student Lab Fees Fall 2019 (SUBR)
	Request to Approve Amended Early Retirement Incentive Plan (SULC)
	Request to Approve Documents re: Agreement Between SUBR and Cingular Wireless to Increase REntal Fees to 3,500/month

	Governance Committee
	Request to Approve Transcript Requirements for Transfer Students Policy (SUSLA)
	Request to Approve Re-Admission Requirements for Former Students Policy (SUSLA)
	Request to Approve Out-of-State Fee Waiver Scholarship Policy for First-Time, First-Year Students (SUBR)
	Request to Approve the Transfer Out-of-State Fee Waiver Scholarship Policy (SUBR)
	Request to Approve Out-of-State Admissions Policy (SUBR)
	Request to Approve the Early Law School Admissions Policy for Students that are Not Undergraduate Students Matriculating at the SUBR Campus (SULC)
	Request to Approve the Indirect Cost Recovery and Reallocation Plan/Policy (SUBR)
	Request to Approve New Conditional Admisssions Policy (SUNO)

	Personnel Affairs Committee
	Delso Alford
	Adam Crepelle
	Koshaneke Gilbert
	Robert Harrison
	Justin James
	Mary Johnson
	Michael D. Oeser
	Cynthia Reed
	Mark Roark
	Kenya J. H. Smith
	Robbin Thomas
	Mark Thurman

	Board of Supervisors
	Minutes of the April 12, 2019 Board Meeting
	MOU between SUBR and SUSF re: Development of Additional Student Housing (SUBR)
	Request to Approve Joint Declaration of Intent Between the Dept. of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries odf the Republic of South Africa and SUAREC and CAFCS
	Request to Approve MOU Between SULC and the Mississippi Board of Choctaw Indians (SULC)
	Request to Approve Employment Contract for Chancellor Rodney Ellis, SUSLA
	Request to Approve Employment Contract for Chancellor John Pierre, SULC




